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CIRCUIT CLERK MOSHOLATUBBEE DISTRICT, CHOCTAW NATION.

roveaw,; INa, Te¥, May l4th 1903,

o

et

—

RN AT

B R Pttt s T

L

Mansfield, MeMurry & Cornish,
South McAlester, I Te

Dear S8ir:- Yours of the 2nd to hand, 1n reply have to say
 ,?that since I talked to your Mr. Rosenw1nkel on the train at

;Y,Atoka I came home the next day and went to Red Oak, 1.7 %

circqgt?cpurtiand have been there ever since until this

SATIR

. morning, I will be up to se¢ yvou in a few~@aya,1,think,1

can be of some benefit to you in the Biddie, Bagwell and Lewis

cases and perhaps sone pther-oasea}in this country that I

do not call to mind just now, Just as soon as I can leave
home you may look for me,
Yours very respectfully,
(signed) T.J. Sexton,
Cireuit Clerk,



South MeAlester, Indian Territory, September 23, 1903,

L__M"f i
| Oaklodge, Indian Territory.

Dear Mr, Bowers:!

The purpose of this letter is to inquire if you know

or have ever known a man of the name bf Maféﬁgfiéwis and Sarah
Lewis, his wife., These people made some a’fidavite in some citie-
zenship cases hefore Stephen Wheeler, United States Commissioner

ﬁf”?ort Smith, some years ago.

’7§§y&to,writa us at once if vou know them and if they are living
an& if so, where

Your friends,
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South MeAlester, Indian Territory, Septenber 33. 1903.

e

i Hanof&gg; Ggéeﬁ.ﬁcCurtﬁin,
Principal Chief, Choctaw Nation,
Kin¥a, Indian Territory.
i Dear Governor:
j The purpose of this letter is to lnquire if vou know
or have ever known a man of the name of Mareus Lewis and Sarah
Lewis, his wife. These people made some a’fidavits in some citie

zenshin cases hefore Stephen Wheeler, United States Commissioner

at Fort Smith, some vears ago.

We are extremely anxious to locate them and will thank
you to write us at once if you know them and i1f they are living
and 1f so, where.,

Your friends,
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Fler, Jra ! s e
Kinta,I.T.,September 28,1903,

Messrs lransfield,MeMurray & Cornish,

S.McAlester,Indian Territory.
gentlemen:

Replying to your letter of the 23rd gut,whomin you ine
quire whether or not I know the whereabouts of v];;arcus and Sarah
Tewis,I beg to advise that I am unable to get any information with
reference to these peoplegand I do not remember anything of such
people having ever lived in this section.

Yours truly,




South McAlester, Indian Territory, June 3, 1903,

Zora P, Lewis, et al,
VSe

Choctaw Nation.

e A Lt

LEI'ER OF INSTRUCTIONS.

TO .

The papers and files in the above case are
herewith delivercd to you and vou azre directed to
investigate the same conforming in the main to the

instructions contained in this let® r.

The principal applicants in this case, are

the Lewlis's, the Early's, the Edwards'sy; the

Pryor's and others . Some¢laim by wivod and some

by intermarriage. They slLate thét James M, Lewis

T kg PG i S . A N —

was a Choctaw Indian ard duly recogniéZdvéé';uch

in the state of Mississippi, and that Zora P, Lewis
is the widow of said James M, Lewis, she having mar-
ried nim in the State of Mississippl in 1838; that
the other applicants are the legal descendants of the

said yames M, Lewis and Zora P. Lewls,

Thomas Hi of Chetotah, Indian Territory

in an affidavit made e J, B, Marrs, Notary Pub-

lic of Checotah says that he va s personally well ac-




o

quainted with James M, Lewis and Zora P, Lewils, and
that he krew them to be mancand wife, and that he
‘mew James Madison Lewis was the son of Susanna King,

a full blood Choctaw woman; that he knew them in

Sebastain County, drkansas; that James M. Lewils

died in the Chp 1 Nation in 1875; he knew the child-

never knew such a perbn ags Susanna King, and that
he never perhaps saw James M, Lewis, You are
directed to see the witness and question him closely
and carefully, and take from him an affidavit embody-
ing all the facts you can get of advantage to the

Nations,

Hettie Hicks, of Checotah, who perhaps is
the wife 6f Thomas R, Hicks also made an affidar it
in this case, the same being an exact duplicate of the
affidavit made by Thomas R, Hicks., You are directed
also to see Hettie Hicks and deal with her as dircct-

ed above,

"’%.ﬂé & »é‘
Jessie B, Mathls, whose post office is OZ’*»S:;Q%M“*
- '- - ‘\?Q‘ A
Ecoxﬁuchka, Indian Territory also made an affidavit m'"%yh ‘”"xé{
"F& ﬂt‘?\ |
c . W

in this case, before W, W, Ives, in which he stated Thy



that he was acquainted with the applicants herein;
that they were the sons and daughter of James M,

Lewis and the grand children of Smsanna King, which
last wag a Choctaw Indien by bjohd mal e these state~
meénts from his own personaly knowledge., We are sure
this ® stimony is not from the witnesses own per-
soﬁai‘icnowied.gmé, and that it was furnished him,

You =re directed to see Jesse B, Mathis and procure
from him an affidavit setting forth what factg you can

get from him or advantage to the Natiom.

é"fw

b . A

Jacol S. Bender, whose post office 1s not wa
{

given made an affidavit before W, W, Ives in the 9’:‘1&&‘ 4 £
'{;: *ﬁ..f
very words of the affidavit of Jesse B. Mathis. }3{{ Ve f’{q
ij\) ; k.zzf" 4
You are directed to see John S. Bender and deal with “5{,?‘ 'f/‘ﬂ‘%
e ¢

him as above directed. 2 ~

Yours very truly,

Dictated

ed



In the case of Zora P. LeW$.‘“et al,
I was direc¢ted to seeThomas Hicks and Hetfie m];s,
both of Checotah, Indian Territory., I went to Chec b=
talh and learned that Thomas Hicks is dead. I saw
Hettie Hicks, his widow however, and took from her
the affidavit appended hereto, showing that she
knows nothing in the worlda about the applicants,
and that her testimony was procured through an impd-

sition.

I was further directed to see Jesse B,
Mathis and Jacob S, Bender. I learned from Mrs,
Hicks that Jesse B, Mathis and Jacob S, Bender
both live at Econtucka, about ten miles North-east
of Shawnee, Oklahoma Territory.

Yours very truly,
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MARSHAIL’S RETURN.

Wuited States of Adumvevica,

INDIAN TERRITORY, s
.................................. Districr. v
I RECEIVED this summons this_ ... (8 £ 03 IR R S B R e Sl 00 L gt s olelock m.

and served same by copy, as follows :

Personally on o s oo BN T e Ind Tervthis . “day 6f. - -- ol 4 1R 0 R s o’clock.____m.,
hop o S SISERCTRed O Bt cooceveiocediein A Teps thin . day of o oo 0@eserre o’clock.._._m.
LU AR DR SR e - S o Ind. Ter. this day @bt 08 ix 180 odind o’clock._..._m.
O e, e O e G leelise i Ind. Ter. this._____ (LR iRy e o’clock..___. m.
At Beogidenes oftre ficiumis Rl o o Ind:Bex, this.e dayr bl " " Lo D00; vl o’clock.._._m.
Shpuge ™ ploemiy el - T G Rl AR L o ind; Rersthise dayief - soon 190zl e o’clock....__m.
L T LR S R Y A ke 0 dudrilen, this T Uaast ol St v il e o’clock....__m.
& el S s R Tod. Ber, this ... diy ofite " 07 i [ s o’clock.....m.

With a member of defendant’s family over 15 years of age there residing.

And the other persons named in this Summons are ¢ not found in this District.”
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SUMMONS. : ——y

United States of America,
INDIAN TERRITORY, ss:

Choctaw and Chickasaw Gitizenship Gourt,

Che President of the dmited States of America,

Co the United States IMarshal Tor the Tndian Territory, southernDistrict,

GREETING :

YOU ARE COMMANDED TO SUMMONS.___.__._. i‘am%ﬂ#lﬂ*r%ﬂm ___________
AP Y of the Chlékasaw sation,
on tb%r G4 My%%%r the service of this summons upon . him, a8

Governor of said Wation,
a complaint in Equity filed” AgAINSt .y oot aw-ang - Chickssaw- Hattonmy

f ’zﬁw
J’/ ,,,,, and warn . *hﬁl ________ that upon his failure to answer, ghey

by
a% o it GEIBE %aﬁ&lmféﬁged‘“&ﬁ %33%1 W8 return of the summons @nythe
socliSiadtY. QhoReRkssmonx — snutanter, Tesm xabatidobai
and you are further copvanded 1o notify sald P.E.00sley, Governor

f‘ﬂﬁﬂid' ﬁh&t thﬂ PWPUPPB‘ filﬁﬂ QM ﬁ“‘°¢Wéim*' in t saat of
/ ) ' e Fllﬂ Hﬂ‘ i g xﬂ tm Diﬁtriféinnﬁ,u

""""""""""""""" e DiBtricty of the Indian Territory; -
“%o The Choctaw and chmﬁmm Citigonship Court,
and that the cwtirieuu of the m‘iﬁ‘i‘ii"“éif'“ﬁﬂa“‘ﬁﬁﬁﬁ """"" ToF 0id_ Sowdes .

. Mairies, Welm ?‘Wﬂ’&mﬁ? tgghonor%ﬁté%%g ﬁhXDAMS Chief Judge, Warrer L.

Weaver and Henry 8. Foorr, Associate Judges, and the Seal

____________________ , aforesaid,

, A.D.190.8



James D. Lewis, Antha L. Lewis, Osci ‘\Lev‘ri’s,; Joseph Roper, Joseph
H., Lerad are Croctaw In‘ians by blood, nd that Srah E. Lewvis, Augusta
M. Lewis = Anna Cowart Belle Leard have been duly and e ally married

to Choctaw Indians according to Choctaw laws, It is therefore by the

court considered, ordered and adjudged that t‘he said appplicants above

 na-ed are hereby admitted to citizenship in the Choctaw yetion, with
AY all ther ights privileges ad benefits of sch citizenship a"foresaid
- in ad o the Choc'aw yation.
: ) ot her

The Court further finds that the appikk@axmkx applicants ,
to-wit: Preston Farly, Joseph M, Edwards, Samuel Pryor, H, C. Roper,
George W, McKibben, Zimxx Sherman Tabor, george Cirk, and Gusx Adams,
are not married according to the laws of the Choctaw Nation; and it
is by the Court considered, adjudged and decreed that said Preston
Farly, Joseph N, "dwards, Sa'uel Pryor, H, C. Roper, George "', McKibben,
Sherman Tabor, george Clark, and Gus Adams, be den ed all rights of
citizenship, that their names be excluded for the rolls of Choctaw
citizens of the Choctaw jyation, prepared or to be prepared by the
Commission to the Five Civilized Tribes and that as to said parties
the Cho taw ;;ation have and recover of them its costs.

It is further ordered and adjudged by the Court that the
clerk of this court shall transmit to the Commission to the Five
Civilized Tribes a certified copy of this judgment and decree, and
that sald mxx Comrission shall place the names as aforesaid of said
plaintiffs upon the rolls prepared or to be prepared by them of the
citizens and membe rs regpectively of the Choctaw .Nat io , and that such
persons so0 admitted, as citizens and members of the Choctaw Nation as
aforesaid, hall be entitled to all the rights, privileges, immunities
and benefits of zcitizens of said Choctaw yation in allrrespects.

It is further ordered that the plaintiffs have and recover of
and from the Choctaw Nation all their csts in this Pehalf laid out and.

expended, for which let execution issue,



RFPORT ON THR PRESENT STATUS OF THE ZORA P,LEWIS CASE,

The applicants herein claim that Susanna King was a full hblood
Choctaw Indian woman;that she had a son named James Madison lewis,
a half hlood Choctaw,now deceased,who was the hushand of Zora P.
Lewis and the fathér of the principal applicants herein.
W.M,Jones,who lived near Carvin,Indian Territory,swore in 1896
that he was 68 ywars of age,and was well and personally acquanited
with rames Vadison Lewis in the o0ld Choctaw Nation in the State of
Mississippi,and knew him to bhe a Chécﬂaw Indian bv blood,
This witness is now dead. Simon Taylor,of CGarvin,I.T,,prosecutim
attorney of Red River County,in a statement made to D,A.Riehardson,
said that he knew W,M,Jones;that he was mentally unhalanced and at
times wholly insane, We thinl the facts are that W,M,Jones was never
in Mississippi,and that he knew nothing of these people at all.
Simon Taylor and others near Carvin should be summoned to show
Taylor's mental condition,and if possible to impeach him,
Marcus TLewis and his wife,Sarah Lewis,in an affidavit made befome
Stephen Wheeler,swore that tley (affiants) are citizens by bhlood of
the Choctaw Nation and came here from the state of Mississippi. That
"my father,David Lewis,was a Choctaw Indian. My mother,Sarah Anne Lew
is,nee Hardesty,was a daughter of Fane King,who was a full bhlood
Indian. My gran@father on my father's side was also named David,was
a full blood Choctaw,and had an uncle named David who was a full
blood ChoctaWesessssoseeeMy grandfather's uncle David was also tho‘
uncle of James Madison Lewis;his méther was also a King of the same
family of Kings as the said Jane XKing,"
In connection with this testimony,Hiram H,Rarly,in a statement
made to D,A,Richardson,says: "Thev (the applicants herein) hired a
man named Lewis,who lived in the Choctaw Nation and claimed to bhe a
Choctaw, to festify in their behalf, Lewis was part negro. He swere

that the avplicants were blood kin to him. Thev did not nav him



what they agreed to. I have forgotten Lewis's given name., .....He
told me that they had not paid him what they agreed to pay,and that
he was going to tell the truth on them,"

Hiram H,Farly is the most valuable witness the Nations have in
this case. His testimonv should b= taken in contradiction of Marcus
Lewis's affidavit, He will also testify to other material facts which
we shall have occasion to notice further on, Marcus Lewis,perhaps c
can be impeached in Hiram H,Rarly's neighborhood.

Thomas R.Hicks and Hettie Hicks,his wife,of Checotah,I,T.,swore
in 1896 to quite a long affidavit,in which tliey are made to say:that
trey "are personally acquainted with James Madison Lewis,and know
him to be a son of Susanna King,a full blood Choctaw woman",

Thomas R.Hicks is now dead. His widow,Hettie Hicks,in June,1803,
lived 12 miles northwest of Checotah,I.T.,j;and on that date she made a
signed statement to D,A,Richardson,in which she said that she "never
knew Susanna King and does not remember ever to have heard of her".

I know nothing about their (the Lewises) Indian blood. I have never
heard anything about their Indian blood except what they have told
me., My hushand,Thomas R.Hicks,knew nothing moee ahout the Lewises
than I do". She denles making the statemnts contained in her affidavi

Her testimony should be taken before the Court,

Jesse B.,Mathis and Jacob Bender,both of whom now live at Econ-
tuchka ahout 9 miles northeast of Shawnee,0,T,,made affidavits in
1896 in behalf of Edward M.Lewis,in which they state that they
know the applicant to be a son of rames M,Lewis and a grandson of
Susanna King,who was a Choctaw woman by blood;and know this fpmam
thier own personal knowledge.

Both of these parties have suhsequently given written statements
to D.A.Richardson,denying that they ever made such an affidavit,and
stating that they know nothing about the rights of these applicants
except what the applicants themselves have told them.

Jesse B.Mathis was very indignant on seeing what his purported



affidavit contained;and he will mhke a willing witness for the
Nations.

The evidence of hoth of these witnesses should he taken before
the court.

Mrs., Jane ¥,Page,of Pocola,I.T.,has made an affidavit before
W.H.Moore, in which she says that she knows nothins about the race or
blood of the Tewis applicants. That she never knew anything about
them except what theyv told her,and that she has forgotten that,

Her testimony should be taken before the Court in contradiction
of her affidavit in the record. (A copy of her original afficavit
is not among our papers;but the Citizenship Court record shows that
her affidavit was off-red in evidence by Harley.)

Hiram H,Early,of Texanna,I.T.,gave a written statement to D,A,
Richardson in this case,which see, He is by far the most important
witness in this case we have heen able to find., His first wife was a
daughter of James M,Lewis, He knew them for years bhefore they ever
claimed Indian hlood. He knows of their hiring witnesses,and raising=
a slush fund among themselves for the corruption of witnesses, He sayv
that these peeple never claimed Indian blood until after the death of
James Yadison Lewis;and that he has heard James ywadison Lewis say
TIME AND AGAIN that he,Lewis,did not have any Indian blood,and that
he wished he did have. ©OSays that yames Madison Lewis never did live
in the wation. Tells of the Lewises leasing land from Sarah McKin-
ney for four years after they came into the wyation. He never heard of
Susanna King. The Lewis hoys have often told him that thev had no
right here,but that they were going to prove one just the same,

He says that the Lewises were to give iarcus Lewis some ponies,
three hales of cotton,and some goods amounting in all to $300,to get
him to swear for them,,and they wanted Farly to go in with them,

His testimony should be taken in court by all means,

Hiram H.Farly further says: "The Lewises came from near Brook=



haven,Vigsissippri. They were related to som~ Kings there who still
live near Brookhaven. They have a great many kin in Brookhaven, Flishu
Lewis who is still living in Brookhaven is a half brother of james
M.Lewis. Their whole family history cah be learned in Brookhaven,"
This case should be inve~t igated along those lines in and around
Brookhaven,Mississippi.
Mrs, Hiram H.Farly should also he had hefore the court as a

witness. See her stateme nt/
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gave tostizﬁo I the casé of Zora P L'
vs. Choctaw Wation in which he stated that he was 85

vears old; that ne was wéll a.nd personally acquaint= ﬂj
ed witn James M, Lewis in the ChOCtaw Nation in
Miﬂciceipn‘l mr"‘rm TJames M. Towis was &
“ The apnlicants in this case

P R e

‘taw A olobd.

claim from James M, Lewls, Zora P, Lewis claiming to

" be his widow, and she says that she was married to
him in the State of Mississip'oi in the year 1838.

""""""

The other

-8 2 - PO ‘ : ';' : .- 3 ~ 2
direoted to see . M. Ritchey a.t Garvn;‘ and tm
J....' J.i l h “‘: J G ..,a’
“his affidavit in the caso. We think you can de-
,,,,,i.,,.xrelop the fa.ct tnat he never kmw auch a man as - »n T —

-James M, Lewis in Mississip};)i or that 1f he did
Ry oot rally submiited

know such a man, he was not a octavq I n,: We are
of the opinion that this test. :?i'ﬁi‘s&“

witness already written out.

Bt

D e I

William Jones of Garvin, Indian Territory
gave testimony in the Zora P, Tewls case, in “hich %‘/
he stated that he was 68 years of age; that he was
well acquainted with James M. Lewig in the old
Choctaw Nation in Mississippi, snd thet said James M,
Lewis was a Choctaw Indian by blood. You are
directed to deal with William Jones in the same man-
ner as that prescribed for W.A M. Ritchey,
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South McAlester, Indian Territory,
June 1, 1903,

gore P. Lewls, et al.,
vs

The Choctaw Nation,
REPORT

To Mansfield, McMurrey & Cornish.

I was instructed to see W.M. Richey of Garvin,

and William Jones of the same town. I went to Garvin

and found that both W.M. Richey and Wm, M., Jones are dead.
Respectfully submitted.
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SUBPENA.
ghoctaw and Chickasaw @itizenship Gourt, >
_ ~ Che President of b

And this you, or any of you, are not to omit, upon the penalty/upon you, and every one of you, of two
hundred and fifty dollars.

Ditness, thg Honorable SPENCER B. Apawms, Chief Judge, WALTER L. WEAVER

sgciage Judges of said Court, and the Seal thereof,
A e dian Territory, this ... 2/? ___________
__________ 3 ALD. 19047

cor TR, Ot o e i

Clerk.

By ‘ , Deputy.




MARSHAL’S RETURN.

INDIAN TERRITORY,
CF‘WRAL T\Q’T“RICT '

& T | | Dol Richardso : o i t_a
party to the ‘withinS entitled suit, and that he is more than 21
y8aRs of| age ‘that dq%y served the within subpoena on Hiram
H/F. rly an¢1 h1s wife, M8, Firam H Farly,at their home 8 miles
eds of 'T’exarkna 1.8 sats 4 3 P,¥,Jan,31,1904,by reading the
s am& to Baéh of Sdtd parfles wnthln their presence and hearigg
ardwaﬁsasp$“aelivering to each of them a true and perfect

co g herraof. ,
TS m K\
E QD ' Q 3
RVel >~ ™ ™~ ‘
e fe X
StbBcribed amd swarn to before me this 3rd day of Feb,,1904,
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SUBPUENA.

&

Chdctaw and Chickasaw Citizenship Gourt, ?

INDIAN TERRITORY,

_______________________ Det=A~~ |

Che President of the dinited States of America,
To e ke, Clecalehl o 7]

, Greeting :

e command you, that all and singular business and excuses being lajd aside, you, and each of you,

, at a Court to be held at its Court Room X/EKALLT s g 485

.-, in the Indian Territory, on the....... % ___________ day of > W : ]90.,4_,4

at./,(g ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ o’clock.--g._m., to testify and give evidence in a certain cause pending in sgi urt, then and there
t betried 2 ( ; : Wv&

etween _

And this you, or any of you, are not to omit, upon the penalty/apon you, and every one of you, of two

hundred and f’ifty dollars.
\ A% Witness, the Honorable SPENCER B. Apays, Chief Judge, WALTER L. WEAVER
and

\ ¢ 04
NRY S,yFo0TE, Associate Judges of said Court, and the Seal thereof,
at 7]7% ¢ Indian Territory, this ...
day of - Y AR sy A D 190,44

, Clerk.
By~ , Deputy.




INDTAN TERRITORY, {
CRYTRAT, Uhhwm@mﬂaeg N { : 20-01wear9oLe :

Sw | i i | D.B.Richardson—on Oath B&yS tnat fe io Wore
thal 21 years of agegandinot a party to the within entitled
action;dnd that he duly Served the within subpoena on Mrs,
Hetti® Hidks| at her zesi@ence 12 miles north west of Checotah,
T.Ti,@ti11 o'clock AM,,January 31,1904,by correctly reading
the|syme dosher in her presence and hearing,and also by deliv-
erings te her a; true|and dorrect copy hereof,
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TR AP ERE m H
) B ordtde RS : M
A R o e _

NG R A ] |

9 o e O S |

y A8 T SR AR A N

g ST SIEU RSN ‘,

U Ny (s) ) Q i

E iR drss s

o ks P W TS o i

o = el |
P A

A R B e BRI AP R it oot e e f [ SO Ol SR 5

-l s b R i

< S ¥E 2D 5 po A e et

= = w g e R ! i A e ] o I R R e
S 8§ 8 R 8 & LR W

% S s gt S o | : |

<  RwRA N i b o e WP

, T *SUGTJeN MeSEINOT Y PUs mEIo0UD

STt R s FE 2 |

T e T L 5 & { %

- O S R }0 (N 4 <

POV S © © .0 AR ) ) sa

pRA LN g s :

AN o E R TR SN e

St 8 8 ¥ I % |

R i\ s VO G g -

= w | S Mw_ w ‘Te 9°STMR[*°J BJIOZ

B : e NN iy

pet ] : & g i

LGNS s FLOERE T Y AR S ON

VT { 8 i |
Yk, : % |




SUBPINA.

@hdctaw and @hickasaw @itizenship Gourt, )

/ INDIAN TERRITORY,

Cbe President of the United States of America,

, Greeting :
e command pou, that all and singular business and excuses bemg laid aside, you, and each of you,

And this you, or any of you, are not to omlt, upon the penalty/upon you, and every one of you, of two
hundred and fifty dollars.

Ditness, the Honorable SPENCER B. Avawms, Chief Judge, WarTeEr L. WEAVER
: %%&ate Judges of said Court, and the Seal thereof,
ML L AAXCL A, Tndian Territory, this......... Z_f _________

TS . Gt 4 gl A

Clerk.

, Deputy.
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e, 190, and served the same by reading it in the presence and hearing of

MARSHAL’S RETURN.

I received this Swbpena at ......__________o’clock. .
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SUBPENA.

Choctaw and @hickasaw @itizenship Gourt,

IN DI%I‘ERRITORY,

sl vl Fr. @ 9

, Greeting :
e command you, that all and singular business and excuses being laid aside, you, and each of you,

appear and attend before the Judges of the Choctaw and Chickasaw Citizenslfip Cou

, at a Court to be held at its Court Room,

/ , in the Indian Territory, on the_..._. # day of 5/‘/4’14—4/4401 , J90.25

at. /[ O _____o'clock_.--m., to testify and give evidence in a certain cause pending in gaid ourt, t and ther
wbetween._- o7 Gzééaw o AR , Plaingiff, and ._. %&Zw .. 7280 ” Mg‘

And this you, or any of you, are not to omit, upon the penalt§ upon you, and every one of you, of two
hundred and fifty dollars.

Witness, the Honorable SpeNcER B. Apawms, Chief Judge, WALTER 1.. WEAVER

and H# , Wte Judges of said Court, and Seal thereof,
at XIEAIA ML £ Indian Territory, this. . y .............

AT
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UL S. Marshal.
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L g'olock o, ONERE aisl i O G s s pliosyin dO0X g whaksi 00 BT ARR
O'cloohk ci S Moontho i o Rt ey eI el O

o%clock. ... M.onthe......_. day of

at .
k>
at
FEES:

Total,

I received, this Subpowna at ...
weeeemiiiles, at 6 cents pér Wiley Joa T mn "t Sy

Services,

20-01Ieqr9Le
(@ﬂo\.\ § A PO PP .Y s
\ (
WA, AN, » AN AN 2 ol
W}.Pwmﬁ‘wﬁu ] )
e
2 TSP
& )
~ 4 &l.




MARSHAIL’S RETURN.

@Wnited States of Anvevica,

INDIAN TERRITORY, g2/
LD W N B b A ‘DistrICT.
I rECEIVED this summons this ... (3% A0 e R MR oL P s A DRd0 gt o’clock..__.._. m.
and served same by copy, as follows : : 5
Personaly ozl a NN 200 ORI i S Jaids Wericthip - duy-of = -t & 13718 et o’clock...._m
LN TSI Hbse. siciotdg IndiTensthife o day Ofeas ot b OO0 e o’clock_.___m
S et 5 Rl st Sk 1t e Ind. Ter. this.....day of 180 S o’clock......m
SRR A A S35 pl T T Ul Ly Ind. Ter. this...._. e i 109 1 etk olclock. .. m.
At Residence of ... R = et S A O e ThiE s gl N o’clock.-..._m,
e R R gl ek ot Ind. Ter. this...._day of. 2190 0 o'clock...._.m.
LU 7 RoT AR B0 Rl e Lr s 1 S el S Eod. Ber. SIS0 @ayefii o oF Toqerser ’ wleladkey iy
Y B 8 ) AR y S Ind.Ter;: this L day offPetcEvEs L s il aiclock, 2. m;
With a member of defendant’s family over 15 years of age there residing.
And the other persons named in this Summons are “ not found in this District.” :
U. S. Marshal.
1 R R S T L N Rl S A s Deputy
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SUMMONS. A) W

United States of America,
INDIAN TERRITORY, ss:

Choctaw and Chickasaw Citizenship Court,

Che President of the dnited States oF Flmerica,

Co the United States Marshal for the Tndian Territory, ggf_ﬁh?f’bistrid,,
(}]'QEE"I‘IN(} 3

YOU ARE COMMANDED TO SUMMONS ___ Green Mc Curtain, Principal

SRRt AFALhe CRDuSaN FRBEBN. v 0 T i e s B B et

on behalf of said Nation,
to rmqwel'\ln twenty days after the service of this summons RPOD L R

Prineipal Chief of said Natiom,

a complaint in Equity filed against ‘;"“The“’crfoct'aw‘and"Chickasaw“Na.‘biorrs,“ L

in the Choctaw md Chickasaw Citizenship Court, in the Indian Territory, g M@dﬂm

bi ________________ Civdop™ and warn __ BiM )t upon ... his_ failure to answer Xgex
as Principal “hief ,r gqiq Nation, on behalf of said Nation, the

A complaint will be taken for confessed, and you will make return of the summons oF¥FREX

XXEXXXRXXFRIRXPOXXX  instanter, = = Germrctowide@ew!.

and you are further commanded to notify said Green Mc Curtain, Princlpal
Chief aforesaid, thet the files, papers and proceedings in the case of

) g @ Fowr 2k ak File No, 70! , in the Distriect-
COurt for the Memtral District, of the Indian Territory,

have been transTerrea to the Choctaw and Chickasaw Cltizeﬁhip court, and
that the certificate of the Clerk of said Court.for said Ladaad ...
District, Indian Territory, has been attached thereto,

WITNESS the Honorable Seexcer B. Apawms, Chief Judge, WALTER L.

Weaver and Hexry 8. Foork, Associate Judges, and the Seal

Bersol, At it South Mc Alester, I.T, , aforesaid,

T /? ,,,,,,,,,,,, day of March ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, C AL D. 1903




In the Choctaw and Chickasaw Citizenship Court.

September 22, 1903,
Zora P. Lewis, et al.,
VS,
C & C Nations,
Refpre Judges Weaver & Foote.
Harley & Lewis for the plaintiffs,
M MeM & Cornish for defendants,

This cause coming on to be heard on this day the following
proceedings were had:

Mr. Cornish:

Before proceeding I desire to call attention to a motion
which we have filed in this case to make more definite and
certain which seeks to elicit from you information as to
whether or not any one or all of the ancestors through
whom these applicants claim complied with the fourteenth
article of the treaty of 1830 or removed to the Choctaw
Nation when the Choctaw Indians removed West; what is your
response to that motion?

Mr. Harley:

If the court pleases, we take it that the court will
take the same action in this case on the motion and demurrer
referred to that was taken in the other cases. We presume that
the motion will just simply be filed and that the court will
not pass on the matter at this time,

Judge Weaver:

Yes,sir.

Mr, Cornish:

It is not a matter of argument, I understand that the
sufficiency of the motion-what the motion seeks to elicit
will be passed upon later. I wish the record to show now whether
or not you will respond to the motion?

Mr. Harley:
We take the position that we do not have to reply to it.
Mr, Cornish:

Then you decline to furnish the information which the motion
asks.for?

Mr., Harley:

Yes; at this time,



Judge Weaver:

Proeeed,

@y Harley:

We have a large amount of documentary evidence to offer at
this time after that has been done we can then swear the
witnesses. On behalf of the applicants and all of the appli-
cants in this case we desire to offer first the original
application of Zora P, Lewis, et al,, --as I stated we desire
to offer the original application of Zora P. Lewis, et al.,
filed before the Dawes Commission in 1896, Attached to and forming
a part of that original petition is a list of all the parties
in the cause and we desire to offer that list which is aétached
to the original petition., I presume that the original petition
and this list of names might be marked as one exhibit -Exhibit
"A", I don't presume that it will be necessary to take up
the time of the Court now in reading the names of the appli-
cants in this case as their names are set out in the original
1isto

We next desire to offer the recipt showing that a copy of the
original petition in this case was served on Stewart, Gordon
and Haley as attorneys for the Choctaw Nation and service ac®
eepted by them together with the affidavit set out in the
receipt which might be marked exhibit "B", this receipt being
dated September 7, 1896,

Now this record is very cumbersome; I will first ask leave to
offer the entire record in the case filed before the Dawes
Uommission and hefore the United States court as a whole and
later I shall offer it individually.

Mr., Cornish:

\ The Choctaw and Chickasaw Nations object to the introduction
{ of the record as a whole and state in support of such objections
. that the Nations have objections to offer to every part of the
' record and these objections are based upon different grounds
~ and it would be impossible to shape these objections so the
\~ record could be intelligently made‘up if offered as a whole,
. If the gentleman states that he expects to offer it in parts I
' see no reason why he should offer it as a whole,

Judge Foote:
That is no way to offer it.
Mr. Harley:
We prefer to offer it as a whole,
Mr., Cornish:
That record contains many papers; now he proposes to offer
it in parts because in offering it there might possibly be some
papers that he will overlook, of course in that event we would
not have an opportunity to object to such a paper at all., We
certainly object to that.

Mr, Harley:



-3-

I expect to offer it as a whole and then in parts,
Mr, Cornish:

You now offer all of it. We will say that record contains
fifty pieces; then you go back and offer it piece by piece
and introduce for instance thirty-five pieces, that would
leave fifteen pieces to which we could not object.

Judge Weaver:
I would suggest that you offer the record piece by piece.
Mr. Harley:

I next will offer the affidavit of Thomas P, Lewis made
on the second day of September 1896, I may offer these in a
little broken up form because I shall take it just as I find
it.

Mr, Cornish:

/ The Choctaw and Chickasaw Nations object to the introduction
/f the paper referred to and in support of such objections
/state that it is a part of a void proceeding had before the
| Commission to the Five Civilized Tribes to which both nations
2 were necessary parties and to which bhe Choctaw Nation only
\ was made a party and for the further reason that it has not
‘been shown that the witness who made the affidavit is dead.

\
Judge Weaver:

The Court will receive the paper subject to the objec tion
to be passed on later.

Mr. Harley:

We next introduce the affidavit of Sarah Lewis taken on the
21, da¥ of October 1878 which we ask he marked exhibit "D",

Mr. Cornish:

The Choctaw and Chickasaw Nations state the same objections
i previously urged and in addition urge that it is not such an
* | affidavit which in any event might have been made use of
before the Commission to the Five Civilized Tribes under the
specific terms of the aet of Congress of June 10, 1896,
.,

et

Judge Weaver:
Same ruling.
Mr. Harley:

Ve next offer the affidavit of Thomas R, Hieks taken on
September 1, 1896, which we ask to be marked exhibit "E",



Mr. Cornish:

///;;; Choctaw and Chickasaw Nations object to the introduction
of the paper referred to and in support of such objections state
that it was made use of in a void proceeding before the Commis-
sion to the Five Civilized Tribes under the aect of Congress

| of June 10, 1896 to which the Choctaw and Chickasaw Nations were

| both interested and necessary parties and to which the Choctaw

{ Nation only was made a party and for the further reason that

| has nnét first been shown that the witness is dead.

8 s
Byt

Mr.ﬁHarley:

We next offer the affidavdt of Hettie Hicks taken on
September 1, 1896 (exhibit "F®)

Mr. Cornish:

The nations objeet and state the same objections urged
_the paper just introduced,

Judge Weaver,

It is understood that the same ruling is made,
Mr., Harley:

_-We next offer the affidavit of T. H. DuBois, taken on
/August 31, 1896, with reference to births of applicants which
{ we ask to have marked exhibit "G".

Mr. Cornish:

The nations objeet and state the same grounds for objections.
Judge Weaver:

Same ruling.
Mr. Harley:

;/w We next offer the affidavit of T, H., DuBois taken on August
[ 31, 1896, with reference to births of applicants; which we ask
\._to be marked exhibit "H".

Mr. Cornish:

The nations object and state the same grounds for objections.
Judge Weaver:s

Same ruling.

Mr;xggzyish.
In addition to the objections already urged to the introdue-
tion of the affidavits of T. H. DuBois with reference to births

and deaths the nations object to their Introduction for the
reason that they purport to be certificates of certain entries
as they anpear upon acertain family bible, we urge now that the

bible is the best evidence.




~Mr. Harley:

" We next offer the affidavit of T, H, DuBois taken on
¢_August 31, 1896, with reference to births of arplicants i n

this case.
Mr, Cornish:
Do you insist that that is an a“fidavit?
Mr. Harley:

We will style it a certificate instead of an affidavit.

Judge Foote:
What is it?
Mr, Harley:

It is a certificate stating that he has examined a certain
family bible. This is exhibit "I";

Mr. Cornish:

The nations object to the introduction of the paper referred

/to and state all of the objections previously urged and urge
that it is not competent in any event because it purports to

be a certificate of certain entries on a family bible, Our
contention is that in no event can this be regarded as competent
testimony, the bible itself is the best evidence if properly
identified by those who have it in custody.

r

Judge Weaver:
Same ruling.
Mr. Harley:
We next offer the certificate of T, H. DuBois made August
31, 1896 with reference to deaths of applicants as taken from
the family bible and ask that it be marked exhibit "J",
Mr. Cornish:

{fﬁhe nations object and urge the same objections.

e —

Judge Weaver:
Same ruling.
Mr. Harley:
We next offer the application of Olivia Pryor made before

the Commission to the Five Civilized Tribes in 1896 and ask to
have the same marked exhibit "K",



Mr., Qprnish:

/" The Choctaw and Chickasaw Nations object to the introduction

/ of the paper referred to and state that it is a part of a void

| proceeding had before the Commission to the Five Civilized

. Tribes under the act of June 10, 1896; it is the contention of

. the nations that it is void for the reason that the Choctaw

{ and Chickasaw Nations were both necessary and interested parties
and the Choctaw Nation only was made a party.

Judée Weaver:
Same ruling.
Mr, Harley:

We next offer in evidence the original marriage certificate
of S. V. Pryor and Mrs. Olivia Jordan dated June 1, 1890, which
ask to have marked exhibit "L",

We next offer the affidavot of Olivia Pryor taken on the §8th
of August 1896, before W, W. Ives, Notary Publie, which we ask
to be marked exhibit "M",

Mr. Cornish:

/ The Choctaw and Chickasaw Nations object to the introduction

/of the paper referred to and in support of such objeetions

' state that it was taken and made use of before the Commission
to the Five Civilized Tribes in a void proceeding for the
reason that both the Choctaw and Chickasaw Nations were in-
terested and necessary parties and the Choctaw Nation only was
made a party and furthermore it has not been shown that the

. person who made the affidavit is dead,

Judge Veaver:
Same ruling.
Mr. Harley:
Ve next offer the affidavit of Edward M. Lewis taken hefore
W. W, Ives, Notary Public, on the 27th day of August 1896,
which we ask to have marked exhibit "N",
Mr. Cornish:

“N The Choctaw and Chickasaw Nations object and set forth
{ the same objections previously urged.

Judge Weaver:
Same ruling.
Mr., Harley:
We next offer the original marriage certificate of Henry

Jordan and Mrs. L. Douglas dated June 18, 1883, which we ask to
have marked exhibit "O",
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Mr. Harley:

We next offer the original application of Virgil Cowart before
the Commission to the Five Civilized Tribes in 1896 which we
ask to have marked exhibit "P",

Mr. Cornish:

¢

ff The nations object and set forth the same objections previosuly
| urged.

4
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Mr. Harley:

We next offer the original application of Samuel V.Pryor;
Samuel P, Cowart and George Cowart, before the Commission to the
Five Civilized Tribes in 1896 and ask to have the same marked
exhibit "Q".

Mr. Cornish:

g,
ﬁf The same objections on behalf of the Choctaw and Chickasaw
/ Nations.

M?}WHarley:
We next offer the affidavit and certificate of Olivia
Pryor taken before W. W, Ives on September 1, 1896, which
we ask to have marked exhibit "R",
Mr, Cornish:

" The same objections urged on behalf of the Choctaw and
. Chickasaw Nations,

Mr. Harley:

We next offer the original application of Zora Roper, nee
Cowart made before the Commission to the Five Civilized Tribes
in 1896, which we ask to have marked exhinit "S",

e

{ The same objections on behalf of the Nations,
Mr. Harley:

We next offer the affidavit of C, C., Johnson taken before
W, W, Ives, Notary Public, on the 26th day of August 1896, which
we ask to have marked exhibit "I,

Mr. Cornish:
M

(i The Nations set forth the same objections.
Mr, Harley:
We next offer the afficdavot of Joseph A, Johnson taken on the

26th day of August 1896 before W, W. Ives, Notary Publie,
which we ask to have marked exhibit "U",



'Mr. Cornish:

o

/" The Choctaw and Chickasaw nations object and set forth the
i_same objections,

Mr. Harley:

Ve next offer the original application of Edward M. Lewis
made before the Commission to the Five Civilized Tribes in 1896
which we ask to have marked exhibhit "V%,

Mr. Cornish:
fﬂf““*ﬁ
{'The nations object and set forth the same objections.

Mr. Harley:

We next offer the a"fidavit of Jesse B. Matthis taken on
Avugust 18, 1896, before W, W. Ives, Noatry Public, and filed
before the Commission to the Five Civilized Tribes; which we
ask be marked exhibit "w©,

Mr. Cornish:
{“TﬁE'Nations object and set forth the same objections,
Mr. Harley:

We next offer the affidavit of Jacob S. Bender, taken bhefore
W. W, Ives, Notary Public, on August 18, 1896, and filed before
the Commission to the Five Civilized Tribes in 1896, which we
ask to have marked exhibit "X",

Mr. Cornish:
{ﬁThe nations state the same objections,
Mr. H;fiey:

We next offer the joint affidavit of Zora A., Edward H.Rewis
and William H, Guyer, taken on the 27th of August 1896 before
W. W, Ives, Notary Public, and filed before the Commission to
the Five Civilized Tribes in 1896 which we ask to have marked
exhibit "Y@,

Mr. Cornish:

o

{ The Nations object and set forth the same objections.
N
Mr. Harley:

We next offer the affidavit of Frank A. Trenkle taken before
W, W, Ives, Notary Public, on the 27th day of August 1896, and
filed beforethe Commission to the Five Civilized Tribes in
this case in 1896 which we ask be marked exhibit "2v,

Mr. Cornish:

P

{ﬁThe Nations object and set forth the same objectlons,



Mr, Harley:

We next offer the affidavit of Edward M. Lewis with
reference to records of births and marriages in the family
of Edward M., Lewig and Sarah E. Lewis as shown by the record
found in the family bible taken on the 21 st of September 1896,
before W, W, Ives, Notary Public, and filed before the Com=
mission to the Five Civilized Tribes in this case in 1896 which
we ask to have marked exhibit "AA",

Mr. Cornish:
ﬁF The Choctaw and Chickasa Nations object to the introduction
/ of the paper referred to and set forth all of the objections
f previously urged and in addition state that it is incompetent
f for the reason that it purports to reflect by affidavit cer-
/' tain original entries found in a bible, the contention of the
{ nations being that the only competent testimony in this con=-
k nection would be the family bible itself after being properly
\_ identified by the person in whose custody it is.

Mr, Harley:

We next offer the original application of Angeline Tabor, et
al., filed before the Commission to the Five Civilized Tribhes
in the case in 1896, which we ask to have marked exhibit "BB ",

Mr. Cornish:

The nations object to the introduction of the paper referred
to and in support of such objections state that it was filed
/and made use of in a void proceeding before the Commission to the
/ Five Civilized Tribes under the aet of Congress approved
. June 10, 1896; such proceeding was void because the Choctaw and
. Chickasaw nations were both necessary and interested parties
. thereto and the Choctaw Nation only was made a party.

MT.‘Héfley:

We next offer the original application of Marshall Cowart
filed in this case before the Commission to the Flve Civilized
Tribes in 1896 which we ask to have marked exhibit “CC%,

Mr, Cornish:

{The nations objeect and set forth the same objec tions,

ey

Mr, Harley:

We next offer the affidavot of Sherman T. Tabor taken on
August 24, 1896, and filed before the Commission to the Five
Civilized Tribes in this case in 1896 and have the same marked
exhibit "DD",

Mr, Cornish:

/ The Choctaw and Chickasaw Nations object and set forth the
/ same objections previously urged and in a ddition state that it
{ has not first been shown that the witness is dead.



Mr, Harley:

In this case there are a number of persons whose affidavits
we are offering who are dead while some of them are not dead.
I take it that it does not make any difference whether I prove
the death of these witnesses now or afterwards,

We now offer the original application of Julius M, Leard
et al., filed in this case before the Commission to the
five Civilized Tribes in 1896, which weask to have marked
exhibit "EE",

Mr, Cornish:
@;; Nations object and set forth the same objections,
Mr. Harley:

We next offer the certificate of T. H. DuBois dated August
31, 1896, with reference to deaths which we ask to have marked
exhibit "FF¥",

Mr, Cornlsh

’ The Choctaw and Chickasaw Nations object to the introduction
'of the paper referred to and state that in no event can it be
" congidered as evidence in this case for the reason that itm

purports to be a certification of certain record entries that

appear in a certain family bible., The only proper evidence
~ would be the book itself after being identified by the person
" having it in custody.

|

Mr, Harley:
We next offer the certificate of Ty H. DuBois taken on August
31, 1896, with reference to marriages of applicants in this
case; which we ask to have marked exhibit "GG".
Mr, Cornish'
The Choctaw and Chickasaw Nations object to the introduction
;of the paper referred to and set forth the same objections as
‘urged to the paper just previously offered.
Mr . I{arle'«f ¢

We next offer the certificate of T. H. DuBois dated August
31, 1896 and filed in this case with reference to births of
spplicants which we ask to have marked exhibit "HH",

Mr, Cornish:

ufﬁ The Nattons object and set forth the same objections previously
wurged.



Mr. Harley:

Ve next offer the affidavat of James P. Lewis taken before
W. W, Ives, Nogkary Public, on August 28, 1896, and filed in this
case before the Commission to the Five Civilized Tribes in 1896,
and ask to have the same marked exhibit "II",

Mr. Cornish:
P

fﬁ The nations object to the introduction of the paper referred
/ to and in support of such objections state that it was taken
f and made use of before the Commission to the Five Civilized
{ Tribes in a proceeding that is void for the reason that both
{ the Choctaw and Choctaw Nations, the necessary and interested
g parties were not parties thereto and secondly it has not been
% shown that the witness who made the affidavit is dead.

L
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Mr. Harl ey:

We next offer the affidavit of H. C. Roper taken hefore
W. Wo Ives, Notary Public, on the 28th day of August 1896,
before the Commission to the Five Civilized Tribes in this
case in 1896 and ask to have the same marked exhibit "JJ%,

Mr. Cornish:
éThe Nations object and set forth the same objections,
JudgemFoote:
Where was Mr. Ives located?
Mr. Harley:
Pottowatomie County, Oklahoma.,
Mr. Harley:

We next offer the original application of Joseph H., Leard
et al., filed before the Commission to the Five Civilized Tribes
in 1896 and ask to have the same marked exhibit "KK",

Mr. Gornish:
zThe Nations object and set forth the same objections,
Mr. Harley:

We next offer the affidavit of H., C. Roper taken on thee
263h day of August 1896 before W. W, Ives, Notary Public, filed
before the Commission to the Five Civilized Tribes in 1896
and ask to have the same marked exhibit "LLv,

Mr, Cornish:

<jThe nations object and set forth the same objections.

.,



-1

Mr. Harley:

We next offer the affidavit of George W. MecKibben taken before
W. W, Ives, Notary Public, on the 26th day of August 1896 filed
before the Commission to the Five Civilized Tribes in this case
in 1896 which we ask to have marked exhibit "MM",
Mr. Cornish: |
k?he nations object and set forth the same objections.,
Mr. Harley:

We next offer the original application of Julius M. Leard,
guardian for Madison L., Leard; Jackson A, Leard; Maud Early and
Houston H. Farly, filed before the Commission to the Five Civiliz
ed Tribes in this case in 1896 and ask to have the same marked
exhibit "NN",

Mr. Cornish:
{N The nations object and set forth the same objections.
Mr, Harley:

We next offer the original application of Thomas P. Lewis
et al., filed before the Commigsion to the Five Civilized
Tribes in this case in 1896 and ask to have the same marked
exhibit "O0OO0O",

Mr. Cornish:
nghe nations object and set forth the same objections.,
Mr, Harley:

We next offer the affidavot of Thomas P, Lewis, taken before

W. W, Ives, Notary Publice, on the 3rd day of September 1896,

and filed before the Commission to the Five Civilized Tribes
in this ecase in 1896 which we askz®t he marked exhibit "PPY,

Mr. Cornish:
{WThe Nations object and set forth the same objections,
Mr, Harley:

We next offer the original application of Lydia Clark, et al
filed before the Commission to the Five Civilized Tribes in this
case in 1896 and ask to have the same marked exhibit "QQ".

Mr., Cornish:
e

{ The nations object and set forth the same objections,

Mr. Harley:
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We next offer the original marriage certificate of George A,
Clark and Lydia Lewis which were heretofore filed before the

Commission to the Five Civilized Tribes in this case and ask that

the same be marked exhibit "RR",

We next offer the original application of Preston Early,

. guardian for James B. Lewls, filed before the Commission to the
Five Civilized Tribhes in this case in 1896 which we ask to
have marked exhibit "SS",

Mr, Cornish:
(i%fhe nations object and set forth the same objections,
Mr. Harley:

We next offer the original application of Sarah Jane Me
Kibben, et al., to the Commission to the Five Civilized Tribes
in this case in 1896 which we ask he marked exhibit "TT",

Mr. Cornlsh'
gﬁ The nations object and set forth the same objections,

~

Mr. Harley:
"We next offer the original marriage certifiecate of
George W. McKibben and Sarah Jane Lewis which we ask to have
marked exhinhit “UU",
Judge Foote:
Where 1is the certificate from?
Mr., Hérley:
It is not dated at all--dated September 22, 1880,
Mr. Cornish: ‘

It says"according to the laws of this state" but it does not
say what state.

Mr., Harley:

We next offer the affidavit of Jesse B. Matthis taken on the
27th day of August 1896 before W, W, Ives, Notary Publiec and
filed before the Commission to the Five Civilized Tribes in
this case in 1896, which we ask to have marked exhibit "VV",

Mr, Cornish:

/ The nations object and set forth the same objections previously

<urged.
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Mr., Harley:

We next offer the original application of Zora ¥, Early, nee
Lewis, et al., filed before the Commission to the Five Civilized
Tribes in this case in 1896 which we ask to have marked exhibit
"wwe,

Mr., Cornish:

(&he nations object and set forth the same objections.,
Mr., Harley:

We next offer the affidavit of Zora P. Tewis taken before
W. W, Ives, Notary Public, on the 28th day of August 1896,
and filed before the Commission to the Five Civilized Tribes
in this case in 1896 which we ask to have marked exhibit "XX",

Mr, Cornish:
d "

f?The Nations objeet and set forth the same objections.

We next offer the affidavit of George W. MeKibben taken on
the 28%Th day of August 1896 before W. W, Ives, Notary Publie,
and filed before the Commission to the Five Civilized Tribes
in this case in 1896 and ask that the same be marked exhibhit "YY"
Mr, Cornish:
7
f/;he Nations objeect and set forth the same objections,
Mr . ﬁ;rley:

We next offer the affidavit of Zira S. Barly taken en the 28th
of August 1896, béfore Wi Wo Ives, Notary Publie,land filed before
the Commission to the Five Civilized Tribes in this case in 1896
and ask to have it marked exhibit "zZz",

Mr. Cornish:
{MThe Nations object and set forth the same objections.

Mr. Hariey:

We next offer the affidavit of Preston Early taken on #£hec
25th day of August 1896 before Joe Hillman, Notary Public, and
fil-d before the Commission to the Five Civilized Tribes in this
case in 1896 which we ask to have marked ex ibit number one (1).

Judge Foote:

Where does Mr, Hillman reside?
Mr, Harley:

He livwes at Krebhs now.

Mr. Cornish:
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(iihe nations object and set forth the same objections,
Mr. Harley:

We next offer the original application of Luecy Adams, et al.,
filed before the Commission to the Five Civilized Tribes in this
?a§e in 1896 and ask to have the same marked exhibhit number two,

2).

Mr. Cornish:
{ The nations object and set forth the same objections,
Mr. Harley:

We next offer the original marriage license and certificate
of Gus Adams and Lucy Early, the certificate being dated June
10, 1894, which was filed before the Commission to the Five
Civilized Tribes in 1896 which we ask to have marked exhibit
number three (3), This was in Oklahoma, issued by the county
authorityvies of the County of Pottawattomie of the Territory of
Oklahoma.,

Mr. Harley:

I next offer the brief of M. M, Lindly, filed before the
Commission to the Five Civilized Tribes in 1896, and ask to have
it marked exhihit number four (4).

Ve next offer the affidavit of Marcus Lewis taken before
Stephen Wheeler, United States Commissioner and filed in this
case before the Commission to the Five Civilized Tribes in 1896
and ask to have the same marked exhibit number five (5),

Mr. Cornish:
/ The Nations object to the introduction of the paper referred
/ to and set forth the same objections previously urged and in ad-
j dition state that it is not such an affidavit as in any event

i ecould have been filed and made use of before the Commission to

| the Five Civilized Tribes under the specifie terms of the aet o

{ June 10, 1896, it being therein provided that affidavits may

i be received by the Commission "heretofore taken where the

% witness giving said testimony is dead or now residing beyond the

\ limits of said Territory". An examination of this affidavit

\;n the face of it shows that it does not come within either
elass and therefore cannot be considered as evidence in this

ase.
Mr. Harley:

We next offer the judgment of the Commission to the Five
Civilized Tribes in this case denying the claims of the
applicants signed by H. M. Jacoway, dated at Ft Smith
Dece?bfr 4, 1896, which we ask to have marked exhibit number
six 6).

Mr. Cornish:

Choctaw and Chickasaw nations object to the introduction of the
paper referred to and state in support of sukh objections that it
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is part of a void proceeding had before the Commission to the
Five Civilized Tribes to which both nations were necessary and
interested parties and to which only the Choctaw Nation was
made a party.

Mr. Harley:

We next offer the notice of appeal in the case of Zora P.
Lewis, et al., v8. Choctaw Nation from the decision of the
Commission to the Five Civilized Tribes in said cause signed
by Zora P. Lewis, by M. N. Lindly, attorney, and further signed
serviee accepted Beptember second, Stewart, Gordon & Hailey,
attorneys for the Choctaw Nation , which we ask to have marked
exhibit number seven 7).

Mr.fCornish:

/  The nations object to the introguction of the paper referred

/ to and in support of such objections state that it was a part

| of a void proceeding before the United States Court for the
Central District of the Indian Territory, it being the con-

tention of the Choctaw and Chickasaw Nations that such pro-

eeeding was void first for the reason that both the Choctaw

and Chickasaw Nations were interested and necessary parties and

the Choctaw Nation only was made a party and secondly the

United States Court tried the case de movo when it should have

. reviewed the record of the Commission,

Mr. Harley:

We next offer the affidavit of appeal from the decigion
of the Commission to.the Five Civilized Tribes in this
ecase styled Zora P. ,ewis vs. Choctaw Natlion signed M. M,
Lindly, subscrihed and sworn to on the 15th day of January
1897 which we ask to have marked exhibit number eight (8),

Mr. Cornish:

{”Thé nations objeet and set forth the same objections,

...........

We next offer the original petition for the appeal in the
case of Zora P, Lewis, et al., vs. Choctaw Nation from the
deeision of the Commission to the Five Civilized Tribes signed hy
M. M, Lindly, attorney for applicants, which we ask to have
marked exhibit pumber nine (9).

Mr. rnish:
The nations object and set forth the same objections.
Mr. Hariey:
We next offer the notice to take depositions in the case
of Zora P, Lewis, et al., vs. Choctaw Nation pending in the
United States court for the @entral District of the Indian
to Stewart, Gordon & Hailey, attorneys for the Choctaw Nation,
signed by M. M, Lindley, attorney for applicants and ask th&t
it be marked exhibit number ten (10).
Mt, Cornish:

(/;he nations ohiect and set+ forth the same obhiections.
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- Mro., Lewis:

We offer in evidence the deposition of George W. Vann and ask
that it be marked exhibit number eleven (/11). It was taken
before Jesse W, Warson, Notary Public for the Nor thern District
of the Indian Territory on the 1lth day of August 1897.

Mr, Cornish:
The nations object and set forth the same objections.
Mr, Lewis:

We offer in evidence the deposition of Jane F, Page, also
the notice given prior thereto of the taking of such depositions
and ask that it be marked exhibit number twelve (12). That was
taken hefore J., M., Hawkins, Justice of the Peace of Sebastian
County, Arkansas on September 7th, 1897. The deposition of
Jane ¥, Page was filed in the United States Court for the
Central District of the Indian Territory on August 11th, 1897
and attached to this deposition is the certificate of the notice.

Mr. Cornish:
(ffThb nations object and set forth the same objections.

L

Mr., Lewis,

I have now a deposition~-~there are several of them taken
under one notice all attached and filed at the same time, I
might possibly offer them together. The deposition of Preston
Early; Edward M. Lewis and Thomas P. Lewis taken on notice
and filed in the United States court for the Central District
of the Indian Territory on August 13, 1897. Exhibit 13,

Mr. Cornish:

o~
The nations object and s~t forth the same objections.

Mr. fg%is:

We offer in evidence the deposition of Ben H. Bally taken after
hotice and filed in the United States court for the Central
District of the Indian Territory on July 26, 1897 and to be
mar ed exhibit fourteen (14),

Mr. Cornish:

Thefpations object and set forth the same objections,

s

Mr. Lewis:

We now offer in evidence the judgment of the District court
for the Central District of the Indian Territory rendered on
the 19th day of January 1898 attached to the retunr of the writ
or error issued from this court on the 13th day of March 1903
--exhibit fifteen (15),

Mr. Cornish:
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e

ff The Choctaw and Chickasaw Nations object to the introduction
/of the judgment of the United States court for the Central
/ District of the Indian Territory in this case except in so far
/ as it identifies the present applicants as the same persons
% passed upén and in support of such obJections state the same
m‘objections previously urged.

Mr. Harley.

We will offer proof of the death of the parties who made
affidavits,

Zora S. Early, called as a witness on behalf of the plaintiffs
after being duly sworn testified as follows:

Direct examination by Mr. Harley,

State your name? A Zora S. Early.

You are the wife of Preston Early? A Yes,sir,

Did you know Edward M. Lewis? A Yes,sir.

Is he now living or dead? A He is dead.

About how long has he been dead? A Near three years.,

Was he related to you in any way? A He was my brother.

Did you see him after he was dead? A Yes,sir.

You were present at the time of his funeral? A Yes,sir,

Do you know Thomas R. Hicks? A Yes,sir.

Is he living or dead? A He is dead.

Was he related to you in any way? A No,sir,

By marriage? <A No,sir.

He is dead; about how long has he been dead Mrs. Farly, ahout
how many years? A About four years as near as I remember,
Did you know Sherman Tabor? A Yes,sir,

Is he living or dead? A He is dead.

About how many years has he heen dead? A He has been dead a
little over four vears.

Was he related to you in any way? A He married my niece,
Who was Sarah Lewis, Mrs, Farly if you know? A I had a sister
namedySarah Lewis was my sister-in-law.

Is she living or dead? A She is living.

Where is she? A Out near Stanton.

Do you know Marcus Lewis? A No,sir; I do not personally know
him,

Did you know of him? A Yes; I heard of him,

Do you know whether he is living or dead? A No,sir; I don't
know but I have heard that he is dead.

You don't know of your own knowledge? A No,sir,

Bo you know Jesse B, Matthis? A 1Yes,sir.

Is pghe living? A Yes,sir.

Is he in the Indian Territory? A No,sir; he is in Oklahoma,
He lives in Oklahoma? A Yes,sir,

Do you know Jacob S. Bender? A Yes,sir,

Is he dead or 1living? A Yes;he is living.

Does he live in the Indian Territory? A No,sir; he lives in
Oklahoma,

OODODDDDOD DOH DOD DO DODL LDODODODODDDODDOHDLO

Cross examination by Mr., Cornish.

Q Have you any persoamal knowledge of the death of Thomas R, Hicks?
A No,sir; I just heard he was dead.
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Q@ Do you know whether Sarah Lewis is living or cead; Sarah
Lewis who is the wife of Marcus Lewis? A No,sir; I don't know.
Q Don't know anything about that? A No,sir.
Witness excused...
Preston Farly called as a witness on behalf of the plaintiffs
after being duly sworn testified as follows:

Direct examination by Mr. Harley.

Q@ Your name is Preston Early? A Yes,sir.

Q You are the husband of Mrs., Early who has just left the stand?
A Yes,sir,

Q Mr. Early do you know Edward M, Lewis? A Yes,sir.

Q Is he living or dead? A He is dead.

Q Where did he die? A He died in Center, Indian Territory.

Q Did you see him after he was dead-attend his funeral? A Yes,sir,

Q@ Did you know Thomas R, Hicks? A Yes,sir,

Q Was he relate d to you by marriage or otherwise? A No, I
reckon-- not that I know for certain.

Q@ Is he living or dead? A He is dead.

Q About how Jong has he been dead? A About I reckon four years.,

Q Where did he die? A He died out close to the town of Checotah.

Q Checotah, in the Creek Nation? A Yes,sir.

Q@ Do you know Jesse B. Matthis? A Yes,sir.

Q Where does he live? A In Oklahoma.

Q Is he living or dead now? A He is living unless he died in
the last week,

Q Do you know his post office address? A His postoffice is
Shawnee.

Q@ Do you know Jack S. Bender? A Yes,sir.

Q Is he living or dead? A Living.

Q VWhere does he live? A Right there by Matthis, four or five
miles from Shawnee.,

Q Do you know of Marcus Lewis? A No,sir; I never saw him,

Q Do you know of him? A Yes; I heard a heap of him,--heard right
smart of him,

Q Did he ever live in the Indian Territory? A Why I don't know
where he lived,-~he was out of the line there I reckon probably
in the Nation but I don't know, He lived not far from where--,

Q Have you made inquiry to try to find out whether he is living
or dead? A They have tried to find out what became of him
and tried to find him but they never have heard what became of him
They could not find him or have not done it,

Q@ You have made efforts? A Yes; we have made efforts to hunt him,

Q DPid you know Sarah Lewis; Marcus Lewis' wife ? A I have heard
that his wifels name was Sarah,

Have you and the other plaintiffs in this case made efforts to
find out whetther she is living or dead? A I don't know but I
think they have tried to find out something about that.

Q You have not yourself personally? A No,sir.

Q Did you know Sherman Tabor? A Yes,sir.

Q Is he related to you in any way by marriage? A I think he marrie
my wife's niece.

Q Is he living or dead? A He is dead.

Q Did you know Willis Folsom? A I have seen the man several times
but I never got acquainted with him much,

Q Is he living or dead? A I don't know sir but I think he is dead.

Q Have you or any of the other plaintifds in this case made any

efforts to locate him? A I think they probably have=I think he
is dead though.
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Cross examination by Mr. Cornish,

Q You have no personal knowledge of Marcus Lewis whether he is
dead or his wife? A No,sir,

Q@ And you have no personal knowledge about Willis Folsom? A No,
sir I have no knowledge.

Q What do you know about Hicks, were you present when he died? A
No,sir.

Q Did you attend his funeral? A No,sir,

Mr. Harley:

Q Why did you state that he is dead? A His wife drawed a good

deal of money-about 4000 dollars on his insurance; that is what
I heard kin folks say--telling me about it.

Q@ Life Insurance--you have been informed that he was dead? A
Yes; it was in the papers.

Witness excused,.
Mr. Lewis:

I will ask the court to allow me to introduce the affidavit
of Willis F., Folsom taken after notice before J. M. Bawkins
on the 10th day of September 1897.

Mr, Cornish:

’fﬁe nations object to the introduction of the paper referred
Q’to and state the same objections previously urged.

Zore S. Farly, witness for plaintiffs, recalled testified:
Re-direct by Mr., Harley.

Vhat is the name of your father? A James Madison Lewis,

What was the name of your mother? A Zora P, Lewis.

Is your father living or dead? A Dead.

Is your mother living or dead? A She is dead.

Is your mother in such condition that she could attend this
trial? A No,sir; she was not able.

Vhat is her physical condition now? A She is getting very old.
Can she get around by herself? A She can around the huouse,
About how old is she? A §She is seventy-nine years old.

How 18 her mental condition at this time; is she in a propercon=-
dition to testify? A I don't think she is able to.

Is her mind weakened in any way now? A Only by old age I think,
Is she very feeble? A ©She is not helpless, she is able to go
around in the house.

Do you know Rhoda T. Lewis? A Yes,sir,

Who is she? A She is my sister.

Whom did she marry if anybody? A She married Sam,Cowart,

Is she now living or dead? A She 1s dead.

I believe you testified that Edward M. Lewis was your brother?
A Yes,sir,

And that he was dead? A Yes,sir.

Whom did he marry? A Sarah Adams.

Do you know John B, Lewis? A Yes,sir.

Who was he? A My brother.,

Is he living or dead? A ge is dead,
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Whom did he marry? A He married Betsy Jane Cowart.
Did you know Susanna E. Lewis? A Yes,sir.

Vho was she? A My sister.

Is she living or dead? A Dead.

Do ¥ou know whom she married? A David J, Leard.

Do you know Thomas P, lewis? A Yes,sir.

Is he related to you? A Yes,sir, my brother.

Is he living and present? A Yes,sir.

Did you know David S. Lewis? A Yes,sir,

Living or dead? A Dead.

Was he related to you? A He was my brother.

Did you know Mary D. Lewis? A Yes,sir.

Is she living or dead? A Dead.

Was she related to you? A My sister.

Whom did she marry? A S. T. Hicks.

Did you know Sara h J. Lewis? A Yes,sir.

Was she related to you? A Yes,sir, she was my sister.
Is she living or dead? A Dead.

Whom did she marry? A George W. McKibben.

Did you know Ophelia S. Lewis? A Yes,sir,

Related to you? A My sister.

Living and present? A Yes,sir,

Whom did she marry? A Joseph M. Edwards.

Did you know William W, Lewis? A Yes,sir.

Who was he? A My brotler,

Is he living or dead? A Dead,

Whom did he marry? A He did not marry.

I will ask you and call over the list of the applicants in this
case and ask you if you know them and whether they are living
or dead; Edward M, Lewis? A DTYead.

Sarah E Lewis, wife of Edward M. Lewis, is she living or dead?
A ©She is living.

Do you know her? A Yes,sir,

Thomas P, Lewis? A He is living.

Do you know Augusta Ann Lewis? A Yes,sir.

Who is she?” A Thomas P, Lewis' wife.

Is she 1living? A Yes,sir.

Do you know Sarah Jane McKibben? A Yes,sir.

Living or dead? A Dead.

She is your sister? A Yes,sir.

Do you know Preston Early? A Yes,sir.

He is your husband? A Yes,sir,

Ophelia S. Edwards; do you know her? A Yes,eir,

She is your sister? A Yes,sir.

She is present? A Yes,sir.

Do you know Joseph M, Edwards? A Yes,sir.

He is present? A Yes,sir.

To you know Olivia Pryor? A Yes,sir.

Is she here? A Yes,sir.

Vho was her father and mother? A Samuel and Rhoda T. Cowart,
Rhoda Cowart your sister? A Yes,sir,

Do you know Samuel Pryot her husband? A Yes,sir.

He is present is he? A Yes,sir.

Do you know Gale B., Lewis? A Yes,sir.

What is her present name ? A Wording.

Who was her father and mot' er? A Edward M, and Sarah M, Lewis,
Edward M. was your brother ? A Yes,sir,

Do you know Marshall Cowart? A Yes ,sir,

Is he living or dead? A Yes, sir; living. ?????

Who were his father and mother? A Samuel Cowart and =-----
His mother was your sister? A Yes ,sir.
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Do you know Virgil Cowart? A Yes,sir.

A brother of Marshall Cowart? A Yes,sir.

Is he living? A Yes,sir.

Do vou know Zora Roper? A Yes,sir.

Is she living or dead? A Living.

Vho was her father or mother? A Sam Cowart and Rhoda Cowart.
She is your niece? A Yes,sir.

Do you know H. C. Roper? A Yes ,sir.

Is he living or dead? A Living.

Is he present? A Yes,sir.

Do you know Samuel P, Cowart? A Yes,sir.

Who was his father and mother? A Samuel Cowart and Rhoda T,
Cowart.

He is your nephew? A Yes,sir.

Living or dead? A Living.

Do you know George W. McKibhen? A Yes,sir,

He living or dead? A Livibg.

Is he the husband of Sarah J. McKibben? A Yes,sir.
Is she your sister? A Yes,sir,

She is dead? A Yes,sir.

Do you know Anna Cowart? A Yes,sir,

Vho is she? A Virgde------

Do you know--«« ----- ? David Gale & Susanna Leard.
Do you know Sherman Tabor? A Yes ,sir,

Who is he? A He was Angeline Tabors'husband.

He living or dead? A Dead.

Has he married again? A Yes,sir.

What is her present name? - A7 <<cesgqp=Adams.

What is her husband's name? A John Adams.

He is present? A No,sir.

Is she present? A No,sir.

Do you know Julius M. Leard? A Yes,sir.

Who was his father and mother? A David Leard and Susanna Leard
His mother was your sister? A Yes,sir.

He is your nephew; is he living or dead? A He is living and
present.

Do you know Mary C. Leard? A Yes,sir,

Who is she? A She is Julius' wife,

Do you know Madison L. Leard? A Yes,eir,

Who was his father and mother? A David Leard and Susanna
Leard.

He is also your nephew? A Yes,sir.

Is he 1living? A Yes, sir,

Do you know Jack Leard? A Yes,sir.

Is he a brother of Madison? A Yes,sir.

Is he living or dead? A He is living.

Do you know Maud Early? A Yes,sir,

Who is she? A ©She is my sister's daughter,

Is she living? A She is living.

Do you know Hugh Earyy? A Yes,sir,

Who is he? A Maud Early's brother.

Is he living? A Yes,sir.

Do you know Lydia Clark? A Yes,sir.

WVho was her father and mother? A Thomas P. Lewis.
Do you remember her mother's name? A Amanda Lewis.
Is she married-Lydia married? A Yes,sir,

What is her husband's name? A George Clark.

Is she present? A Yes,sir,

Do you know George Clark, her husband? A Yes,sir,
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Is he present? A No,sir.

Living or dead? A Living.

Do you know Lawrence Lewis? A Yes,sir,

Living or dead? A Living.

Who was his father and mother? A =-cevvee-- & =mcreeen—- .
Do you know Laura Lewis? A Yes,sir,

She living or dead? A Living.

WVho was her father and mother? A Thomas P. & Amanda.

Is she married? A Yes,sir.

Who is her husband? A Davis.

What is her husband's first name? A Peter Davis.

Do you know Lucy Adams? A Yes,sir.

She living or dead? A Bhedis living.

Who was her father and mother? A Why she is m; daughter,
Do you know Gus Adams? A Yes,sir,

Vho is he? A He is Lucy Adams' hushand,

He living or dead? A Living.

Do you know Neilltie Early? A Yes,sir.

Living or dead? A Living.

Who is she? A My daughter

She married? A Yes,sir.

What is her husband's name? A John Goodwin, her name now is
Nellie Goodwin.

How long has she been married? A About three years.

Do you know George Lewis McKibhen? A Yes ,sir.

Who was his father and mother? A George W, McKibben and
Sarah J. McKibhen.

Is George McKibben living or dead? A He is living.

Do you know Cassite O, McKibhen? A Yes,sir.

Vho is she? A She is George and Sarah J. McKibben's daught a.
Is she married? A No,sir.

She is living? A Yes,sir.

Do you know Claud McKiwben? A Yes,sir,

Living or dead? A Living.

Who is his father and mother? A George and Sarah J. McKibben,
Do you know Thomas P. McKibbhen? A Yes,sir.

Living or dead? A Dead.

Who is his father and mother? A George W, McKibben and Sarah J,.
McKibben.

Do you know Charles Edwards? A Yes,sir,

Who was his fathe and mother? A Joseph M. and Ophelia Edwards,
Living or dead? A Living.

Married? A No,sir.

Do you know Lula Edwards® A Yes,sir,

Living or dead? A Dead,

Do you know Lula Edwards? A Yes,sir.

Living or dead? A She is living.

Who is her father and mother? A Joseph M, Edwards and
Ophelia.

She married? A Yes,sir.

What is her present name? A I don't know,

Do you know Martha J. Edwards? A Yes,sir,

She a sister of Charley and Tula? A Yes,sir.

Is she 1living? A Yes,sir,

What is her husband's name? A Oscar Smith,

Do you know David L. Edwards? A Yes,sir.

Is she married? A No,sir.

She a sister of the other Edwards children? A Yes,sir.
Do you know Edwards? A Yes,sir.

She living or dead? A She is living.

Who is her father and mother? A Augustus & Lucy Adams.
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She is your granddaughter? A Yes,sir.

Do you know Ben F ? A Yes,sir.

Living or dead? XA Living.

Do you know Rhoda L. Roper? A Yes,sir,

Who is she? A eweceeee-

Is she living or dead? A Living,.

Do you know Amanda Roper? A Yes,sir,

Who is she? A ©She is a sister of Belle.

Do you know Frank A, Leard? A Yes,sir.

Living or dead? A Living.

Vho is he? A He is Julius Leard's son.

What was his mother's name? A Mary.

Do you know Zora A. Lewds? A Yes,sir,

Is she living or dead? A She is living.

7ho was her father and motlher? A Edward M. Lewis and Sarah
Lewis.,

Do you know Edward H. Lewis? A Yes,sir.

Living or dead? A Living.

Who was his father and mother? A Edward Lewis & =w---=- .
Do you know=-=-«e==- ? A Yes,sir,

She living or dead? A She is living,

Who was her father and mother? A Julius and Mary Leard.
Do you know Mattie Leard? A Yes,sir,

Living or dead? A Yes,sir,

Sister of Susie Leard? A Yes,sir,

Do you know Willis Tabor? A Yes,sir,

Living or dead? A Living.

Who is his father and mother? A Sherman Tabor &=---- .
Do you know Ben Tabor? A Yes,sir.

Living or dead? A Living.

Brother of Will Tahor? A Yes,sir,

Do you know Herschel Tabor? A Yes,sir.

Is he living or dead? A He is living.

Who was his father and mother? A Angeline Tabor and Sherman
Tabor.

Do you know Kyle Douglas? A Yes,sir,

Is he living or dead? A Living.

WVho was his father and mother? A Olivia and Kyle Douglas.
Is his father liw¥ing or dead? A Dead.

Do you know Henry Jordan? A Yes,sir,

Is he living or dead? A Living.

Who was his father and mother? A Olivia Jordan -afterwards her
name was Pryor,

She had b-en married tlree times? A Yes,sgir.

Do you know Rhoda Jordan? A Yes,sir,

Is she a sister of Hemry Jordan? A Yes,sir,

Living or dead? A Living.

Do you know Zora Jordan? A Yes,sir.

Is she living or dead? A Dead.

Do you know George Pryor? A Yes,sir,

WVho 1s his father andmother? A Sam Pryor and Olivia Pryor.
Do you know James Pryor? A Yes,sir,

Brother of George Pryor? A Yes,sir,

You know Mary E. Pryor? A Yes,sir.

Is she living or dead? A Living.

She a sister of George Pryor? A Yes,sir,

The next now is Ura C. Hicks, we do not care to appear for
him any further, we ask leave to dicsmiss the case as to him at
once,
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Judge Foote
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We are not going to dismiss anything here-Judge Weaver and
mys elf.,

« Harley:

Do you know James B. Lewis? A Yes,sir,

Is he living or dead? A He is living.

Who was his father and mother? A David Lewis and Lena Lewis,
What relation was David Lewis to you? A My brother.

Do you know Autha L. Lewis? A Yes,sir.

Was she a sister of James M. Lewis? A No,sir.

Is she tharried? AA No,sir; she is a child,

Do you know Oscar Lewis? A Yes,sir.

Is he living or dead? A Living,

Who was his father and mother? A Thomas P. Lewis &------ .

Do you know Joseprh W. Roper? A Yes,sir,

Is he living or dead? A Living.

Who was his father and mother? A H, C. Roper and Zora Roper.
Do you know Joseph H, Leard? A Yes,sir,

Is he living or dead? A He is living.

Who was his father and mother? A David and Susanna Leard, who
was my sister,

Do you know Belle Leard? A Yes,eir,

Who was she? A Joseph H., Leard's wife,

How old are you now Mrs . Farly? A TForty-five years old.
Where were vou married? A I was married in New Hope in the
Choctaw Nation.

You remember when? A June 24, 1875,

Whom did you marry ? A Preston Early.

How many children have you by Preston Early now living? A I
have two.,

By whom were you married Mrs. Farly? A DParson Sheprard,

Did they have any licenses at the time? A No,sir; they did
not have to have any licenses at that time,

You have lived with Mr. Farly ever since as his wife? A Yes,sir.
Was anybody present at the time of your marriage to Mr, Early?
A Yes,sir.

Who? A I don't know of anybody except Ophelia Edwards and ---
----- they were present.

Your sister? A Yes, my sister,

Where were you born VMrs, Farly? A 1In Mississippi.

In Mississippi? A Yes,sir.

How 0ld were you when you left Mississippi? A I was about
nine years old.

Whereabouts were you born? A In Lawrence county.

What postoffice? A Brookhaven.

And lived in Mississippi until you were nine months 0ld? A
Yes,sir,

Do you remember anything that happened while you lived in
Mississipri? A ©No, not a great deal.

You remenber leaving there? A Yes; I remember leaving there,
When you left there where did vou start for? A For the Indian
Territory.

Why did you start from Mississippi to the Indian Territory;
did you hear your parents say so0? A Well I don't remember
much about what they said but I know they were coming to the
Indian Territory.

Did you go from Mississippi directly to the Indian Territory?
A No,sir; we stopped in Arkansas.
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Q What place in Arkansas? A We first stopped in Monroe County-
my father did, stopped there and made a crop and then came to
Sebastian County.

Did he come near the line of the Territory? A Yes; we were
not far from the line.

Did anyone else come along with your party except your own
family? A No,sir; not that I remember of,

Do you remember your father and mother? A Yes,sir.

Their looks and appearnce? A Yes,sir,

Did your father and mother look like Indians, did they claim to
be Indians and if so what tribe?

ODO H O

Mr. Cornish:
+"The Choctaw and Chickasaw nations object to the introduction
'of any testimony which tends to establish by hearsay anytling
| except family relationship and pedigree and then only after the
relationship of thw tiness to the person whose statements
! are sought to be reflected as been first established by testi-
| mony other than his own. Our contention is that it is not com=
. petent to establish a specific fact, racial status or blood
by hearsay testimony.

Judge Weaver:
Thé objections will be considered by the Court,
witness:
A They claimed to he Choctaws,
Q State what appearance they had? A I don't remember how my
father looked. He was gray when I can remember; I could not

hardly tell you how he looked only I remember ghat he looked
gray ever since I can rerember,

Q@ How about your mother? A Mu mother did not show Indian,

Q How o0ld was you when your father and mother died? A My mother
is living.

Q How odd were you when your father died? A I was about seventeen
years old,

Q How o0ld was your father when he died? A Sixty-two years old,

Q Whom did you hear claim Indian blood; your father or mother?

/ A My father.

Q@ How did he claim to get his Indian blood; from whom did you

" heard him say? A From his grandmother--no from his mother

/ who was my grandmother,
What was her name? A Her name was King before she married.

i Do you remember her fir st name? A No,sir; I haver heard my

i  father tell but I don't remember.

Q You did not know her personally? A No,sir,

Cross examination by Mr., Cornish,

Q You were living in Okalhoma when this application was made in
1896? A Yes,sir.

Q@ Where in Oklahoma? A Near Shawnee,

Q How long had you lived there before vou made this application?

A VWhy about three years I guess,
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What other members of this family-what other persons having
families whose names appear in this application were living

in Oklahoma at the same time; was Thomas P. Lewis living there?
A Yes,sir.

What other persons were living there? A Thomas P. Tewis, Edward
M. Lewis$. ‘

What others? A Sarah Jane McKibben.

What others? A Why I don't remember whether there were any
others or not.

Well the Cowarts, were they living there at the time? A They
lived there but I don't know whether they lived there then or
not.

Did Julius M. Leard live in Oklahoma with his family? A Yes,sir.
What other heads of families? A Roper and his family.

Were not practicably all of these people living in the terri-
tory of Oklahoma at that time or about that timep the great
majority of them were living there were they not? A I think
they were--there were some living in the Indian Territory.
They went to the territory of Oklahoma to homestead land?

A Some of them did.

Did your husband homestead land in Oklahoma? A Yes,sir.
WVhere? A North-East of Shawnee,

How much did he homestead? A 120 acres.

What yvear did he enter that land--file his homestead papers?

A In 1892,

Swore he was a citizen of the United States did he not? A I
was not there.

How long did you live on that land Mrs, Early? A I could not
tell you exactly but between five and six years.

Does your husband still own that land? A No,sir,

Did he sell it when he left there? A Yes,sir,

Did Thomas P, Lewis homestead land? A No,sir,

Where did he liye, in Oklahoma? A No,:=ir,

Are you sure of that? A Yes,sir,

When did he remove from Okklahoma to the territory-what year?
A I think it was '97.

Edward M. Lewis where did he live in Oklahoma? A I can't remem=-
ber the county thwat he lived in.

Did he live in a different part of the territory from you? A
A Yes,sir,

He homesteaded lands? A Yes,sir,

Then Edward M., Lewis, the present applicant in this case,
homesteaded land in Oklahoma? A Yes,sir,

You know how much land? A No,sir,

What year did he enter this land? A I don't remember.

You don't know what kind of a citizen he claimed to he when

he filed his homestead papers? A No,sir,

You don't know anything about that? A No,sir,

When did he remove from Oklahoma to the Indian Territory? A
He removed in the Winter of 1897 or '98.

You don't know whether ir was '97 or '98? A No,sir.

What did he do with his land when he left Oklahoma®? A The
River waghed it away.

Did he make any disposition of if; did the river wash it all
away? A I think he moved his house to one corher that was not
washed away and then sold it,

Did McKibben homestead land? A Yes,sir,

Vhat county did he homestead land in? A Pottowattomie.
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That was down close to where you lived? A Yes,sir,

What did he dowwith that land? A They sold it.

When did they remove to the Choctaw Nation? A At the same time
that Edward Lewis did.

What other heads of families who are related to you homesteaded
land in Oklahoma besides these, that you remember? A Virgil
Cowart, homesteaded there,

Who else? A Julius Leard I think. -

How about the Pryor people? A The never homesteaded land.

How about the Jourdans? A They never homesteaded.

The Tabors? A No,sir; they did not,

Where did Cowart take up his land? A In Pottowattomie County.
How much land did he homestead? A 80 acres.,

When did he leave Oklahoma and move to the Choctaw Nation? A
Why I don't remember what year but I know he sold out and left
there twd or three years before we left,

Where did Julius Leard take up land? A He took up land near
Maud .

What county was that in? A DPottowattomie County.

How much land did he take up? A I don't know.

Now about the physical condition of your mother; your mother

is not bed ridden? A No,sir.

She moved about the place? A Yes,sir,

Does she live with you? A Yes,sir,

How far from the house has she gone within the past month? A
Why she went out to see a sick lady the other day.

How far is that from where you live? A About hundredyrads.
From where you live? A Yes,sir,

When did she go to church the last time? A I forget-last July
or August.

That is about two months ago? A Yes,sir.

Her conditiom now is no worse than it was then; it is about the s
same? A No,sir; I don't think so, some times she has a sick
spell.

But her general condition now is just the same as it was

when she went to church? A Yes,sir.

How far from your home is the church? A About a couple of miles,

What other neighbors has she visited within the past few
months? A She has not visited any.

You were born in Lawrence County, Mississippi and left there
when you were nine years 01d? A Yes,sir,

Then you were born in 18587 A Yes,sir,

You left there a year or two after the War; about _66 or '67?
A We left there in '69.

Your father owned land there? A Yes,sir,

Do you remember the place that you lived on? A I have a
slight remembrance of it,

Close to what postoffice was it ? A Brookhaven.

What sized farm did your father own? A I could not tell youm.
Do you know from whom he bought that fmrm? A No,sir,

Do you know how he dispoed of it when he left there? A He sold
it,

Do you know to whom he sold it? A No,sir.

He and his family moved West? A Yes,sir.

Where did you make your first stop after you left Mississippi?
Monroe County, Arkansas.

Was your father a farmer? A Yes,sir,

Did he make a crop there? A Yes,sir.

Rent land? A Yes,sir.

Did he own any land in Monroe County? A No,sir.
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Q Where did you remove to from Monroe County? A We came on to
Fort Smith.

Q@ The town of Ft Smith? A Yes,sir,

Q How long did you stay in the town of Fort Smith? A Only a short
time.

Q@ Then you moved into the country? A Yes,sir.

Q Then where did you stop; where did you remove to when you moved
out of the town of Pt Smit'? A Ten or twelve miles South
of ¥t Smith.

Q@ What was your neighborhood; down near to Jenny Lind? A No,sir;
we were west of Jenny Lind.

Q Near Hackett City? A Four miles North of Hackett City.

Q You moved, on a farm there? A Yes,sir.

Q How long did your father and his family live on that particular
farm after you moved there; did your father own the farm?

A Yes,sir.

Q VWhat was the size of that farm? A VWhy I don't remember,

Q Was it a #ood large farm or a small farm? A Small farm,

Q How far was that from the Indian Territory 1line? A DNot over a
mile.

Q It was never contended by your father or anybody that that
farm was in the Indian Territory? A No,sir,

Q He knew that farm was in Arkansas? A Yes,sir,

Q@ He knew he bought a farm in Arkansas? A Yes,sir,

Q@ You know what he gave for #t? A No,sir.

Q How long did he live on it? A Two or three years,

Q@ Fix the yvear as near as you can when you got on to that farm out
of Pt Smith? A I think it was seventy-one.

Q@ Now he lived on that farm two or three years? A Yes,sir.

Q What did he do with the farm sell it? A Ro,sir; he died.

Q Died on the farm? A No,sir; but he owned it when he died.

Q What vear did he die? A He died in '75,

Q You made the statement some time ago that at the time you were
married to Preston Early in 1874 or five that you did not pro=-
cure a license ‘because licenses were not required in the Choc=-
taw nation, what did you mean by that statement? A Well they
did not get licenses.

Q Who did get licenses? A Anybody that married,

Q You did not make any effort in complying with the Choctaw laws in
marrying? A No,sir.

Then yvou don't mean to create the impression to the cow t that
you were married in accordance with the laws afid‘requirements o
the Choctaw nation did you?

Mr. Harley:

We object to that question because that is a matter of
opinion=-the witness may state the facts,

Mr. Cornish:

This lady made the statement and I think made it under a
misapprehension now I want her to state=---%

Mr. Harley:

We still object. If she states the facts her intention must
be drawn by the court,
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Your objection will be noted.

Mr., Cornish:

Q
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You don't mean to create the impression that yvom were
marrying in the same way that the Choctaw Indians married; or
did vou mean to say that you married like everybody else
that lived in the Choctaw nation at that time? A Yes,sir.

Do you know anything about the application of these people

to the Choctaw Bouncil for citizenship; did you have information
and knowledge of the transaction that occurred hefore the
council? A I was not there but I heard what was said about it.
They went to council? A Yes,sir.

And the council rejected them? A I don't know whether the
council rejected them.

You know that the council did not pass an act admitting them?

A Tes,sir.

These people made an effort to get the council to do that?

A Yes, I reckon,

Judge Foote:

H H OH DO DHOHO

You say you came from Lawrence county, Mississippi? A Yes,sir.
From near Brookhaven? A Yes,sir,

How far did you live from Brookhaven? A I don't remember but
it was not over eight or ten miles I guess,

You know in what direction, either below or on the railroad?

A VWe didtnot liveron::the'railrodad.

Did you live West or East of the railroad? A I don't remember
what direction we lived from Brookhaven.

Did you ever see any Indians down there? A I never seen

any full=bloods,

They are down in South Méssissippi are they not? A Yes,sir.

adjournment until 10:00 A, M, September 23, 1903,



Septemb er ZSi 1903,

Before the Choctaw and Chickasaw Citizenship Court,

Zova-By Lewisy-stsa1gt al,

TE, No. 58

C &C Nations,

*  -Harley & ILewis for Plaintiffs.

M. MeM & Cornish for Nations,

Before Judges Weaver & Foote,

Zora S, Barly, being duly sworn took the stand.

BR MR, HAREFY,

Q.

Mrs, Farley there is one or two of these claimants that we did

not ask you fully about yesterday. Do vou know William Gyer?

A,
Q.
A,
Q.

A,

Yes sir,

Do you know his wife®

Yes sir.

What was lr name before she married Gyer?
Her name was Iewis; Zora Addie Tewis,
That was Zora A, L wis?

Yes sir,

Who was her fathe r and mother?

Fdward M. Iewis and Laura N, Tewis?
Fdward M, Tewis her father was your brother?
Yes sir,

What is her name now?

Sussana Goddard.

Is she living or dead?

She is living

Do you know whether or she she married Gyer after her original

application was filed with the Dawes Commission or before?

A.
Q.
A,

She married afterward.
Do you remembe r the year?

I think it was 98,
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Ql'
A,

Q.

Do vou know Jim Leard?

Yes sir,

¥ho was his father and mother?
David J, Leard and Susan L ard.

His mother your sister?

 Yes sir.

Did vou know his wife?
Yes sir,
Vhat was her name?
Mary Martin®

Ts she living or dead”
She is dead.

CORNISH,

Your mother is still living?

Yes sir.

. Where was your father born?

Bom in Mississippi.
Where in Mississippi
I cannot tell you.

In what year?

1824,

Have you heard your mother say where she was born and where sghe

lived before her marriage to your father?

A,

Qs

Unable to state that,
vhere in Mississippi, what county®
Cannot tell wyou that,

Your father was born in 1812°

T don't know, Don't now where he
Then vou are unable to state where
No sir.

was bornyg

he was born®

How are vou able to state that your father was born in Mississippi

all”?

Heard him say that he was , heard him state the County.

Not &@ble to state in what County?

No sir.




D

Wot able to state in what County he heard he was born”®

A. Yo sir.

. Qs Who is David J. leard”

A, He is the fatle r of Julius Leard

Q."' How is he related to you?

A, Mar ~ied my sister.

Q. What wa her name?

A, Susanna,

Qe Living?®

A: o sir.

Q. Vhen did she died?

A, Died dbout ten or twelve years ago,

Q. Died before this application was made to the Commission in
18967

A, Yes sir,

Q. Which of these applicants; which of the applicants in this case
whose names are mentioned in this paper which lMr, Harley had ves-
terday; which of those persons do not now live in the Choctaw-Chick-
asaw Naticns?

A, All live in the Choctaw Chickasaw Nations except Jim Leard, he
is an applicant.

Q. What is his full name®

. Jaass D, Leard.

How is he related to you®

AR A

Brothers child,

O
L ]

Nephew?

A. YVes sir.

Q. Vhere does he live?
A, In Oklahoma,

Q. Vhat County?

A, Pottowatomie County.
Q. How pld is he?

A, I guess he is about twenty=-three.



Q. Own property there?

A, Yes sir.

Q. Mother own property there?

‘A, Yes sir, owned a farm,

Q. How far from Sheawnee?

A, Seven or eight miles,

Q. \Kmam.t size farm was it®

A, Avout eightv actes,

Q. Is his father living?®

A, Pather dead.

Q. Are there any other of these persons who live outside of the
Choctaw-Chickasaw Nations at this time?

A, Maude Farly is out of the Nationat this time., Across the river
in Oklahoma,

Q. Married woman?

A, Yes sir.

Q. What is her husbands name?

Q. When 4id they go there?

A, this spring.

Q. She is an applicant in this case?

A, Yes sir.

Q. Then I understand you to say that the husband of this woman is not
in the Ind ian Territory, but lives in O-lahoma upon rented land?
A, Yes sir.

Q. Near what post office?

A, Violet, Oklahoma Territory:

Q. Any other persons who are non-residents of the Choctaw and
Chickasaw Nat ions?

A, Don't recall any others.

Q. How many children did your mother Zora P, 'ewis have?

A, Eleven.

Q. Name them?

A. Rodah T,, Bdward M., John B,, Susanna E., Thomas P,, David 8.,



Mary P/, Sarah J,, Zora S., Ohpelia S,, William W,
Q. Is Rhoda T., living?

A, Yo sir,

Q. Married before she died?

A, Yes sir,

Q. Who did she marry?

A, Sam Cowart.

Q

Je Party to this suit?

A, Yes slir,

Q. John B, Living?

A, Yo sir.

Q. Married before he died”
A, Yes sir,

Q. Have children?

A, 7ad one child.

That child living?

-

Yes s ir,

-

Where xx is that child living?

Living in TLousiana,

L » O B O

. The daughter of your brother John B, is now living in the
State of Touisiana®

A, Yes sir,

0, Married woman?

A, Yes sir.

Q. Got two children?

Q. Daughter of John B, and ¥ r children and family are now in the
State of ILouisiana and are not parties to this suiy?®

A, Yes sir,

Q. Susanna F,, living.

A
L

Q. Who did she marry”
A, Married David ILeard.
Q. Have children?

A, Yes sir,



Her children pearties to this suit?
Yes sir.

Thomas P, party to this suit?®

Ves sir.

Da,vis S, have children?

Yes sir.

His children parties to t his suit?
Yes sir.

Who did Mary P. marry?

She married __mzmﬁicks.

Is she and =mix and her children parties to this suit?
VYes sir her child is?

What is his name?

Ulric Hicks,

F‘:a,ra.h.:r. married?

RT g

Yes sir.

. Who did she marry?

MeXibben,

Sarah J, McKibben in this suit®

Yes sir,

What brothers and sisters did vour father have?

Well I don't know that he had anv whole brothers, He had some

half brothers,

Q.
A.
Q.
A,
Qe
A,

Q.-

From whom did vour father claim to derive his indian blood?
From his mother,

How many half brothers and sisters did he have?®

Why I think he had three half brothers and one half sister,
By the same mother or same father?

Same father,

Were these half brothers and sisters that vyou mention not the

children of veour fathers mother”

A,

Q.
A,

n

Yo sir.
What children besides vour father did your fathers mother have®

I do not remember ever having seen any of them,

What hare vou heard about it?



A, One is named Terresa.
Q, That is the child of wvour fathers mother?
A, Yes sir,
0, What other children did she have?®
A, I cannot remember the names,
Q;‘Did she have several others?®
A, Two or three others thht died before my récollection.
0. Your understanding that thev married and had a family before
that time®
A, T dAdon't know.
Q. Pon't know anvthing about these children of your fathers mother
and their descend ants®
A, Yo sir,
Q. What about Terresa, did she marry?
A, Yes sir,
Q. Where are the descendants af Terresa living at this time?
A, Visgissivpi.
JUDGE FOOTH:
Live near Brookhaven®
A, Yes sir,

witness exeused,

THOMAS P, TEWIS, being introduced as a witness on behalf of plain-
tiffs, took the stand.

BY MR, HARLFEY,

Q. Vour name is Thomas P, Lewis®

A, Yes sir,

Q. How o0ld are you Mr, Tewis?

A, Borm in 1849.

Q. Where do vou live?

A, T live twenty-five miles South-west of here in the Choctaw
Nation,

Q. What is your post office?

A, Stuart.
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Q, You are one of the applicents in this case are you®
A, Ves sir,
Q. Are you related to Mrs, Zora Farly”
A. Yes sir.
Q. In what way?
A, Sister, full sister.
Q. "hat was the name of vour father?
James M, Lewis,
0, "hat was your mothers name®
ZordoP, lewis,
Q. Do you know Marcus Lewis?
A, Yes sir,
Q. Were vou acqua inted with him in Fort Smith, Arkansas?®
A, Yes sir,

o
Were vou present when he made an affidavit with reference to the

applicants in this case in Tort Smith, Arkensas, before Stephen
Wheeler, United States Commiss ioner?

A, Yes sir,

0. T will ask you who signed that affidavit®
" A, Marcus T.ewis,

¢, wAffidavit handed witness",

Q. Read over it and see if you recognize it?

0., Do vou recognize that affidavit?

A, Ves sir, to the best of my belief,

Q. That affidavit purports to be signed by Marcus Tewis, and to have
been taken before Stephen Wheeler, United States Commissioner at Tort
Smith, Arkansas, 71t bears no date and purports to have been wit-
nessed by W, M, Melette, Did Marcus Iewis make that affidavit?

A, Yes sir.

Q. Who was present®

A, T was,
EQ. I wish vou would state as nearly as vou can sbout what vear he
imade this particular affidavit?

SA- I believe it was in '76; it was not later than '77,

&
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Where were you born, Mr, Lewis?

Q. Lincoln County.

Q. Near what post office or trading point®

A. Brookhaven post office,

0. About how far did vou live from Brookhaven?®

A. T was born in three miles of Brookhaven, and when the railroad
passed through there it was moved two miles further away, and that
put 1;18 five miles away, After the Illinois Central cae through thre
they moved the town two miles further éway, so Brookhaven of today
would be about five miles from where I was born,

0, Which direction was the town from where you were born?®

A, Wortheast., The town would be Northeast.

@, Did you continue living in that same neighborhood until you left
Mississippi®

A, No sir, moved seven miles further away.

Q. Well did ’you afterwards le‘ave Mississippi?

A, Yes sir,

Q. With whom 4 id you leave?

A, Teft with my oldest sister Rhoda T, Cowart.

0., Where was your father at that time?

A, In Mississippi, yet,

Q. You left ahead of your father?

Yes sir,

L >
L3

About how old were vou when vou left Mississippi?®

-

I was about twenty vears old.

When vou left Mississippi where did you start to Mr, Tewis®

> L =

. Started to the Choctaw Nation,

0, This present Choctaw Nat ion?

A, Ves sir, we did not start with the intention of coming str‘a:irtht“
there at that time, We cane on into Arkansas and waited until faterh
came on.

Q. Father afterwards joined vou in Arkansas®

A, Yes sir,

0. Remember about when vour father joined vou in Arkansas?

A, Winter of '69,



Q. Where did you stop when vou came to Arkansas?

A, We stopped at Claredon, Arkansas, Monroe County, stopped on White
River, made a crop there,
. Q. That is where your father joined you with the rest of the family?
3. Yes gir.,
0. How long did you stay there®
A, Werlived there until spring of 70, may havé been 71,
Q. When did you come to Fort Smith, Arkensas®

A, About 71,

Q0. Pid you live in Fort Smith®

A, Yo sir,

Q, Where did vou settle®

A, About twelve or thirteen miles from Fort Sm th,

Q. Near what point or post office?

A, Fnterprise . T¥nterprise about two and one half or three miles,
be tween twelve and thirteen miles from Fort Smith,

Q. How long did vou continue living the re®

A, T do not just remember how long we staid there,

0, Lid vou afterwards come inte the Choctaw Nation?®

A, Yes sir,

0., Do ou remember about what year v ou came into the Choctaw Na-
i en?

A, Me and my family moved into the Choctaw Nation in, think it was
74, I h-d been in the Choctaw Nat ion and worked here, but did not
move my family until fall of 74,

0, Did you ever see vour grand father and grand mother?
AT saw my grand father, but not my grand mother,
. That was vour grand father on vour fathers gide?®

Yes sir,

H > D
*

What was your grand fathers name?

e

William Tewis.

D

. What was your grandmothers name on yvour father's side?

My father said his mother was named Susmanna.

O >

. What was her name before she married your father?

.

Heard that it was Susanns King.



|0, Have vou been advised as to her being a white woman or an Indian
{ by your family, and has it been handed down to vou by family tradition
{ as to what your grand father was as t blood”

. CORVISH:

Y

'” "If the Court please T desire to m renew the objection
}{e:re in vrged zs to the introduction of hear say testimony, which tends
gto esﬁta’o-lish any specific fact, as it is the contention of the
;Choctmrv and Chickasaw Nations that heéy gsay testimony is only com-
?;;‘petent to establish relationship, and particularly is it not com-

petentt to introduce hear say testimony where t he same tends to

e

ablish blood.

g
F,

| A, It has besn my understanding from my family from mv earliest

f recollection that she was part Choctaw.

Q. What was your understanding with reference to your grand father,

P
/
\
| as to vhteher he was a white person or an Indian, as hended down to

¥

; you by your family tradition?

.Inge was & white man best of my recollection,

Q. You claim your Indian blood through your grand mother, Susanna
Lewis, formerly Susanna King?

A, Yes sir,

gvremre vou told and was it hamled down to vou by vour family tra-
V"Mdition as to how much Tndian blood vyour grand mother had?
A, My recolle ction was that she was a half breed,

‘ Q. Never saw vour grand mother?

i

{ A, No..air:

~~=mmwr:; e \

f,x@f’. Did you and the balance of your brothers end sisters, together
/ with their families make application to the Cha taw Council to be

admitted as members of the Choctaw tribe of Indiens by blood?

A e,

A, T didn't go myself, but my understanding is that three of them

went.
Q. Who
. Preston FKarly, mother and sister Sue,

A
Q. About when did they #o before the Council, about what year?
A

. I can't tell what year it was.
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Vr., Lewis, what 4 your wifes name?

Angeline N, Lewis,
Living?
Yes sir,

Have you any children®

Yes sir, I was accidently married twice,

Yhat is the names of vour children®

Liddy.

She Ilmarried?

Yes sir.

Who d4id she marry?
George A, Clark,

He living®

Yes sir,

Her name is ILiddy Clark?
Yes sir,

Yhat is your next child®
Laura,

Living®

Yes sir,

Laura, is she married?
Yes sir,

What 4 her husbands nane?

Named F, P, Tavis,

Her name is now Laura Davis?

Yes sir,

She is living?

YVes sir,

What is your ne xt zhild?
Anthy Tewis,

Is she married”®

No sir,

I she living?

Yes sir,



Q. What 4 the name of your next child?
A, Oscar Tewis.

Q., How old is he?

A, Fight years old.

Q. Living?

A, Yes sir,

Q. Have you any others?®

A, No'sir,

Q. Where were you and vour present wife, Angeline XN, Lewls married?
A, WMarried in the Creek Nation, We were lir ing in the Choctaw Na-
tion at the time but went into the Creek Nation, Her and me both
were living in the Choctaw Nation at that time. The minister lived
in the Creek Nation,

Q. Well when you left Mississippl you left f or the purpose of
coming to the Choctaw Nation, When you started to the Choctaw Nation
was your purpose in coming here, why did you leave Mississippl to
come to the Choctaw Nation?

A, To get homes here in the Nation, To live here in the Nation,

Q. What caused you to think you could get homes here in the Nation?
A, "hy we had learned that we would have no trouble when coming here
in getting homes,

0., Were vou claiming at that time that vou were Choctaw Indlans?

A, Yes sir.

Q. Came here for the purpose of settling with the Choctaws, the
Indians ?

A, Yes sir,

0, Did you afterwards take up lands here?

A, Yes sir,

Q. Just as other Choctaws. Did you take lands and hold them just
as other Choctaws?

A, Yes sir,

Q. Have you seen your mother lately?

A, T have not saw her since May,

Qe Stiil living so far as vou know?

A, Yes s8ir so far as I know,



BY MR. CORNISH:

Q. You say you and your father and his family left Mississ ippi to
come to the Choctaw Nat ion?

A, Yes s8ir,

Q. Why didn't you come?

A, We.did comé.

Q, I8 it not a fact that vour father stopped ‘in the State of Arkansas
and bought land?

Ay Mo sir.

Q. How did he acqguire that land near Hackett City that he owned?
A, He bought the improvements,

Q. He acquired title to the land din't he? He had the right to live
on it in the state of Arkansas didn't he?

A, Yes sir,

Qe How much land was it that ke bought?

A, Bought the improvements on eighty acres,

Q. What did he do with it when he left it?

A, Don't know,

Q. State to the Court what you mean by saying that he bought the
V:improvements on eighty acres? What do vou mean by saying that he
bought improvements in Arkansas ¢

A, Well the land upon which he bought the improvements belonged to
the State of Arkansas, the Govermment of the United States.

0. Didn't he enter the land under the laws of the United States
for the purpose of acquiring title to it after acqguikring these
improvements®

A, T don't recollect, T believe he homesteaded it.

Q. Do vou mean to create the impression that a Choctaw Indien would
but land?

A, ¥Wo sir ‘

Qe Did he homestead the land?

A, Yes sir,

Q. Teken your father homesteaded land in the State of Arkansas in-
stead of coming to the Choctaw Nation?

A, Vas alr



Q. How far was that from the line of the Choctaw Nation?
A. T oan't tell,
Q. About how far, you were there®
A, It was less then a mile,
Q. It was not in the Choctaw Nation?
A, Yo sir,
Q. ni’&fhat excuse do vou give for that after you were on your way
to the Choctaw Nation as a Choctaw Ind:ia.n‘?
A, What is my excuse for what?
. If vou father claimed to be a Cﬁoctaw Indian and was on his way
to the Choctaw Nation to take up land, why did he stop in the State
of Arkansas and homestead land?
A, I cannot tell you.
Q. When did vou move to Oclahoma Territo ry?
A, 22nd day of April, 1889,
Q. You went there to homestead land under the new opening of that
country didn't you?
A, Yes sir,

Where did you stop in Oklahoma?

T stopped in Oklahoma City.

How many of vour brothers went with vou %o Oklahoma?

Q.
A,
Q.
A, One my brother in Louisiana,
Q. Did he homestead land when he got there?

A, T don't know,

Q. "hat other persons whose name appear in this suit went to
Okleahoma about that time?

A, Juliuva Leard, Virgil Cowart, H, C, Roper, Edward Tewis, I do not
really know the others,

Q. You stated that you went to Oklahoma for the purpose of homestead-
ing land, did vou get any land? |

A, Yo sir co 1d not find any.

Q. Why did you leave the Choctaw Nation with its twelve million
acres of land to go to Oklahoma?

A, The fact was I was forced to leave



Q. Your people had gone to the Choctaw Council and endeavored to be
admitted and were rejected by the Choctaw authorities?

A, Yes sir,

Q. Were ® rejected every time they made their application until
they got to the United States Geurt?

A, Yes ‘sir.,

Qs Now you stated in response to a su-gested question by Mr, Harley
that vou removed in 1870 and took up lands like other Choctaws®

A, I moved here into the Nation and went to improving a plsace,

Q. That place, didn't sell it did you?

A, Fo sir,

Q. Were not recognized by the Choctaw tribal authorities were you?
A, I staid there seven years.

Q. Yoﬁ were never recognized by the Choctaw tribal govermnment as a
Choctaw Indian were vou?

A, We claimed a right.

Q. You have just said have vou not that your claim was rejected by
the Council?

A, Yas sir.

Q. Were vou present when the affidavit of lMrs, Hettis Hicjs was
taken in 1896 by this man Ives?

A, I cannct say that I was.

Q. Do you knew or 1ev,

A, T cannot say.

Q. Were you present when the affidavit of her husbend, Thomas R,
Hicks was teken?

A, T was present when there was an affidavit taken, but I disremem-
ver the Notaries neame, but it was not in Oklahoma.

Q. You were present when this affidavit of Thomas R, Hicks was writ-
ten? |

A, Yes sir,

Q. Who wrote that affidavit?

A, T take that write back.

Qs Where was it taken®



Q. Don't you remember who did the writing?

Ay Bo sidr,

Q. You were the representative of this case when thig affidavit was
taken?

A; Yes sir, but I don't rememle r the man's name,

0, Were -vou present when the aff idavit of Jacob S, Bendér was taken®
A, Yo sir,

Q. But vou were present when the affidavit of Hicks was taken, and

you were there for the purpose of getting that affidavit?

A,
Q.
A,

Q‘ L

Yes sir,
What do you say about the affidavit of Jesse B, Moss?
Don't know,

Wag the affidavit of Mrs, Hettie Hicks taken at the same time as

that of Thomas R, Hicks?

Al

Q.

to

I think it was,
Then Julius M, Leard, Virgil Cowart, H, C. Roper, who are parties

this suit went to O-lahoma, at the opening of that country and

homesteaded lands under the laws of the United States?

A,

A

A,

Q.

I don't know whether Julius I, Ieard homesteaded land .
Virgil Cowart, H, C. Roper, Edward M, TLewis homesteaded land?
Yes sir,

Vou were present before Stephen Wheeler when this affidavit of

Marcus Tewis was taken?

A,

Q

;0

A,

Yes sir,

Where is Marcus Lewis?

I don't know.

Know that he is dead?

De not.

Was the affidavit of Sarah, his wife taken at the same time?

Yes sir,

Do not know that he is dead do you?

No sir,

Q. You were born in 1849, and were gbout twenty years 0ld when you



left the State of Missiesippi®

A, Yes sir,

Q. Father not born in the State of Mississippi?
A, Yes sir,

0. Where was vour father born®

A

. Born in Mississ ippi, South-West part.

Q. In what County?® _
A, Dont know that it was in Counties when he was born,
Q. Near what post office?
A. Near Brookhaven,
Q. How far from where he loved at the time he left there was it®
A, T don't remember ever hearing him point out,
Q. Don't know anything of vour fatke re 1ife from the time he was
born?
A, No sir except from hearsay, said he was born right there in the
County.
WEAVER:
Who was this Marcus Tewils, any relation of yours?
A, Said he was an own cousin of father,
Q. How long since vou have heard anything of him or his wife?
A, Why it has been over twenty years,
Q. Where was he living at the time the affidavit was made®
A, Living ten or fifteen miles from Fort Smith, near where Major Parsw
liwe 4.
0. Never seen them since they made the affidavit®
A, One or twice,
Q. Never seen or hear of them for twenty years®
A. No sir.
@. Fver made any effort to find them?
A, Yes sir we made an effort to find them when we were having our
trials . We semt representatives &ll over the Nation. Sent out
persons to hunt them all over the country,
Cornish:

Q. When was that, before that time®



A,

A,

Yes sir,

Q. How long before they made this affidavit was it that you first
saw them?

A, Canntt remember,

Q.'About how long,

Q. Not more than a year or two.

Q. Your father was dead then, where was your father at that time ?

I can't tell.

Your father died in Arkensas didn't e ?

A,
Qe

Fathed died in Avgust 75,

Are vou able to state whether or not these people had ever seen

vour father?

A.

Q.

Yo gir.

Who got these Indians and took them to Fort Smith, Marcus and

Sarah lewis®

A,

Q.
A,

I was in the party.
Were they full blood Choctaw Indiars ?

Nearly full blood Choctaw Indians, wife was full blood , don't

think he wag quite full bood.

Q.
A,
Qe
A,
Qs
A,
Q.
A,
Q.
A,
Q.

Qe
A,

W

Look like full blood Choctawy Indians®
Yes sir,

How 0l1d were these people?

Vhy I can't remembe r,

About as 0ld as you were then?
Ves sir,
When was that about 1876, about twenty-seven years ago?
Yes sir.
How 0ld are vou now?®
fifty-four years old,
Then he was about twenty-seven vears old.
TLooked about as old then a s I am now,
0ld then as you are now?

Yes sir,



A.
Q.
A

Q.

How od was his wife®
About his age, didn't look like a young woman,
For what purpose did they make that affidavit? What did they hope

accomplish?

.'HOped to accomplish our citizenship®

Then and how?

Before the Council,

That affidavit was made before your application to Council?
Yes sir.

Then that affidavit was taken before the Council and used be~-

fore the Council?

A, Father was sent down there?

Q. Then vou don't know what occurred down there?

A,No sir.

Q. Affidavit was carried there by your fat her?

A, Yes sir,

¢, Council rejected vou upon whatever showing was made® v
A, Was rejec ted.

JUDGE FTOOTE:

Qe

You savy you were born in Lincoln County, Mississippi in 1849
Ves sir,
Were there any full blood Indians 1living there then®
Don't remember were any were living,
vou know all the prominent white people in that County?
Know a good many of them,

KXnow Thomas R, Stockton, know R, H, Thomas, know Judge Cassada

and Hiram Cassda?

A,
Q.
A.
Q.

Have heard of Judge Cassada ever since T can recollect,
Acquainted with a good many white people in that County
Yes sgir,

Tid you undertake to pass as an Imd ian, your father and the rest

of them claimed to be white people?

A, Vhy we never denied % ing Indian,




Q. Did anybody ever say vou were Indians?

A . T don't know what they said about it.

. Q. Your father lived there a gerat many years didn't he®

A, Yes sir.

Q; Did he not register and vote?

A, Yes sir, he voted.

Q. Made no effort to make any showing by people who lived there in
support of vour claim®

A, Marcus Tewils was from that County, he was out here,

QQ. That County is right on the railroad running from Memphis, and
been running for forty yvears?

A. Yes sir,

0, Lawrence County is one of the best civilized Counties in the State?
A, Cannot say that,.

Q. Vever made any effort to get any statement from people back there
to show that you were Imd ians, Why werxx did you not go back there
instead of getting people from Oklahoma and Creek Nation that had
lived in that County. The fact is that vou did not make any effort
in that direction®

A. Ton't think we ever sent anybody back there,

Cornish:

Q. Did vour father or anv one of wvour ancestors somply with the
requirements of the fourteenth article of the treaty of 1830 between
the Choctaw Nat ion and the United States?

A, Don't know the fourteenth article,

Q. Didn't so far as you know?

A To sir,

Q. Do vou know anything about the treaty?

A, Yo sir,

Q. Don't know if your father ever had an¥y connection with the trea y?
A, Yo sir,

Q. Then yoﬁ don't know if vour father did anvthing®

A Vo gir,



MR, HARILREVY:
Are vou or vour father lawyers?
A, Wo sir.
@, You had counsel employed to advise you and look after your inter-
ests?
A, Yeg sir.
Q. Relied on the advice of your & lawyers as to what was required®
A, Yes sir,
0., You you called a wealthy man or a man in moderate circumstances?
A, In modeeate circumstances,
Q. Are vou able to hve people traveling over the surrounding
States in search of evidence?
A, Yo sir.
Q. You gathered such evidence in this country as you could find
without goins to the unnecessary expense of sending representatives
to Mississippi?
A, Yes 8ir,
Q. You have been relying upon the advice of your counsel as to the
character of evidence vou should take in this case have you?
A, Yes sir,
®.FOOTE:

Do you mean to say that vour counsel did not sugzgest to
you the propriety of gettin- witnesses from that section of the
country from which vour father came®
A, Never did.

Harley:

Mr, Tewis a vhile ago in answer to a question propounded by
Mr, Cornigh, you said that you and the other members of your family
were forced to leawe, I wish you would state full the facts why you
were forced to leave?

A, Well it was this way, my borhter went tosee the Agent at Muskogee
It was understood that they were going to put us out, and he went to
see the Agent,

Q. Did he gox to see the Agent as the representative of the gow m-



ment of the United states?
A, Yes sir., and the Age t told him that if he did not get out he
‘would put him out.
Q. Well when he was told that by the agent he came and advised the
rest of wvou®
A, Ves sir.
Q. Where were vou living at that time?
A, Living at Brooken, Choctaw Nation,
Q. Were vou holding land at that time?
A Yes sir,
Q. What became of vour plave when you left it?
A, T dont know what became of it,
Q. Sell vour improvements?
A, 5014 it on credit, but never got anything out of it.
Q. To whom did you sell it?
A, To Richmond MNecGee,
CORNISH:
Q. Then it isa fact that you and these applicants were practically
put out of the Choctaw Nation by the United states authorities?
A, Call it what vou please,.
. After you had been to the Council?
A, Ves sir.
Qe Then the Indian Agent t0old wvou to get out and you got?
A, Yes sir,
witness excused.
B, H, BAIIRY, a witness for the plaintiffs, being next duly sworn
took the stand.
BY MR. HARLEY:
Q. State your name?
A, Bajamine H, Railey.
Q. How ¢ld are you Captain?
A, Sixty-four years old,

Q. Where do vou live?

A e L, . Bt K i Lo S



D
-

How long have you lived here?

>

. About thirteen vears, ever since the town has been built,
0, How long have you lived in the Inden Territory?
A, Altogether I think about fifty-five or fifty-six years in the
" Indian Territory.

0., What business are vou engaged in now?

A. Not engaged in any business richt now, I am on the equalization
board in the city right now.

Q. What business have vou been engsged .in during the greater part
of the time Captain?

A, Mercantile business.

Q. Did you ever know Zora P, Lewis, one of the applicants in this
case?

A, Yes sir,

Q. Know her hudband?

A. Yes sir,

Q.VWastwwas his name?®

A, Name was James.

Q. Where did vou first know thep, Captain?

A, Where did I first know them?®

Q. Yes sir?

A, They camped in front of my store, about ten miles South of Fort
Smith, a little village named Fnterprise in 1870, I believe it
was,

Q. Say they camped in front of your store?

A, Yes sir,

Q. Know where they were from?

CORNISH:

Will the Court permit to go into the record the hearsay testimony

of these applicants made to this witness.
WEAVER: I think Mr. Cornish we will proceed.
A, 1 don't know sir where they were from, said they were from Miss=-
issippi.

Q. What were they Captain with reference t0o being Indias or white

people?



CORNISH:

I would stop and take a stand in the case that this ques~-
tion should not be answered. It seems to me that it is a disgrace
to the Court to make an effort to introduce such testimony, It seems
to.me that it is a disgrace to the Court to proceed without regard
to the propriety and the Court should not permit it, Nobody knows
what W;ll'became of this recsrd, and it does seem to me ,that it
is a discourtesy to offer it. |
HARLEY:

Reallyv I am not in the habit of having counsel talk to me
in swh a way, I am not in the habit of seeing my honor and my
reputation as a lewyer questioned.

CORNISH:

I desire to say that I in no way assailed your stand-
ing as a lawyer, but I did say that the question just asked this
witness was an insult,

JUDGE ¥OOTHE:
The situation as I understand it is is that we are not

QOing to rule out any evidence at this time,

JUDGE. FOOTE:
Answer the question,

A, Well I don't know that I can, I hardly know how to answer that
question, I can this some of them looksd like Indians, and some of
them did not show their Indian blood, Some of the family did not
have the Indian look at all, I believe that if about the only way

I can answer it.

Q. Some of them vou say did not like like Indians, did some of them
look like Indians?

A, Yes sir some of them looked very much like Indians,
Q. You have lived among the Indians nearlv all your life?

A, Yes sir, I have traded pretty much all my life with th civilized
Indians and in fact with the blanket Indiens,
Q. Yow Captain I wish you would state the names of the parties there

that you can recall at this time?



A, T don't know that I can, it has been so long since I knew them I
do not know that I can state the names,
Q. Can vou give any?

" A, One of the boys that showed the Indian, I do not remember his name.
Qs Give the names of any of the children of Zora P, Iewis who were
with the party at that time?

A. '}?1r1;~31~e~ were two or three of the choldren that showed thé Ind ian more
than-~ ‘

Q. I do not mean with reference to showing the Indian, but give the
names of guch of the children of Zora P, Lewis that you can remembe r
or that you know to be their children?

A, There was Tom, and I belleve one that was named Dave, I have for-
gotten their names, Neher was intimately acquainted with them, |
they used to come to the store and trade.

Q. XKnow Mrs., Farly over there?

A, Don't belleve I did, don't remembe r her,

Q. Remember Mrs, Edwards here?®
A, Ves sir I remember her, I remember her because I have been at their
house since, probably about twenty years ago, when they were on
@ana.dian River. I was buying cattle. Stopped there at their house,
Q. Remember her given name?

A, No sir I do not.

Q. Stoppred at their house about twenty years ago?

A, Yessir.

‘Q,.' Were hey living on the lands as Choctaws or where they living

/
}fthere as the tennants of other parties?

{ A, They were living there as Choctaws, Had a farm and was raising
stock, Had about eighteen or twenty head of cattle there at one
time,

" Q. FParm of their own?

" Q. Who did Mrs, Fdwards marry, what is the name of her husband?
Ao Jo Al de.v\fa«r'ds.

Q. Know him?



A, Yes sailr,

0, About how long have yvou known Joe Edwards?
A, I don't know I have not seen much of him for the last twenty=-

five years, think it was 70, but it was ebout then,

Q. Do you recall the names of any other children?

A, Well there was one that married a man named TLeard and one married
a man named C, P, Hicks,

Q. Now Captain you say that when vou first met them they camped in
front of your store, dd they live in that community?

A, Yeg sir they lived about a mile or two miles and a half from me
just on the line, Do not know how long, not over a year,

Q. Where 4did they mowe ?

A, Moved into the Choctaw NWation,

Q. Now captain do you remember with reference to thefamily of Zora
Lewis and her husband James TLewls, as to who showed the Indian blood
the most, the boys or the girls?

A, I don&t know that, I ebelieve though that Mrs, Leard, the oldest
one showed Indian more than any of the balance, That is my im-

press ion just now,

| A, Yo sir T can't say as to that, I think though that they were gen-
%era.lly looked u pon as Indians, They claimed to be Indians when they
lrt came there.

Q. Y6u are not related to any of these parties im any way?

A, No sir,

0. No interest in this case?

A, No sir,

CORWISH:

Q. Captain vou don't know anything about these people as to where
they came from ex ept what they told you do you‘?

A, Vo sir,

Q. Q. Are you able to name the children whom you say had the appear-



ance of Indian® blood?

A, No sir Iccannot say that I can except Mrs, Leard,

Q? Grown woman at that time?

A, Yes sir.

0. Is it not a fact that this man James M, Tewis homesteaded land
close to you? ‘

A. No'sir.

Q. Ybﬁ_have no knowledge of this man ha ing homesteaded land r® ar
you?

A, Yo sir,

Q, When was it that vou knew this man Fdwards in the Choctaw Nation?
A, Some years ago,

Q. How long was that?

A, About wenty years ago, it may have been twenty-one years ago., .
Q. You say he was living there as a Choctaw Indian, How are you
able to meke that statement- what do you base that on?

A, Well only in this way he had a farm there and claimed to be a
Choctaw citizen,

0, You do not have any knowledge of the application of these people
to the Choctaw Council, and the rejection of their claim by the
Choctaw Nation?

A, No gir,

Q. You met Joe Fdwards twenty-five years ago?

A, Yes sir,

Q. Havr you any information of him having sold his place ?

A, Yo sir,

JUDGE FOOTE:

You said that they had Indien blood, are you sufficient of
an expert of persons having Indian blood that a man having on fourth
or one eight blood can vou tell that he was Indian?

A, I did'nt smy that they were ndiens,
0, I am asking vou if a person having that degree of blood can you
tell it?

A, No sir. witness excused.



MRS, LYDIA CLARK, being first duly sworn toock the stand.
BY MR. HARLFEY.

Q. How old are your UVrs, Clark?®

A. Teenty-seven,

Q. What is vour post of"ice present time?

A. Stuart,

Q. Live near Stuart in the Choctaw Nation®

A, Yes sir,

Q. What is vour husbands name?

A, george Clark.

Q. Is he living?

A, Yes sir,

Q. Who was vour father and mother?

A, T, P, and Amanda lewlis,

Q. Thomas P, Tewils, the witness who has testif ied?
A. Yes sir.

When were you and your husband first married?®

A, November 25, 1894,

Q. Where were you married?

A, Pratt County, Oklahoma.

Q. Were vou and vour husband aftereards married again®
A, Yes sir.

Q. When was that?

A, In August 98,

Q. Where were vou married that time?

A, Here in McAester,

Q. Had you and your husband been divorced®

A. No sir,

ﬂﬁﬁ Married the second time for the purpose of complying with the

1Choctaw law with reference to marriage?®
A, Yes sir,
\ Q. When vou were married the second time did your husband procure

marriage license in accordance with the laws of the Choctaw Na-



\

tion?
A, Yes sir,
Q. Did he comply with the Choctaw law in all respects in that mar-
riage?
A, I don't know, don't know what the laws are,
Q. Well did he get a license from the Choctaw authorities?
A, He sa—id that he did. ‘
WO,. What became of vour amrriage licenseand certifica te that you
got when vou married the second time®
A, T don't know.
Q. Pon't know where it is now?
A, No sir,
Q. Have you any children?
A, Yo gir,
&% CORNISH:
Q. Whatever may have been done with reference to this ® second
marriage sbout which you speak, it was after you and the other
applicants mm in this case had been admitted by Judge Claytons Cout
was it not?

A, Yes sir,

witness exc used/

WILLIAM KYIR, a witess for the plaintiffs, % ing first duly sworn
took the s tand,

BY MR, HARLEY:

Q. YVour name is W‘ill’iam Kyle

A, Yes sir,

Q. Married?

A, Yes sir,

Q. What was vour wife's name before you married her?

A, Zorg A, Lewis,

Q. Who was the fatherand mother of vour wife?®

A, Fdward M, Lewis and Sarah P, ILewis,

Q. When were by ou first married to your wife?

A? On September 6 '98,



Qe Q. FPirst time you were married”
A, Yes sir,
Q. She now living is she?

A. Ves sir.

_,.,,—-W .y

/Q When you married your wife did -ou comply with the laws of the
?\ Choctaw Nation with reference to the marriage of citizens of the
Chocfaw Nat ion?
A, No sir.
Q. Did you afterwards marry your wife again?
A, Yes sir.
Q. When was the second marriage?
A, 1899,
Q. Had vou been divo ced from your wife?
A, No sir,
o : . gz
/Q. You married the second time for the purpose of complying with
(wvthe laws of the Choctaw Nation with reference to the marriage wit"
z\ members of that tribe?
A, Mr.
Q. Where were vou married the second time?
A, South McAlester,
Q. In whose office, or what place in South McAlester?
A. In Mr, Lindly's office, M. M, Lindly.

o,

/@’T Did vou comply with the laws of the Choctaw Nation in your

fs econd marriage..

iA. Yes sir,

}Q. Did you procure a license from the Choctaw authorities?
iA. Yes sir.

i Q. What was the license fee th t you paid”

{ A, $100,00

1‘Q. Paid that to the Choctaw tribal authorities?

A, Yes sir/ Clerk McClure,

e

1@, Did you then get the license from the Choctaw authorities?

« Yesg sir,

8 that license and marriage certificate that you got at».



that time?

A, T suppose it is with the Dawes Comnission,

Q. What did you do with it?

'A. I presented it to the Dawes Commission here at South McAlester,
and they taken it up.

Q. Now in the possession of the Dawes Commiss ion, or some other
officer of the Interior Department?

A, Yes sir,

Q. Now living with you wife?

A, Yes sir,

Q. Same woman to whom vou were married both times?

Ay Yas s8ir,

Q. Have yvou any children?

A, Yes 8ir.

Vhat are their names®

A, Fdith May and Tielding Tewis,

Q. Where do vou live now Mr. Kyle?

A, Live in the Chickasaw Nation,

Q. What is your post off ice?

A, Center,

Q. How long have vou liw d in that community?

A. About four years,

CORNISH.

Qe Why didn't you get a Choctaw license when you marridd her the
firgt time?

A, Well she was not enrolled.

Q. You married her in '98, why didn't you get a Choctaw marriage
license then,

A, T don't know why I didn't,

Q. Did the matter of the issuance of this marria e certificate
depend upon the rendering of a judegment in her favor by the United
States Court for the Central District of the Indiah Territory?

A, The judgment had besn rendered before I married the first time,
Q. Afterwards were married a second time?

A, Yes sir, witness excused.
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Q. Mr, Farly,

| let us present them unless

ST
e

PRESTON WARLY, (recalled)

J——
W

/ BY MR. HARIFY.

I will ask you if you went with Mrs, ZorayP, Lewis
and anv of the other applicants in this case before the Choctaw
Council in this claim?®

A, I went there, Zora P, Lewis and her daughtér We teken the paper
Said that they would not

to Council, but could not get a vote,
The

thay had twe ty-five dollars., And

asked x®x me twenty-five dollars just to present the paper before

the Council ., They were working against me, Mr., Lewis was, Simon

Lewis, They came down to our camp and said people you will never

get on, Mr., Lewis is working against you.
Q. Did you ever present your claim to the Council?

A. 1 presented by claim to the Principal Chi f in o0ld McAlester,

he was &gbout there on business of some kind and I pre sented by

paper to him,
Qs That was not at the Council?

Az NS 81y,

Q. Vhen you got to the Council did your paper ever go before the

Council®

As ¥o sir .,
Q. These matters came up and you were never before the Council

were you?

A, Never was,

Q. You r member when it was that vou went to the Council?

A, It was about 77, or seventeen years ago, right along about that

t ime,
Q.20 you remember who was Principal Chisf of the Choctaw Nation

s

W"/ﬁ

at that time?

A, Do not remember his name, Cannot call his neame,

’Q. Did you take with you on that occasion the affidavit of Edward

M. Lewis and Ruwsam his wife, did you carry them with you when you

ent to Council,



!

i
A
¥

| 8, We carried the old affidavit of this Tewis, Marcus Lewis, 0ld

papers, but did not present them,

A

6 ORI TSH:

PR S

Q. How mant times did vou go to Council in this case?

A, One time,

Q. Who went on the other occasions when the claim was presented?
Ay 4 don.'t know,

Qe Is it not a fact that this claim wa.s‘presented to Council on
several different occasions?

A. No sir,

Q. Don't you know as a fact that this claim was presented to Coun
cil at a different time than when you were there?

A, Yo sir.

Q. Then if the statement is contained in this record that it was
then that statement.is not tru e so farvas your personaly knowl-
edge ic concerned?

A, T don't know anything about it,

Q. You have knowledhe of the presentation of this claim to Coun-
cilseveral time s?

A. No sip,

Q. Where were vou living at the time this order came from the
Inda n Agent for these people to clear out of the Choctaw Nation?
A, South Canadian.

Q. How did that infommation reach wvou?

A. I hear! t ey were going to put us off?

Q. How did you hear that, from the authorities innthe County?

A. I heard from the authorities in the County there that the
government of the United tates and its representatives considered
our family as intruders and that they would put us out.

Q. Did you gef out?

A, Yes sir we got out, Fdward Lewis went up to Muskogee and he
found that we had to get out,

Q. That was after this claim was presented to the Council?

A, Yo sir before, iy



Q. When was it that you lived in Oklahoma, that you arrived in
Oklahoma?

A. 1893, 1 think it was.

Q. How long after wag that that you understood the Indian Agent
was going to put you out of the country?

A, Somewheres about eight years.

Qe Theﬁ it is not a fact that when yvou went to Oklahoma in 1893
to excape the action of the United States Indian Agent in putting you
out of the Choctaw Nat ion?

A, Yo we went across the River into the Cerokee and stald there a
while,

Q. You were not pushed into Oklehoma by any fear that the Choctaw
Nat ion was going to put you out ef the Choctaw Nation?

A, No sir,

Qs It was not the imminent action of the Indian Agent that pushed
you into Oklahoma?

A. No sir,

Q. What did yvou go into Oklahoma in 1892 for?

A, Went up there and found three forties that nobody had allotted,
and I thought it was worth allotting, and I taken it up.

Q. Where was that land in Oklahoma?

A, About seven miles from Shawnee.

Q. Your wife claimed to be a Choc tw?

A, Yes sir,

Q. You took her claim mm along with the balance when you went
didn't you?

A, Yes sir same thing.

Q. You homesteaded that land in 18927%

A, In 1893,

Q. How long did you liw on that land?

A, About six years.

Q. You acquired title to the land didn't you?

A, No sir I did not get no title to it, I bought it out, I paid a

@ollar and a quarter an acre for it.



Q. When you left you sold whatever interest you had 1in the land
didn't wvou?

A, Yes sir,

" Q: You were living in Oklahoma in 18967

A. Yes sir, I reckon sbout that time I moved to the Nation,

Q. When did you move to the Natiom

A. T ® ckoen about '95 or '96.

Q..What year was it, you know better thlan any of the halance of us
A, My recollection is that it was- Well I will say '96, may have
been '97, I don't know,

Q. You said a moment ago that you homesteaded this land, that would
bring it up to 1899?

A, I reckon I must have been there before that time.

Q. Is it true or not true that vou lived on this land six years?
A, Yo sir I don't thi ¥ I lied there that long. I owned it that
long, Fe had to comre to the Nation, it was about that long before
I sold it, I rented it two years,

Q. Didn't you come to the Nation about the time T. P, Lew s came?
A, Yes sir.

Q. Then you came into then vou came into the Nation about the time
the other members of the Lewis family came?

Q. They were ordered in. They wereordered to come here.

Q. Who ordered you in, your attorneys ordered you in?

A, Ter sir.

Q. Who was your attorney at that time?

A, Mr, Lindly.

Q. He ordered you in?

A, Yes sir,

Qs Is it not a fact that you came in there in the fall of 1898
or winter?

A, Probably it was.

Q. Then it is a fact that on the 10th of September, 1896 you were
living in Oklahoma on this homesteaded land, and your wife who

is an applicent in this case was 1living on homesteaded land in Ok-



lehoma?

A, I don't know,

Qs You don't know anvthing about the blood of these people, 4o
you?

& No sir,

witness exvused.

OLIVIA PRYVOR, a witness on behalf of the plaintiffs being duly
sworn took the stand.

BY MR. HARLEY:

Q. State your neame?

_A. Olivia Pryor.

Q. Where do vou live Mrs, Pryor?

A, & Stuart, Choctaw Nation, Indian Territory,
Q. What was the name of your father and mother Mrs, Bryor?
A, Samuel J, Pryor and Al

Qe How many times have vou been married?

A, Three times,

Q. What was the name of your first husband?

A, James X, Douglas.

Q. Did he die?

A, Yes sir,

Q@ Have any children by him?

A, Yes gir one.

Q. Wnat is his name?

A, James X, Douglas,

Q. I he living?

A, Yessir.

Q. Who did you next marry?

A. Henry Jourdan?

Qe Is he living?

A, Yo sir,

0, Dead?

A, Yes sira,



Q. Have children by him?
A, Yes sir,
Qe Give their names?
- Ae Henry Jourdan. Mabel Jourdan, Zora Pearl Jourdan,
e Three children by that marriage?
Ai Yes gir,
Qe Wht did vou nect marry?
A. Sap V, Pryor.
Qs Is he living?
A. Yes sir.
Qe Havé you any children by that marriage?
A, Yes slr,
Q. Give the ir names?
A. George M, Pryor, James E, Pryor, Mary E. Pryor, S, 0, Pryor,
Vernie Pryor and Rarl Pryor.
Q. Related to Mr. Early in any way?
A, Yo sir,
Q. Related to Mrs, Early?
A, Yes sir she is my aunt,
CORNIGH:

Ever live in Oklahoma Territorv?
A, No sir.
Q. You never lived in the Territory of Oklahoma?
A, No slir,

witness excused.,

HARLEY:

If the Court please that concludes the evidence that we
have at this time in this case. We have one witness, a Mrs. Page who
is a very o0ld lady, and if the Court desires it we might put Mr.
Edwards on to prove her conditlon, She lives near Jenson, Arkan-
sas in the country near Pocola, Indian Territory, about three miles
from Jenson, and under the circumstances I will have to ask one
of the Judges to take her testimony.

CORNISH:

We Bve heard no testimonv as to her vhvsical com ition at this time



As I undwrstand she us the same person who cane here on the 30th of
June and gave testimony in the Mickle case,
. HARLEY

f she is agble we would rather bring her here than to ask
th'é Court to go6 there, and in fact there are two or three other
witnesses whose evidence we desire to take, aﬁd who are not relat-
ed to these parties, We have just recently learned of these wit-
nesses and their whereabouts, and we will a k the Court to permit
us to bring these parties into the Court at some later date,
at such tme as the Court will ind icate, If she will come here,
that will be more agreeable than taking it at Jenson, but if she
cahnot come, we will be under the necessity of asking the Court
to téke the testimony for us,

JUDGE WEAVER:

Counsel is aware of the rule of Court to the effect
that an affidavit will have to be filed in this case to the effect
that the witness is not physically able to come,

CORNISH:

You see Judge as we understand the rules there is a time
when the plaintiffs are required to talke their testimony, and if
there is good reasons why an extension is desired, "chen the flo= "
¢don wilkl hevei to be filed, a copy served upon us, and then the
Court can pass upon it.

JUDGE WEAVER:

The Counsel for the Nations has stated the rule,
JUDGE WEAVER:

In number 59, Ohpelia S, Edwards, et al, vs, Choctaw and
Chickasaw Nations, the Court having heard certain evidence sub-
mitted by the applicants in case number 58, Zora P, Lewis, et al,
vs, Choctaw and Chickasaw Natilons, and it being suggested to the
Court by Mess, Harlev & Lewis, counsel for the claimants in each
of said cases, that the testimony offered in said case number 58

is ide tical with that which would be offered in case number 59,

that said evidence be considered by the Court as having been offerdd

v
1

#




to the Court in said case number 59, as well as in said case number
58, Mess, Mansfield, McMurrav & Cornish, counsel for the Nat ions
_being present in open Court offered no objection to the sugegestion
of the counsel for the plaintiffs in each of said above entitled
ca;ses, and consented that said testimony, so far as the same may
be applicable, and subject to all objections x;vhich may have been
made by them in the hearing thereof in said case number 58 may

be treated and considered by the Court as having been again of-

fered in said case number 59.

Opheilia S, FEdwards, a witness for the plaintiff heingcfdrst duly
sworn took the stand. ‘
BY MR, HARLEY:

Q. State vour name?

A, Ohpelia S, Edwards,

Q. Wife of James M, Edwards?

A. Yes sir.

Q. Related to Mrs, Early?

A, Yes sir,

Q. In what way’

A. Sister.

Q. Sister of yours?

A, Yes sir,

Q. Know Charles Rdwards?

A, Yes B8ir, he is my son.

Q.Did,vou know Lula Edwards?

A, Yee sir.

Q. What is her name now?

A, Rightaway.

Q. Has she been married before she married Mr, Rightaway?
A, Yes sir,

Q. What was her first husbands name?

A, Hays,

Qe What is her husband named?



Eugene Rightaway.

Q,.
A.

e

A

Q.
A,

Q.

Know Martha J, Smith?

Yesg sir.

Who is she?

She is my daughter.

What was her name before she was married? |,
Marth.a. J. Bdwards.

What is her husbands nane.

Oscar Smith, he signs his name 0. G. Smith,
3

Q.

Do you know David Smith?
Yes gir.

Who is she?

My daughter.

Married?

No sir name is Edwards.

A1l of these children of vours whose names I have called are

now living?

A,

Q,.
A,

Yes sir.
A1l live in the Choctaw Nation, Indian Territory?

Yes sir.

witness excused,

OPHELIA S. EDWARDS, a witness on behalf of defenda ts, being

duly sworn took the stand,

BY MR, CORNISH:

Qe
A.
Qe
A,
Q.
A,
Qe
A,
Q.

Weere were you living in 18969

I was living in the State of Arkeansas,
In what County,?

Franklin County.

Near what post off ice?

Rogeville.

Husgband own land there at that time?
Yes sir,

How much land did your husband own?



e TR, S

e it ran s

Q.

A.
Qe

I cannot remember exactly.
About how much? ,
Nearly four hundred acres.
In the ri%er bottom?
Yes sir,

At the time this applicat ion was made you and your family were

living on land which your husband owned in Franklin County, Arkaen-

sas?

A,
Q.
A,
A,
Q.
A,
Qe
A,

Q.

Yes sir.

When did vou move to the Choctaw Nat ion?

in . 1898,

Did yvou husband ever hold anv office in the State of Arkansas?
Ves sir,

What off ice?

Deputy sheriff.

How long was he deputly sheriff?

I don't know,

It is a fact that at the time this application was made in

1896, he was deputy sheriff,

A,

Q,Q
Aa

He had been before that time?

Was he after that time?
Yes sir,

Witness excused.



zora P, Lewis, et al,
vs, To. 58.
Theé Choctaw and Chickasaw Nations,
Telr uary 4, 1904,
Mr, Harley:

In that case, representing the plaintiff, that case has
bern continued up to this time for some testimony that we
wanted to vofer, but our witnesses ha=ve just come in,
and T have &t not had an opportunity fto go over the matter,
and if the Court or the gentlemen would desire up to put in
our testimony, we are in the attitude that we will heve to

esk for a 1it'le time to confer with the witnesses, and we
can close it in & hour snd & half from the time we start,

JUDGY ADAVS:

The Court was under the impression that we had X-closed
v 4

Wy, Cornish:

T do not think the record will bear you out,
JUDGE ATAVS:

Mv understanding is that all of those cases are
closed on the part of the applicants, snd the cases are
gsat Tor the dofendants,

¥r. Harley

I think the Court iz in error, Tn the Tewis case
Mr, Tewis was sick when the case was lagt set and it was
contin ed on that eccount, Mr, Edwards had some contests
at ‘toka, and they were continued for tge same reasons and

¥r, wdwa ds had the witnesses r:ady to bring them here before

and the metter was continued for that reason,

JUDGE ADANE:
v You ars né’c ready to offer it now,
Mr, Yarley: |
Tdon't think we would be ready to offer 1t now,

JU GE ADAMS:

You gentlemen want to offer vyour tegtimony befors he
gets thelrs, ‘

¥r. Cornish:

Mo sir, I don't think we would,



Zora P, Tewis, et al,
73. Na. 58.
The Choctaw and Chickassw Nations,

Harley & Tewis, Attormeys for Plaintiffs,
Mansfield, VMeMurray & Comish, for Defendants .

Pméant and presiding the Honorables, Spencer B, Adams,
Chief Judge nd Walterll, Aeaver and Henry 8, Foote,
AssoclateJudges,

FFBRUARY 4, 1904, This day this cause coming on to
be heard, both plaintiffs and defendants being represented
by Counsel, the following proceed ings were had, to-wit:

Mr, Comish:

Those are the cases that went over this morming, The
record has he-etolfore been made up in number fifty-eight,
and the Nation®s have present some sssdds witnesses whose
testimony they wish to takd, end we wish to offer it in case
number fifty-eight and extend in such manner as the court
may direct to the other cases,

¥r., Harley:
Applicants have some testimony,
JUDGE ADAMS:
This is & very wmusual proceeding, but we want to get
st the facts, and if vou bring out any new matter you gentle
men will have opportunity to rebut it,

PETER B, KREBS, being called as & wit-
ness on behalf of the plaintiffs, testified as follows:

DIRRCT FXAMINATION,
My, Hare y.

Q.--State your nmme? A,--Peter B, Krebs.
Q.=~How o0ld are you? A,--Born in forty-nine.

Mr, Cornish:

T understand these are the only witnesses wnaae tes ti~
mony vou wﬁh to take, .

¥r. Harley:

Yes sir,
¥r. Harley:

Q.=-=State your citizensghip with reference to being a Choctaw
or citizen of the United Srates, A,=~Myself,

Q.~-Yes «ir, whether you are a Choctaw or citizen of the
United g ated? A,~~Citizen of the Choctaw Nation, always
been considered,



Q.==Are you enrolldd as such by the Dawes Commission?® A, -~
Yes sir,

Q.=-Where were vou raised Mr, XKrebs? A,~~Raised on Canadian
River, what they call now Whitefield,

0.~=Wher: were you born? /,~~Bom at Whitefield .

Qe.~=In this Choctaw wation? A,--Ves sir,

Q.==Mr, Xrebs, I will ask you if you ever knew 2 man named
Marcus Tewis? A,--Yes sir,

Qe==Where did you know him? A,--Down on Poteau River,

Bast of Spiro, used to he old Skullyville,

‘Q.~=About how o0ld were you, about what sized man were you
the first time vou got acquainted with him®? A,--T don*t
remember how old T was,

Q.=-Were vou grown? A,~--Pretty good sized boy, After my

father died, mother moved to my grand fathers,

Q.==-What was yvour grand father's name? A,~~-Ward Polsom,

Q.~=You were at your grand father's when you first knew him?

A,~-Ves sir,

Q.==You were not a grown man yet? A.~--No sir,

Q.=~"hat was the citizenship of this man? Xywxxxx Marcus
Tewis, if you know, what was he? A,~-Always considered
him to be & Choctaw,

Q.==About how much Choctaw did he appear to be, with

reference to being a full blood or otherwise? A,~--
Reckon what you e¢all a full blood,

Qis~=Did you know his Indian name or whether he had an Indian
name® Chocteav neme? A,~--Vesg sir,

Q.==Did vour mother in speakin - to you and talking around

the place speak Choctaw or English? A,--Fnglish in
talking to the children, talked English altogether,

0.,~=The language that was spoken around your home was
Fnglish and not Choctaw? A,~--Yes sir. VWhen neighbors
came in she talked Choctaw, but in the x family she
alwayvs talked Tnglish, her and her father both,

Q.=~Do vou know whether or not this man Marcus Tew's had &
Choctaw name? A,--No sir/

Q.-=-You simply knew him by Varcus Lewds, kis Fnglish name?

A,--Ves sir,

Q,~~If he had a Choctaw name, you say you never knew

about it? A,~~No sir,

Q.~-What kind of a locking man was Marcus Tewis? A,~~Not
very large man, Tolerable spare built man, weight
about one hundred end foty pounds, maybe more or not

gquite go mu h,

Q.==Did you just see him once or twice or off and on?

A.,~~Saw him off and on for about two or three years, I
staid there two or three years, lived with my grand
father, and of course he wasen't there every day, go

across the River and come baclk,

Q.=-Did you see him off and on for several years? A,--Not
more than two ysars, f that long .

Mr. Mansfield:

Mr, Harley's examination is leading with this witness,
he should ask him how long he knew this man,

My, Harley:
fixxxx Trying to get before the Court the mas knowledge.
JUMGE ADANS:

I wagen't paying any attention to the questions I
was listening to the answers,



¥r, Harleyv:

Q.==Describe this man Marcus Lewis as nearly as you can,

with reference to his having beard, ete, give a diseription
of his face, whether he had beard or mustach or whether
he didn't,

JUDGE WOOTE:
Can't he answer the quwe stion of what his appearaces were,
¥r, Harley:
Yes sir,

Q.~~1 want to know his fac ial appearance, A,~~He didn't
have my beard on his face far a8 . knowed him,

JUTGE ADAMS:

Q.==Do you know whether he had beard or not? /A,~~¥o 8ir,
T don't think he had any beard, Great ma of them
full bloeds don't have any beard, fe w sticking around.
I don't remember whether he hed any or not,

¥r., Harley:

Q.=~Mow long has it been to the best of vour recollection
since you saw Marcus Tewis?®? A,~~-It has besen twenty-four
or five years, something like that,

f},==D0 vou know what became of him® A,--He disapiesred
and never heard anyvthing more from him,

Q.~=You don't kmow what became of him? A,~-¥o =ir .,
0e==0,==Do vou know whers he lived, where his home was? A,-~-
Ho more than I said a few moments ago, Go backwards
and forwards for where I liw d coming back on this side

of the Rivef,

Q.=~Did he have any permanent home that you imow of? A,-=

Wot that T know of,

Q.=~Do you know Judge Ward this other witness? A,--Ves sir,

Qe=~About how meny miles were you living from him? A,--
Vhen I lived near Vhitefleld over there we lived sbout

seven or eight miles apart, He lived on one side of
the River and I lived on the other,

Qe==How far did you live from him when you knew this man
Marcus TLewim® A,--Seven or eight miles

Q.=-Poteau River? A,~-Ves sir,

Q.=-=What do you k now, if anything sbout full blood Choctaws
having an Indisn name and an ¥nglish neame, ZXyxxWhere
the Choctaw name was hard to pronuounce they somestimes
took and Fnglish name, A,~-No answer,

Q.~=Do you ¥mow whe ther 1t was frequently the case or

not? A,-=T don't know , Know them always go by one
name and then chage off and go bv another , but I don 't
k¥now whether they make a practice of it or not,

Q,~=What name do you go by now? A,--Peter Krebs,

0,~=%hat other nme did vou go by? A,-~My first name
and middle name was pronounced one, went by that until

I went to rambling around =nd gsve by name as Peter B,
Krebs, go by that neme a while and now Peter Krebs,



Q.--About how old a man do you think Marcus Lewils waswwhen
yvou last saw him, how old a man would pou take him +to
be from vour rmcollaction" A,~-1 suppose something lilke
forty years old.

Q.~~That is vour beet recollection of it? A,--Ves sir,

Q.~~You are not related to anyof these applicants that y u

know of in this case? A,-=lot hardly,

CROSS-TXAMINATION,
Mr, Comish:

Ne=~Did thils man Marcus Lewis that you talk about havs a
family? A.-~Not that I know of,

Q.--No wife? A/=-¥o sir,

Q.==Any children? A.--No sir,

Q.~=Don't know where he lived? A,--Yo sir,

Q.==Just went about from place to place in the country? A.--
Yes sir,

Q.==Just & roaming man® A,~-Ves sir,

Qe==Tever knew what his father and moth r were® A,--No sir.

Q.-~Disapie ared? A,--Yes sgir,

Q.==You have never seen him since® A.~--Wo gir,

witness excused,

JOSEPH WARD, being called as 2 itness
on behalf of the defendants, testified as follows:

DIRFCT BYAM INATION,
Mr, Harley:

Q.==State your name”? A,--Ward, Joseph Ward,

Q.==How o0ld are vou? A,~-1 wae born in 1855,

Q.=-Vhere do vou live? A,~-Skullyville County, Osk Lodge
were I get my mail,

8,~=Choctaw Nation? A,-=-Yes sir,

0., ~Kutxxwhat i y ur citizenghip with reference to bes a
Choctaw or citizen of the Umited “tates ? A,--Choctaw,

0.==Do yvou now hold anv offilcial position in the Choctaw
Nation® A.--No sir,

G.~=pgave vou heretofore held anyv? A.~~Yes sir,

Q.~-Vhat positions? A,--Been deputy sheriff, Ranger and
County Judge,

Q.==Where did you live when you were County Judge? A,=-
Skulliyville, County,

Qe.==Where did you hold Court? A,--Choctaw Wation, Buck
Creek,

Q.~=You know Peter Xrebsg, the witness who has just testif ied”

A,~--Yes sir,

Q.~=3tate about how far from him you lived , when you were
a boy? A,--Growed up with Peter "rebs, at the {ime
lived seven or eight miles of me, end then other times

he lived closer, end other times he livea off, e was
orphan boy, 11ved with his mother, When she lived he lived

with her s and when she died he drirtad

around.

Q.==Who did he live with when he lived in about eight mnaﬁ
of you? A,--7 don't know whether it was his uncle or
aunt, T believe his name was Ward Folsom,

N.~~Some relative of his? A,--Ves sir,

Qe~=Did vou know him then, xmxkmxfx A,~-Peter,

Q.~-Yes 8ir? A,--¥o glr, didn't know him at that time,



0.~~7id you know of him at that time? A,~~No sir .

Q.~--About how long have you known Peter? A,--He didn't live
over there until his mother died, and they moved him over

to hls uncle's Nat Krebs, closer, that is the first time
I commenced to mow him,

Qe~~Did vou know an Indian man at about the time that Peter
Krebg liver over at Ward Folsom's rmmmidxxxx by the
name of Tewis? A,~~That all his neme, Tewis,

Q.--"ell T was going to ask yvou if he had any other nane
if vou knew that man® A,--Didn't know & man named Tewis,

Q.==Did vou know @sn Indian man by the name of Eyouhonatubbee?

A,~-Yes sir,

Qe~=What kind of a looking man was he?® A.--Heavy set man
looked to be a full blood Indian,

Q.==What tribe of Indian if you know did he belong? A, -~
Choctaws,

Q.=~Did he have any other nmme besides Eyouhonatubbee? A,-~-

A,~=T.owils Byouhonatubbes,

Q.~-Do vou know whe ther Tewis was his his given name or
Engl ish name® A,.-~No sir,

Qe=~You den't know that? A,--N¥o sir ,

G.~-Dégeribe that man FRyovhonatubbee zg well as you can? A,=-~
He wasm & small man, square built, weight sbout one hund-
red and forty pounds,

Q.~~About what aged msn was he then? A,--1 could not say.
Judg ing those old Tndisns is pretty hard,

0.,-=Vou gcan make & guess at it? A,~--1 judge him to be about
forty years old, had a few greay hairs, sbout forty,
them Indians turn a little gray.

Q.=--How long since you saw him, sbout how long? xkrxxRestxx
of xmeyrxxmernkwactinm pockineme Fx g amx foatomar r rxxxxxxx  best
af your recollection sgince yvou saw that man, about
how manv years? A,-~T cannot say. It was sbout seventy-
five or seventy-six when that man ome to our place ,

that ig wvhen T first got acquainted with them,

Q.~=Come there once or did vou see him often® A,~-Lived
there some then go,

Qe=~Enow where he lived? A,--No sir,

Q.~="on't know where his wife was?® A,--¥Wo sir,

Q.--About how long ago since vou last sew him, sbout how
many years? A,--jbout twenty-nine or thirty years, I
guess,

Qe==D0 yvou know what became of him when he left? A,-~This
country, wvou mean,

Qe~~Yes sir® A,-~He went back to Wissilsgippi,

Q.==D0 you know what became of him after he went back there?

A,=-T heard he died in Mississippi,

Q.~~De vou know whether he hed any chil dren?® A,-~Yes gir,

Qe=~Vhat was the name of his children A,~-~T don't know he
had a boy, the bov was named Lewis Eyouhonatubbee,

Q.==D0 yvou know whether he had a wife or not? A,--NWo sir,

Q.-~Ye lad & son? A,~~1 didn't know at that time he hed a
son until lately, less than ten or twelve years this
Tewis Eyouhonatubbee, I spoke @ out proved to be the old
man's son,

Q.~~What do you know sbout him, A,~--Tewis Fyouhonatubbee?

Q.~~Yes sir, A.-~Thet iz his chilld's neame, that is how I
came to now Wkmyxkx here the lsst few years is sbout his ‘
son, Sidney Eyouhonatubbe, that is old man Ryovhonatubbee's

grand son, he would be I guess, I think that 1s what
they c¢all it now in my neighborhood & good deal, and boys
they got to ealling this yowng feller Sid Tewls, and



T made inguirdies, T didn't know whe he was, Te was s full
hleod, and T saked him whose boy he was, snd he said
Tewis Wyouhonatubbee, end sald the Boys called him

S8idnsy Tewis,

Qy==did vou x mother and fether when vou were a boy about
the plage sbout the size of this boy spesk Choctaw or

Fnglish? A,~~Spoke Choctaw,

Qe=~Tf this man Eyouhonsatubbe had an English neame you

;. didn't mow it at that tine? A,--¥o sir,

De==If he hed an Fnglish name would she call him Fnglish

name or Choctaw? A,~~Called him Ch ctaw, she coulden't
gpeak English,

Be=~And 4if she had known to have an Engl sh name and &

Choctaw name she woull have called him the Choctaw name?

A~~Ves sir,

Oe~-Do you know what the customs were in those days for full
blood Choctaws who ad names that were hard to spell to
*xfexxx tdke Fnglish names or not, tell the court
whet vou know about them taking different nemes? A,-=-

Of course they didn't make & practice of that, but
then in writing some people would spell it different,
and that mskes that diffsrence,

¥y, Cominh:

T have been listening for gsome time for something
to show what Mr, Harley 1is secking to get ocut, As the
me ter stands now there ie no possible relevancy of
this testimony,

JUDGE ADAMS:

T suppese he is trying to show that this mans English
name was Tewis,

Mr, Harley:

Mr,

¥r.

¥r,

¥r,

My purpose in introducing thie witness iz that
the description of the man Frovhonatubbea is the same
a8 the description of Peter Krebs of s man called Lewis,
and he ssys that this man was called Tewis Eyovhonatubbee
and my purpose is to get that before the Court so that
ther can determine whether he is the same man deserib-
as Narcus Lewis, that both dissppeared at sbout the
game time, showing that he hud sn Indian nsme snd an Eng=

lish name,
Cornish:
To show that the men who signed that psper had a reasl
existance®
Harlay:
Yes sir,
Cornish;
That would not be in order wntil that wes controverted, - i
T don't think that the c¢harge has been made thst that
man hid no existence, Until that is made that testimony
would not be in order,
Warley.



That Dan Lewis was als¢ the husband of the applicant
in this casge,

- JUDGE ADANS:

You have got an affidavit signed by ¥arcus Tewis, and

you are now trying to show that he had amxfmxxx Chovtaw
name.,

Mr, Harley:

Yes sir., For the information of the Court T will
ask if Choctaws having hsard names sometimes take English
names? Answer that? A,~=Wall Choctaw nameeg are hard
to spell, I men can't tell whether he spells it risht

or not 80 they give them English nsames in spelling these
names

JUDGE WOOTE:

I8 that the general custom or just occcasionally?
A.--We will say some neighbor come to me snd want me to
write & letter, and T would write the letter in Fngliash
& and comé fto the nsme I coulden't spell it, and T say
T can't spell that name, and T put it down and tell
them that in the letter T tell them how to back it, and
then yvou can get the mail in that name,

¥Mr, Harley:

D.-=Can you give the name of any person who chamged his
name for the purpose of getting it =o it could be spelled?
A,-~T1 guess I could,
Q.==Know & man naned Jim Darmell? A,--Yes sie,
Q.==He a Choctew® A,-~Ves sgir,
Qe.-=Had he any other name that you know of? A,--¥ot now,
but befors the war broke out Jim Darnell used to go
by the name of Jim Twan, and since the war he goes by the
name of Jim Damell,
Qe=-How that happen? A,~~1 was mmkxhmrecckhrss o
home three yzars ago, and we were ﬂitt infr me talking
old aunt came down tcs see me, =nd we got to talking
gbout Jim Darnell, end T sald he was getting petty old,
and then my aunt spoke up and said who is this Jim
Darnell and some lady that knew sald that is Jim Twan,
that is the neme he used to go by, and she said she
never would have knowned him by that nane,
Q.==Will you try to spell this name, try to spell it best
you ean? A,--Eyouhonatubbee,
Q.~=vou stated & while ago that vou were informed that
this man died in Misissippi, how do you get thet infor-
mation? A,-~I got that infomation from mother, The
Choctaws were emicrating from Wigsiesippi, coming out
here to get land in the Chickasew Yation,

¥r, Cornish:

We have not objec ted where we might have, but the
witnesses own statemnts is that his mother is living,
and he seeks to reflect statements made by his own mother,

I dont't see how under sny circuns ances it could be
competent,



Mr. Harlev:

Q.--Did you have any direct infomation from Mississippi?
A.~-Yes sir.
JUDGE ADAMS:

Q.,~-Trie d to find out if this man was dead. As==T1 heard
he wenr back to Mississgippil and died.

CROSS-EYAMINATION,
¥r. Corni sh, ‘

Qe~=When did you first see this man Eyouhonatubbee? A,--
A.~~It was about seventy-five or seventy-six,
Q.~=That is when you firgt sew him, when did vou last sce
him® A.-=TLong about then,
D.~=Vou mean to say you saw him only a short while? A,=-
Well vou see Eyouhonatubbe came out here in thirty-three
rmig rated with the Choctaws,
Q.==1 want to know when you first saw him® A,~-Seventy-five
or seventy-six,
Qo=-When did vou last sece him A,--About the same year,
Qe=-Then vou saw him just in one year? A,-~Yes sir,
0.=~How many times did vou see him? A,-~Twice,
G.==In the year 1875 you first saw him and last saw him
in the saem year nd saw him twice® A,-~Ves sir ,
Q.~=Vou didn't know anvthing aes to whether he had a family
or not? A,--No sir, ‘
Q.==Don't know whether he had children or not ? A,-~Not at
that time,
Q.~=Came into ths country =znd went back? A,~--Yes sir drifted

Qe==vou don't know that thils man you are spesking sbout
is the same man that Mr, EKrebs is talking about? A,--
No &ir,
Qe==Don't imow that he ever went by any ¥nglish name? A,~-=~
No sir,
Witness excused,

Mr, warley:

The testimony of these three witnesses would properly
belong in the case of "reeton Rerly, et al, because
there ars where the questions of marriage come, This

varticular evidence is to ghow that they complied
with the Choctaw lews, this particular evidence we think

should be tracribed in that one case,

JOSEPY W, EEVARDS, being called as
& witness on behalf of plaintiffs, testifled as follows,

DIRECT EX AMINATION,
¥r. Harley:

Q.~~8t ate vour name® A,~-Joseph W, Rdwards,

Q,==Vou & married man® A,--Ves sir,

Q.~~5tate the name of vour wife? A,-~-Ophelia S, Fdwards,

Q.==What was her name bef ore vou married her Ophelia Tewis,

Q.==%"hat reletion if any was she to Zora P, Lewis? A,--
Her daughter,



Qe=~Qe~~Fhere were you and your wife married Mr, Tdward's
the firmat time? A,-~Narried in Arkansas,

Q.~~At that time you were not mmrried in aceordunce with the
Chectaw laws? A,-- No sir,

Qe==Were you mnd vour wife subsequently married? A.--Yes
air.

Q.--You remember when that was?® A,--1899, August 3rd,

Qe=~~Where were you married that time? A,--Down at lit le
- town Xosoma, Cedar County.

Qe~=-Did wyou get & certificate from the Choctew authorities
showing that vou were married wnder the Choctaw laws?

A.,~~Yes sir,

Q.=-there ie that certificate? A,--Dawes Commission,

Qe~=You afterwards i ed yvour azpplication to be admitted as
an intemearried citizen? A,-~-Yes sir,

Q.~~And with that you filed vour marrisge certiricate? A,-~
Yeg oir,

Q,~~Tt is now in the custody of the Dawes Commigdion or
Secretary? A.,--Yes sir,

D.==Vou are still living with your wife, Ophelia S, Fdwards?

A.,~~Yes sir,

C.,~=In your second merrisge vou complied full with the
Choctaw lews® A,~Ves sir,

CROSS-FETANTMA TION,
¥r. Cornish:

Qe.=~When were you married first® A,~--Seventy~five,

0.,-=Then you lived with yourwife from wvour first marriage
in seventy-five up to ninety~nine and theh vou procured a
Ghectaw license? A,--Ves sir,

Q.~-That was after your wife hai been sdwitéed by the Unit-
ed States Court® 2A,--Ves sir.

Q.==Tare were vou living when vou mede this application
in ninety-six® A.~-Arkensas,

Q.~=How much land 4id you own? A,--Right or nine hundred
seres.

D,~=Where was that situa ed? A,--Franklin County, Arkansas,

Qe=-When did yousell out and move to th Territory? A, --Mov-
ed to the Territery in ninety-eight, I believe,

Q.=~Then at the time this application was filed vou were &
resident of the Stute of Arkenses and County of Franklin,
agd owned eight or nine hu dred acres of land? A,--Yes
S r.

Qe.==You voted there? 4,~-Yes sir,

N.~=Held off ipe there? A,--Yes sir.

O.~~Children attended public schools? A,-~Ves sir,

O.-~Paid taxes? A,--Yes sir,

Q.~=You vouself an appliceant,

¥r, Harley:

Aprlicent by intermarrisge, He meade his zppiication

in ninetyssix and was denied by the United States Court
on account of his failure to comply with the Choctaw
laws, he subsequently went before the Choctaw authorlties
and proecured - license and remarried,

JUDGRE ADANS:
¥is wife, sdmitided his wife as an Indian before and re-



jected him on the ground that he had not canplied with the
Choctaw laws,

¥r. Harley:

Yes sir,
Titness excused,

PRESRON WARLY, being called as & witness
on behalf of the plaintiffs, testifled as follows:

DTIRECT BSAMUNWATION,
¥Mr, Harley:

G.=~Qtate vour name? A,--Preston Early,
¥r, Varley:

T think wr, Warly didn't teke out a second licenase,
go we will excuse him,

CROSS FXAMIWATION,
r. Cornish;

B,=-You didn't procure & license under the Choctaw 1aws
when you married vour wife? A.,--¥¢ sir,
Witnesge excused,

WILTIAM H, GUVRER, being called as wiiness on
behalf ef the plaintiffs, fook the stand,

DIRFCT BXANIN AT ION,
¥r, Harlsy:

D.,~~3tate your name? A,-~-Williax H, Guyer.

Q.,=-You are one of the applicants in this case? A,~-VYes
sir,

Q.==¥arried man? A,-~Ves sir,

Q,«-What is vour wife's name® A,--Zora Guyer,

Q.~~What was her neme t» fors vou married her 9 A,-~Zo0ra A,
IJ@Wig.

Q.-=Who was her mother? A,--3arah,lewis,

D.=~Who was her father? A,--T can't give you his given
name, his sir neme was Adans,

Qe==Vour wife's father® A,-~¥is nane was FRdward V. Lewis,

Q.==You and vour wife married twice? A,~-YVes sir,

Q.,=-Where were vou married first time? A,~-Unived States
Clerk'a office here at South MoAlester, :

Qe==Tidn't marry at that time according to the Choctaw laws?

A,==Wo sir,

Q.==After ards marry her in accordance with the Choctaw
laws® A,--Yes salr,

Q.~=Do vou remember about when that was Mr, Juyer® A,=-
About the last days of August, I bel leve,

Qe==What year? 4,--Winety=nine,

0.,--Get vour license and comply with the other requirements
of the Choctaw law with reference 10 marrying Choc taw
women? A,--Ves sir,

Q.==-Did yeou receive 8 certificate from the Choctaw authori-



ties® A,--Yes sir,

Qe=="hat did you do with vour gcertificate? A,~~Turned it
over Lo the Tawes Commission,

Qe==Now in the custody of the Commission or the Seceratary or
some off icer of the Interior Department? A.~-~Yes sir,

Qe~~You afterwards made application to the Dawes Commission
as an intermarried citizen safter vou married the sec md
4 ime : A,=~Ves sir,

Q§.~-‘$§0ur certificate is attached tc those papers? A,--Yes
gir.

Q,~~TLiving with your present wif* A,-~YVes sir,

CORSS~FEYAM IN AT ION,
Mr. Comish:

Qe=~In what year were you first married” A,«-Rirst married
in ninety-eight,

Q.==Nidn't get a Choctaw license then? A,-~No air,

Q.==Why not, wou knew vour wife was a Choctaw? A,--Wife
was not enrolied then,

Q,--After & r marrizge under the United Syvates law, her
application was disposed of, her application wes granted
to enrollment, and in pursusnce of that vou applied
to the Choctaw authorities for a license? A,--Ves sir,

¥r, Harley:

Were you eén applicent in ninety-six? A,--¥o sir,
“r. Cornish;

Qe==Then vour claim was not before the Dawes Commiss lon in
ninety=-six® A,-=-%o sir.
Witne ss excused.

JESSE B, VATHIS, being called as a wit-
ness on behalf of the defendants, testified as follows:

DIRFCT EYAMINATION,
¥r., Comish:

Qe==Vhat 18 your full name? A,--Jesse B, Mathis ,

Qe~¢Vhere do vou live? A,--Nine miles NWortheast of Shawnes,
Oklahoma Territory.

Q.=~How o0ld are yo u? A,~~Fifty=-scven.

Qe==Whnat is your nationszlity, white man or Indian? A, ~--
Suprosed to be & white man.

Q.=~No! a citiz n of the Cheectaw Wation®? A.--No sir,

0.=-Did you know & man by the name of Jemes Madison TLewis?

A,~~Yeas 8ir,

Q.=~Where did you first get acquainted with him ¢ 4,~-=In
Arkanssg,

Q.--Vhat County? A.--Sebastain County.

Q.~~In #bout what year® A,--Seventy- or seventy~-one,

O,~-How long 4id veou continue to be acquainted with him,
how long did vou continue to know him? A,--Well about
seveéen vears,

Qe==Wh &t became of him at the end of that £ime? 4A.--Fe died,

O.-=You knew him sbout gsven yearg® A,~-Ves sir, perhsaps
a little longer, that is perhape sbout the time, We
was just on the line of Arkmmsas and the Territory.


http://Jam.es

Qe==That vounger members of the family besides Jemes Madison
Tewis?®? A,~-Three boys,
Q.-—«Nama them® A,~-Fdward and '!“homass, 1 don't know that

t’wev oalled nie W‘h@at T don't rmO'?‘ wh e thw thm was his
name or not,

Qe=~T will ask you if during all those vears in which you
knew James Madison Tewis and his family, from the time
of wvour first anquamtama with them old man up to his
death, did you ever hear any claim upon his part that he
was a fhoctaw Indian? A,))¥o sir .,

Qe=~TJust where did he live in Sebastain County all theat
time? A,~-Wearly right due South of Fort Smith, about
ten Or eleven miles,

0,--Near what post office? A,-=1t wag called Hackett City,

Q.=~What did he and his family do for a living? A,--Farmed,

Q.~-Did he own land? A,-~Ves gir, T think so,

0.,~-Tt is vour understanding that he lived on land which he
owned?® A,--Ves sir,

N.,~~Was he a citizen of the cState of Arkemsas, and did he
otherwise exercise the rights end privileges 0" a citizen

of the State of Arkansas? A,--T1 think he did,

Q.~=Nid vou have anvy differences with them® A,~-¥o sir,

N,==T will ask you if vou knew anything & out thisg family
further back than vour acyua intance with the o0ld man

in the early seventies® A,--Wo sir,

Qs==Don't ¥no who his mother was? A,~-¥o sir,

O,~=Mig Ffather® A,~-¥o gir,

De=-"now enything about his ancestors? A.~-No sir,

0.,==%now nothing about his having Choctaw blood or not hay-
ing Choeetaw blood® A,--¥o sir,

0,~~There i with the papers a. affidavits that purports to
be sn affidavit s igned by vou, in which is contained the
statement: "The applicents, Hdward ¥, Tewis and others
are the Children of Jemes M, lewis, and a grand son of

Sussanna King, who was a Choctaw Indilan by blood ." Did
vou make Scm*" statement? A,--Vever did,

N,==Did vou know a woman néamed Susanna King? A.--No sir,

Qo==Did wou hear of & woman nsmed Susanna ¥ing? 4 ,~-Tot

mt il recently,

0.=-1 unde rgtand vou to say and from the information you
have you could not have made that statemet ? A,~- Tes
sir,

Oe=~T will ask you f vou were brought by these people
and their representatives and requested to mk & state-
maent on their behalf? A,--1 mad. an affidavit as %o
thei~ identify,

Q.==State to the Court what they requested you to do? A,--
wented to know if I could meke an affidavit as to whether
they wsre James ¥, Tewis's children,

Q. -eWhat reply did vou meke to that request? A,~-I told them

that T could identify them as being his childr n.

O.,==-Then T understand vou to emy that vou told them that
vou knew them to be the sons of the old man Tewis you
had “nown® A,=-Knew the m to be around the family, #nd
he recognized them as his children, you misht consider
that T knew them back in Mississippi, but I kmew them

after they cane here,

Qe=-Where did this conversation take plece? A, ~-CShawnee,

Oklahoma Territory.

Q.--"hat was there representing these claimants in the

capacity of attorney? A,~-~FPeller named Arnold,



0.==Remember his first neme® A,--T dontt ballieve I could

chll it,

Q.~=1 will agk you if it was J, ¥, Arnold or Jmmes ¥,
Arnold?® A,-~7 coulden't call him br that name,

Q.~-What was his appearance as to race, what kind of a man

was he? A,--He looked to me like he mirht hiwve cone ider-
able A rican blood, he clsined to be a Choctaw,
Qe==T will ask you who did the writing ? A,-~As8 I under-
stand that Wotary go and you tell them what ou
COU-ldt

Q.~-5tate now who prepared the af idavit? A,--This man
‘Arnold,

Qe==Who read it? I T think he read it, Perhaps T read
it myse¥, I would not be positive, I was sitting by him
when he was msking 15 out,

Q:=-Was the statement written out entirely or was some of
it in typewriting® A,--Part of it was in typewriting, is
the form, I think thst he wrote =zame of it himself,

CGe==T will zsi you if the statement which you signed contain-

ed the gtatement that vou knew Susan ¥ing 2nd that she
was a Choctaw Indian® A,--No sir,

Qe==It it hed conteained that statement yould you have
signed 1t? A.,--Wo sir

JUME wOOTHE;

0.~=7 understand vou Lo say that that stetement was not
in there? A,--¥o sir, if it was he didn't resd it to
me ,

Mr, Cornish:

As bearing on his testimony and for the purpose of
identifving the statement and showing what the contention
of the Watione is we wish to make ref rence t- his
aff idavit as it appears in the record, the same , the
sane purporting to hsve been sworn to before W, W, Ives,

The Court will observe that the form is made with a
tyvpewriter and that the positive statements ars made with
a pen, that ‘he statements sre made with a pen, wheread
the balance is in tvpewriting.

Mr
CROSS~FEXAMIN AT ION,

¥Mr, Harley:

Q,==You did mske an &ffidavit in this ecass hefors W, W.
Ives, & Wotary Public, did you? A,~~1 cannot be
positive who the Notary was, I don't remember his name,
Qe==Vou made it in Shawnee® A,--Ves sir I made an affidavit
Yes mir.
Qe~~Amd this is dated 18th day of August, ninety-six, do
vou raemember that yvou mad: an affidavit about that time?
A.,~~Ves sir,
Qe~~Y0u can read? A,-~7 think I do,
Q.~=You can read® A,.--Yes sir,
O.,~~Would not sign en affidavit without reading it over? A,=-
WMo sir,
Qe==You remember that y w read over the affidavit? I don't
think T did.
0.==7 understood you to say while ago that you read it
over, did vou read over what you signed® A,--Yes sir,
0.==Dec vou reerber when vou read over the affidavit that
vou sighed, whether there was some typewriting in it



like this, snd whether the blanks were filled out® A,-~
Te forms were all written out on & typewriter and it
had several beinks in here, Blanks not all filled out,

Ge=~It it had not beesn filled out &t thet {time it would not

haye made sense would 1t, "Reads affidevit®,

Q.== ¥ you would leave out %i»x that it would not meke sense?

A,~~Ho sir,

Qe==Do you think all of that was written with a pen or

was part of written with & typewriter® A,-~Part of
it was written with a pen,

Q.=-Could you tell the Court how much &f it? A,-~I know
I never knew Mrs, Xing, :

Qe-=Take that and tell how much of i% has been fllled in?
(vands affidavit to witness)? A,==Ths alffidavit that
I made, there was nothing in regard to the grand son of
Susan Fing in it &t all,

Qe==Vou are sure that when vou signed it it didn't centain
that statement that he was the grand son of Susan
Xing? A.~~Yes sir,

Q.==T0 you remamber who was pr esent when you signed this
affidavit? A,~-T remember lr, Pres Rarly, Fd Tewils,
Georgeé Me ¥ibben and this feller Arnold and another,

Q.~~Wagen't it Wocd Arnold® 4A,=-Yes sir,

Q.~~W%ho was the one who saw you with reference to getting
this affidavit? A,~-Woodson, or something 1like that,

Qe-=-Do you know whether this is the Wotary!'shhand writing
or not® A,~-This man Woodson wrote it,

Qe~=Woodson Arnold®* A.-~Yesg sir,

Qe=~The part that he wrote with a pen you seen? A,--Ves sir

Q.-~That &Ll appears to be one hand writing dosen't it® A,~ -
1 believe it is,

Qe==Md thisz "Yand the grand son of Susanna King", you are
confident that that was not in the affidavit because
you didn't have that ‘mowledge at the time? A,~--Ves sir.

Qe~=Can vou tell you pogitive whether this writing wase

done by the Yotarvy or Arnold? A,--He did some of the
wrting, but I can't say who done, 1t bhecauie there
is gome that 7 didn't seen.

Qe~=1 mean the part that you think was there when you signed
it? A,--Woodson Arnold,

Qe==That is vour signsture? A,--lcoks like my signature,

JUDGE VWEAVER:

Qe-~Took at it cearefully and state to the court if you
beliwyve it is vour signatufe® A,-=-It is my signature,

¥Mr, Harley:

Qe==D1d you write that? A,-~Yes sir, the way I spell my
nsme,
Q.~-While ago I understand you to say that you knew old .
man Tewis for about seven years in Arkmsas? A,--Yes sir,
Q.=-*Do you r& ember when he cme there? X,--T don't know,
Q.-~To refresh your memory, T +ill ask you if it wasent
seventy-one? A,--Ves sir, 1 think it was,
Q.~-T will ask you if he didn't reach the country in seventy~-
r seventy-one? A,--1 would not be positive,
Qe==T will ask wvou if it isen't a fact that he died there
in geventy five, T don't thin that it is , we died
near the Canadisn River,
Q.~~"e died in se-enty-five? A,--T deon't think it was that
scon,



Q.~~Are vou W able to say that he didn't die in seventy-five’
A.»~No sir,
Q.-~If he did die in seventy-five, you would not have known
him geven years? A,--Wo gir, T dentt thin he died
in seventy=-five,

¥r, Comish:

Q.-=T will ask vou if you sare able to state positively

" that that signatura to the paper which hag been exhibited
to you %b in fact your signature* A,~=Tt looks very much
like i

Q.==Just sign your nme there? (Witness signs nsme on
plece of paper,

¥y, Comish:

I offer this paper as & part of the testimony of
this witness, and ask that it be marked Exhibit
The same was signed in the presence of the Cour®,

Mr, Harley:
Q,.-wl' will a.-ak you xmxxx if you ever aald ta enybody,

dollam tcs an«body to k get this casa deafeated" A,»=Wo
gsir,
Ge~=Never mede that statement to anybody? A,--No sir,
never did.
Witness excused,

JACOB 8., BENDER, being called as a
witness on behalf of the defendants, testiflied as follows

TIRECT EXAMINATION,
Mr, Comish:

De~=State your full name® A,--Jacocb S, Render,

Q.~=What iz vour age”? A,-~Forty-six,

Q.~=Where do vou live? A,~=Up near Chawnee, "klahoma Teri-

Q.~~How long have you lived in that country? A,--Eleven
JEBrs .,

Q.*bj*ﬁh«arrf did you live prior to vour removal to Oklehoma? -

A.--Creek Yat ion,

Q.==Did you ever llve in Arkansas, A,~-Ves sir,

0,-~What County® A,--cebestain County.

Qe==7 will ask you if while living in «ebastain County
Arkensas yvou became acquainted with & man nemed James
Medison Tewils? A,--Ves sir,

Q.-~What year? A,--Somewhere near 1870,

Qs~~Did he have a family® A,~-Ves sir,

Q.~~Mention the membe rz of his feamily as you remember it?

A,~eHe had a wife,

Q.~="hat was her nane? A,--Zora, I think,

Q.=-Know the sons? A,--7d Tewis, Tom lewis, Dave lewis,
Theat Tewis, T belleve they called him Whea!, I don't
know whether he had any other name besides that or not.

Qe.=~How long did this family of people continue to live
in that County? A.--Three or four years, probably five,

Q.==About when did the old man dile? A,--It was in, probably



seventy-aix, somevhere about then,

Q.==Where did you live with reference toc them? A,--I liwd
also In Arkansas,

Qe=~How far from them®? A --Eighty or ninety miles,

Qe==What ~omty did you live in? A.--Sebastain ¢ iunty,

Q.~~And they lived in sebastain County® A.,~~Wen he dled.

Q.~~How far did vou live from them when you both livedin

. Sebastein County? A,=-Four cr filve miles,

Q.~=Did the o0ld man own land? A,=~T1 think he ovmed land
over there his boys lived with him at that time, some
of them did T don't know whether all of them did or not,

Q.,~~From the time of wyour first scquaintance with the misdxx
family up to the 0ld mens death, did you ever heard any
claim by them or on their be hal?f that thevy were Choctaw
Tnd ians, Wo sir, never did,

0.~=-Did you peraonally know the history of this family
before tie v came to Arkansas® A,--No sir,

0.,~=Did vou know his father and mother? A,--¥o sir,

Qe**Do 5{011 mow mvthing sbout him or his smcestéty? A,=~
Wo sir,

Q.=-~Did you know = woman in Mississ ppri or &nywhere else
named. Susanna Ting? A,--Yo air,

Q.==¥r, ,ender therc is in this case, filed by the appli-
cants whet purports tc be an effidevit s igned and swom
to by you on the 18th day of August, 1895, in which is
contaie d this statenent: "Jaco 8, Pender, being first
duly sworn states that he is personally acquainted with
Fdward M, Lewis, and knows him to be the persm he repre
sents himself to be", Now then follows this statemen t:
"that applicants are the sons of James I, Lewis and the
grand son of Svsanna Wing, who was a Choctaw Indian by
blood" "1d you make the statement he was the grand son
of Susama Ting? A,--¥Wo gir,

O,~~Could you haeve made that statenent and have made & © ue
statement? A,-=¥o sir,

Q,==Did not have anv infomeation or knmowledge of her at
that time® ) -=wever saw the woman,

Q,-~Will ask vou if these applicants or their aittomeys
came and talked to yvou about glving some sort of &
gta tement for them? A,--NWo answer,

Q.=-Did they ask vou to 8ipn an affidavit for them? A==
Yes I guess they did,

Q.~=-Just relate to the Court what telk you had with them,
with reference to what you knew szbout it? A,~-TWanted
me to identify this Bdward V, Tewls as the son of James
¥, Lewis,

Q.~~What reply did vou meke® A,=--T1 told him that he was
the son of that man,

Q.==You told them vou could make a stateent that so far as
you knsﬂw he wag the son of the man ycu had known in Se=-
bastain County, Arkansas® /,~-Veg sir, James M, Tewis,

Qo~-Where was thig affidavit mede?® ©hawnee,

Q.,~="ho was present® A,~-Thy there was a good meny, all
the applicants,

Qo~=Q.~=Who seemed to be there ss thelr lawyer or legsal
representative? A,--Think he callkd himself Arnold,

Q.=~pemember his fird neme® A,~~7 think they called him
Joe, 1 don't remember,

Qe==What nationality was he, what kind of & men was he?

A ==Dark complected man,

Q.--Wat was he a8 to race, what race did he belong 10? A,~-~-



T heard he was a nsgro, I have heard it talked up
there that he was,

Q.~~The =tatement that he hed there was that all written out
or wag part of if with & typewriter? A,--Part with a
typewritert,--Was that reed to you or did you & read it
yourself, how was the contents of that placed before you?

Ai~=Arnold re:d 1it,

Q,==Did he or did he not read to wvou the gstatement that

this man was the grand son of Susanna Xing, and that she was
& Choctaw Tndien bw blood? A.-~He d4id not,

Q.==If he had what would have besn yvour action? A,~--1
could not have signed it,

CROSS-FEYAMINATTON,

Mr. Harley:

Q.==You can resd® A,-~Ves gir,

0.=-Is that vour signsture® (Vends paper to witness)?

Ae==T think it is,

Qe==You know whether it is or not, don't you? A,~--1 think
it is best of v knowledre,

Q.==Would you say it was vours® A,--Best of my knowledge,

Q.~-Nid vou put your signature there without read ing what
wag in there® A,--T1 told him to read it,

Qe==Tould vou xzx aign an affidavit without reading it? A,=-
T have done 1it,

Q.,==-You state to the court that vou have signed this affidav-
it wi‘iheuf read ins it? A,=-Ves sir,

JUIGE FOOT®:
Qev~He read it to you® /,==-Ves sir,
¥r, Harleyv:
Qe==~Who did the writing? A.--Arnold,
¥r. Cormish
Q.~-1I will ask you if wvou s=igned that in the belief that
he had correctly read it to you®
M¥r, parley:
We object, that is a le ading question,
Witness excusad,
HETTIE MATITDA HICKS, being calléd as &
witness on behalf of the defendants, took the stand.
DIRECT EXAMINATION,
Mr, comish:

Q.~~What is vour full name, ¥rs, Ticks? A,--Vettie Matilda
Hicks,

Q.=="her: do vou live? A,--twelve miles West of “hecotah,

Qe=-Hugband living® A,--¥o sir, dead,

Q.,~=Vhat is his name?® A,~~-Thomas R, Wicks,

Q.==Were yvou living at Checotah, eight years ago ? ¥mxx A,-~-
o sir, T wasen't living where I now live,

Q.~=Were you living in that neighorhood? A,--~Ves sir.



Q.==T will ask vou If vou knew in his life time a man
named Tames Madison Tewis® A,--Ves sair,

Qe*="hat was the name of his wi.fe? 4,-=-70ra P, lewis,

Q.-~%hat was the nae of his sons? A,-~Ed lewis, Tom Lewis
and another one,

Q.~=Then did you first get acquainted with this old man
and his family?® A,--Qu ite a while ago, must have
been somwheres along about 1870,

Qe=-"here were vou living at the time?  A,~-Sebastian Qounty
- Arkansas,

Q.~==Now long 41l vou contue to know the ¢ld man? A,-~-
tbout four or five years, SComewhers along there,

Q.~~T will ask you if from the time of your first asquaint-
ance with thie old ma end his family, up to the old
mans death, did you hear him clain that he was a Choctaw

Indian® 4,--Wo sir, Wever talked with them on their
blood, Wever heard that they was until their case, T
seen it in the pspers, when they entered their case,

Q.~=Was that b:fore or after the 0ld man eath? Al--After,

Q.~=-Did you have sy acquaintance with this man and his
family prior to 18707 A,~-No sir,

Q.==Did vou have @y knowledge @bout them prior to when
you met them in Sebastain County? A.~-No sir,

Qe==Know his father or mother? A,-~Wo sir,

Ne==rrave no personal knowledge about their family history?

L,==N0o sir,

Q.==¥now & women nemed Susama Xing? A.--No sir,

Q.,~-Thers is with the papers in this a-e a paper which pur-
ports to be your affidavit, in which appears this state~-
ment: "Fettie Wicks, being first duly sworn states that

she 18 personally acquginted with James Madison Tmwxx

and Zora P, Tewis. and kxnown them to be man and wife,
and also knew hid t6 be the son of Smsanna Xing, & full
blond Choctew woman." Did you make that statement?

A.~=No gir,

Q.~-Will agk +vou if these people cane to you snd talked to
you about their citizenship case? No¢ sir,

Qe=-"hat talk did they have with you? A,~--Present at
Shavnee when they was putting down their names, and
then they asked me if 7 would witness the papers as to
them being the sons of JTemes M, Lewis, and I put my
neame down there,

Q.~=They asked yvou t0o witness that they were the same per-
sceng that you knew in Sebastain County, Arkensas? A,--

Yes ¢ ir,

Qe==Vou intended to do that and nothing more? A,--No 8ir,
T did not intend my name to vitness anvthing more than
that because T did not know that,

Qi~~Was that statement read over to you? A,--No sir,

T didn't pay x muc attention to it at the time,
big # crowd there and &ll talking, and had to prove
that they were same Tewis.

Qe==Did you understend that you were taking an oath? A,--
Yes sir, X but T didn't hunderstand that T waes a

witness to anythirg else,

Q.~=Vou underatood that you were to witness that these people
were the same people you ‘mew down there? A,--Ves sir,

D.=+=D0 you know whether these people ever claimed to have
any Indian blood or not? A.--¥o sir, T do not know,

Q.=~Your husband, he is dead? A,--Yes sir,

Q.=~There is also 2 peaper which pur;orts to be signed by
vour husbend, was your husband present that day® A.--

Xo sir,



A,-=-7 signed that paper in Checotah, I. T,, and the time
I signed in Shawnee, Oklehoma, I just put my name
dowvn as Vettie Wick, I didn't s&y whether I was ¥iss or
not, and the papers were brought ack and yr, Farly dbrought
them to our house, and mv husband and .7 went bafore &
Wotary Public snd signed tham again,

Q.==Did your husband dnow any more sbout these people thean
vou did so feras you kn w? A,--Never remember hearing

; him say whether they were Indians or not,

Q.==vou were not merried whe' vou first knew them® A,--
¥No sir, ;

0,==Where wa vour husband raised? A,--Brought from
Tennessee to Arkensas when he was a small boy,

Q.= -There did he first get scquainted with this family?

Mr, Harley:
That ie hesar SRV,
wr, Cormish:

I thouwh in jwstice te *the dea this statement ought to
be mede,

CROSS-EY A INATION,
Vr, warlev:

O.~-How 0l1d zre vou® A,--Forty~-one xemxx years old,
Q.~=~How 0ld were yvou when vou first knew old man Tewis® A, -~
Toan't hardly tell yvou, T wasen't grown,
Q,~~Wagsen't growm? A,--No gir, T wasen't hardly grown,
Q.~=vere vou over fiftean? A:«-1 donr't know vhether T was
or not,
Q.-=Dontt remember whether you were over or under fifteen?
A, ~=%o sir, ¥ Quite & while ago,
Q.=~How wag it that you told the Court that it was seventy
or seventy-one that--% 7T said seventy,
Q.~=How can vou ramembar that when you don't remember how
old you were? A,--1 can cownt 1t up,
Q.=="ell how 0ld wers you? A.~-Put me back quite a small
girl wasen't quite fifteen yearas old,
Q.==T wish vou would stzte to the court how o0ld you ware
when vou filrst knew these Tewis, vou was just six or seven
years old wasen't vou®? A,--Somewheres along there,
Qe=~How can vou remember that 1 ¢t was in seventy, seventy~-
two or seventy-five that vou first knew them, if you were
only seven vears old then®” A.,~-T said that wa along
about the time T knowed them, and I wasen't grown when
they moved away,
Q.-=Vou wasen't fifteen when they moved away from there?
A.,~=No sir, _
Q.=~How can vou remember that vou knew them first in 1870,
when vou was only six or seven years old, why didn't
you fix the vear 1871, how did you happen to fall on
the year 1878, who suggested it to you? A,--Nobody.
0.==You remmber much slse that hzppened slong about 1870°%
A,-=Wo sir,
Qe==inything perticular 4o Tix in your mind wvhen vou first
kX ew 0ld man Tewis® A,-~No sir
Q.~=Vou x e=mnnot tell why you fix the year 1870, Will



it wasen't seventy~five? 4, ,--Can't say that,
Q.,--Ceu't say at all®? A,--¥o answer,
0,~-Vou cén read® A4A,)Ves sir,
Q.~~vVou sign affidaviw and. swsar to papers without
raad ing them and knowing what you zre siging® A ~=Tall
gir, 71 didn't realize th t T was sigening the papers
that thev have got here,
%Y ou knaw that vou were swearing and ‘under osht when vou
glgned that peper® A,--Ves sir,
Q.,~=And vet you state to the Court that you signed it
without reeding it® A,--Fo sir,
8 -rave vou done it often? A,~~No gir, first case T was
) -g@l@,}laxwmﬁ;agaﬁm how you swore to this without knowing

what you were swe ring to? Yow does it happen that
vou swore to this affidavit without know ing what it
contaim d® A,~-They wanted me to witness the paspers
that they wers the same Tewils that T had known, and that
is as far as 1 intended to wiiness the effidavit,

Q.==If vou signed this paper the Wotarv Public awore

thaet the matters and things we e true® A,~~-Ves sir,

Qe==Vou tell the Court that you signed that without reading
it* A,--YVes sir,

Qe=~Phat excuse do vow ive, what explanation do vou give?

A.""C&n't tﬂll yOU.

Qe=~Ainy #xplanastion to offer® A,~-No sir, :

Q.~-~Who first talked to vou about coming here zs @ witness
for the Vations who first talked to ~ou? A,--Can't
remember his nsme, he told me his name,

Q.~=What did he tell rou he wanted? A,~-Tanted m ¢ asa wit-

negs there on bshalf of the Wations,

Qe==Tid he have s copy of this affidavit? A,=-~Wo answer,

Q.=~Did vou tell him what vou had swom to © A, ~-Veg gir,
He asked me if T hed witnessed a paper stating that the
Tewlis's was the seme Tawis', md afterwards if T had wi
nessed a paper when these Wing people were in there, and
T #aid that if that was in there T don't remember 1it,

Qe==That is all written with a pen?® A,-~Ves sir.

Q.=-T8 that vour signature® A,--Ves air,

Q.~-That isg vour signature® A,=-Ves cir,

Q.,--You swore to *hat before T, B, Mopfrow, Wotary Public at
Checotah?® A,=-ve’ gir,

Q.,==1 will read this ofer and have vou tell the court if
vou swore to this affidavit? "Reads affidavit, Did
vou sign that affidavit® A,-~- T did and there aintt
but one thinc in that affidavit T dontt know, That
Susanna King T don't ¥now, but the rest of that calling
the nameg I knew that snd T knew Mr, Tewis snd also the
old lady, and that 1z what they wanted me t witness, and
there is something there, where it comes in sbout Susanna

King, 1 dOn"; remember that, of course after T read it
over, as to telling vou T divm't read it ovar, T read it
over, but T don't remember witnessing that, T don't
know them people, but the rest of them people I know,

Oe.==That ies all right with the exception of Susanna Xing?

A,==Ves sir,

Q.=-This one you swore to over at Checotah® A,--Yes sir,

Q.==Swors to the other one over at Shawnee? A,--Ves gir,

¥Mr, Cormish:

If the Court plesse she has not said anythins about



plaintiff affidavit in Shewnee,
. JUDGE ADAMS:

Q He hes examined her on that point,
JUDGR TOOTR:

‘Thegse affilavits were offered by vou as true affidavits
are you ¢trylng to diseredit them,

¥Mr. Harley:
Wo «ir, Proving that they exected them,

JUDGE. 7QOTE:
Tou asgked her if she evecuted these affidavit withe
ocut knowing what it contel ed,.

JUIGE WEAVER:

Qe==How far did you live fro m chswnee at the time you made
that affidavit in Shawnee? A,--T1 dont't know just how
far 1t 18, T lived in two miles of where T livs now,

Qe==About how far is it? A,--Straight across the country
sbout elghty=five miles,

Qe==H w 444 you happen to go up there® A,~~Up there visit-
ing my brother in law,

Q.=~Didn't go on purpose to make = affidavit? A,~-No sir,

Q.==Whe is vour brother in law® A,-«Js&cob Bender

Q.~=Thile you were there you learned these affidavits
were being taken and that is how vour affidavit happened
to be taken® A,~=Ves sir,

Witness emcuged,

HIRAM H,., TARLY, being called a witness
on behalf of the defemdants, took the stand,

DIRECT BYAWIVATION,
Mr, Cornish:

Q.~~3tate wvour full name? A,--Wiram ¥, Barly.

Qe==How 014 are vou ¥Mr, Farly? A,~-4dbout fifty-six or
fifty~-sevan, somewheres aslong there,

Qe==There 4 vou live® A,--Cherckee Nation,

Qe==Are vou a white man or Indian bv blood? A.--White man.

Dem==T willask vou if vou were acquainted with s man named
Jemes Madison Tewis in his life time? A,.-~Ves sir.

Qe==There 41° you firgt kno him? A,--Sebastdan County,
Arkensas, :

Qe==In what vear? A, -=First got ascquainted with him in
sevwenty-one or seventy- saventy-one,

fe==How long dil you continue to know him? ,A.~--Up to
gbout the year seventy~five, I believe,

Qe=="That relationsh ip did vou bear to the family? A.""'
Son in law of his,

Qe==Vou married one of the sisters of Rdward M, Lewis?x

Ae==Yes sir,

Qe~=~In what ysar did you marry her? A,--Seventy-two,

Qe==Tn what year did tha 0ld man die? A, ,~~Summer o« seventy-



five is my recollection,
Q.==Did he own lad in gebastain County, Arkansag? A,--
Yes 1ir, he hed & plage there,

Q.==There was his place loc ated® A,--On the line, Choctaw
libe of Sebastian County,

0,~=What commubity or post office? A,--Fnterprise, between
Pnterprise and Rackett City.

Q,~-Prom the time of your first acqgadntaznece with the old
men up to his death, did you ever hear him cleim to be

& Choctaw Indian by blood® /,--No sir,

Q.~=Have you heard him make any statement with reference to
Choctaw citizens ip? A,~~T1 think I have.

Qu=~Repeat to the court what statements you have heard him
make? A,--T talking in the femily, T hwve heard him
make remtrk, the same ag & good many more along at that
time, but that he would not clalm citizenship when he was
not san Indian, I head him say thet,

Qe=~The o0ld man said that he was not an Indian and did not
heve any Tndian bloced? A,-=Ves sir.

Q.»=You say the old man ded in seventy-five or gix? A.==-
Yea sir.

Qe==How long after that time was it that the boys set up

n citizenship claim, 1 n about what year, fix it ae

near as you cen? A,-~7 guess it was seventy-six or sevanty-

sevén, it might have been as late seventy-eight, 1
do not recollect how long that was,

Q.==What sons did the old man have? A,~~There is Fd, Tom,
Dave, three married sons,

0.~~That statements have you heard them make with p ference
te their citizenehip claim and with reference to the
menner In which the conceived it? A,«-When I first
Inew mnything about the citizenship claim, I didn't know
anything of it until it was pretty well fixed up, dbut
they told me about itf,

JUDGE ADAVS:
Qe~=Who told wyou? A,--Rhoda Cowart,
¥r, Comish:,

Q.==How was she rslated to old man Tewisg? A,--Daughter.

De==What did she tell you? A,--%ald that they hed witnessess
to awear that they wesre Indlans.

Q.=-D1d she say what witneases they had? A,~-One feller,
I don't remember his name, his nmme was Lewis, T may heve
geen him once, T heard him called different names,

Q.--Have you hzard Td Lewls make any statement? A,--No sir,

Qe==Hear any statement from Dave Tewiag? A,-~Yes =ir,

De==What did Dave say.

¥Mr. Harley:
Dave Lewls is not an applicant in this case,
¥Mr, Comish:

He is the son of old James Madison Tewis, He was &
rarty te the original procceding,

Mr, Harley:

e was not & porty to thi suit, it would not be relevant
in this case and would not be competent,



Mr, Yensfield:

Ve expect to show that he was married into the fanily,
and we expect to show the stz tements of warious members
¢f the fTamily that there was a fraudulent ¢ itizendhip
claim puy on foot by this family, Part of the fanily
from whom he heand them sare probablv dead "ut some

of them are living and applicante here and others whose

- statements he wil make, proving the fraudulency of this

clafpm, snd we think it pe fectly competent for him, a
mber of the feamily to stats what these persons said to

him when they first launched the claim,

Mr, Cormish:

The court will renember that in this particular case
they are relyving upon a 2 affidavit thatl was taken at that
time which was taken in thet proce ding, and which
this man was » party Lo snd the evide ce racen in that
proceeding,

¥Mr, Harley:

He not only married into the family, but he ssperated
from the woman he did marry, and there is an 1ill
feellng existing between him and the othr members of the
family, and he now seeke to testify about what a man
sadd that is dead. We cennot bring him here to refute
the statements, Any statement he may choose to siate
will be perfectly campetent ag to anv of the other,
JUDGE POOTH:
We ca hear him subject to objections,

JUIGT. ADAWMS:

This witness have any conversation with any of these
a plicants,

Mr, Comisnh:

Yes sir, Rhoda Cowart,
¥r, Harley:

She has been dead for twentvy years,
Mr, Cornish:

Are not the descen anta of this man Dave Lewis parties
te this suit,

¥r. Herley:

Not that T know of, Here are a nuber of children of
James Madison Lewis,

¥Mr, Comish;
I wish the court to bear in mind that the main evidence

which they rely upon at this time is the evidence of
this man Tewls in & proceeding to which this man was a



part v, T think that any contradictory statement
which he made to this man would be competent,

JUDGE 7O0TH:

I do not think, strictly ppesking that it iz c ampetent,
but we have besn sllowing it all to go in subject to ob-
Ject ions,

JUDGE, ADANS:

T don't think that it is competent. 1If you can show,
you stated that you could show that there was a conspiracy
on the part of all of these people to put through a
frauduwWlent claim and that this witness would tegtify
as to that understading betwesn the parties,

yvr, Mansfield:

He could ‘only testify by what took place bee tween
them at that time, Tor inctance he will testify xbumkx
xxxckhissmar whet they were testifying about as to vhether
this man had an IdE n name r not, He gaidl that they
could hire that fellow and get him to make an affidavit,
and thereby get admitted; that he heard them conculting
in the family about 1it,

¥r, Barlay:
If any of these applicants, that would be competent,
Mr, Vanaf ieald:

Thers is not a case that does n t rest upon hearsay
and in vilew of what is gone in and that affidavit is
simply & reflection ~f the statements of Hhexdmadcx a
dead man, I think this should be allewed to go in.

¥y, Harley:

If that be true certainly they can commect some of
this mans brothers wnd sisters,

¥y, Comish:

It will be developed that the descendants of this
man Dave Lewig are parties to this suilt,

JUDGE ADANS:
Ses what he Ynows.
¥r. Cornish:

Qe==Just state to the Court vhat talk you hsd with Dave -
Tewis about this matter and other members of the family
about this cagse® A,~-All the talk that T know of was
to get up evidence to prove that they were Choctaws,

Q.==Tho talked to you about getting up evidence? A.--Dave
Tewis Rhoda Cowart mmd others,

Qe~="hat other? A,~-Cznnot remember, but the family I
guesgs talked abo't it, T don't remember any of them.



Qe==Vou wers at that time the husband of one of the girls?

A,==Ves sir,

Q.=~"hat was their object in talking to you? A.--Putting

in to pay these witnesses, getting evidence,

Qe==In what vear 3id that occur? A,=--7 think it was in
seventy-six or seventy-seven, T think as well as T can
recollect, j :

Qe =~With refersnce to thelr witnesses, what witness did they
say they had? A,--Tewis and I heard afterwsrds someodne

else, T dormrt Jmow his right name., They were f0 pay him
80 much cotton.

Q.==How muech cotton? A,--About three hundred dollars
was what he wanted, he wss pald about that much,

Q.==Vhat gstarsment 4id ou make to them with raference to
that propogition did you go in with them? A,--No sir,

I did not go in with them,

Q.~=What did vou say to them® A,=-csid T was not géing
into a fraud,

0.~=Do vou ¥now how any members of thig family vou had this
talk with® A,--Cant't say that,

Qe==Over what period of time did this talk occur? A,--Year
or two, had some talk one way or the other with all
of the femily, but then T don't recollect,

0,~=vYou =ay that vou have tszlked about this matter with
nearly all of the members of the familv? !, ~-Yes sir,

0.~=7 will ask vou if vou talked with WFTdward N, Tewis?

A~=Ves sir,

0,~=-Will ask vou if you talked with James P, Tewis? A,==
Yeg eir, telked to the vh le family, all the grown ones.

Q,==With reference to the matter of the citizens ip claim?

A~~Yed sir, Tean't recsll snvthing tht was saild about it
but we telked, T don't recollect the talk thet T had,

Q.«-whers were the Tewis's living at that time? A,~-~Some
of them were living down by me on the line of the Choo=-
taw wation in Ariangas, and some of them were living
here,

Q.~=Thosa that were living in the choctaw Nation, on whose
place were they living? A,--T hezard that they taken &
leage from Wade MeXinnev(?99).

Q. =How far did you live from them? A,-~-Seventy-five or
gixty miles,

Q.,~="hare did you live? Arkansas,

¥r, Harley:
T donst think that is competent evidences,
JUDGE ADAMS:

1 don't see that it amounts to amything one way eor
the other,

Mr, Comish:
Qe=~¥ere was the o0ld man living when he died® A,--Arkansas
before he died, he died on the rozd between up here and
the Wation snd dOown there, on the Jim Xing Prairie in
the Choctaw Watlon, Tied dn the road.
CROGS=-EXAMINATION,

¥Mr. Harley:



Q.==That i8 the nme of the dauwrhter of Tames Madison Tewis
that vou married® A,- samh J,
0,~~Weere vou married to her? A,--%ebastian County, Arkansas.
De==How long did vou live with her her? A,~--/bout seven
years,
Q.~~78 she dead? A,--Ves sglr,
Q.~=nead wher vou guit living with her® A,-~No gir,
Q.u~@@perafaﬁ for her? A,--Ves gir,
Q.~~There wvhere yvou 1ivina when vou s@paratad from her? A,--
Cokorado,
O,==Then d4i1d you go to “oclorade with her? A,--0879,
Q,~=She go with you? A,-=-ves sir,
Q.=-von sepersted from her out there® A,--Ves cir,
Qe=~Tow long ware vou single when vou married? A:--Three
vears,
0 ««Whepre did vou marry? A,--Cherokee Wation,
De==Vou married a Cheroicee woman® A,~~Ves sir,
Qe==vou ar¢ @ brother of Press Rarly one of the appli-
cants in umis case? A,--Ves sir,
Q.-~vour first wife was a sicter of Press Farlv's wife?
Agm=Vag air,
Q --Vou.two brothers married sisters? A,--Ves sir,
0.==~Vou have not besn on good terms with Press Rarly since
vou seperated from vour wife have you®? A,--%No air,
0,=="Vhepre ware vou living when this citizendhip c¢lzinm was
storted?® A.--Ariansas.
De=="hen did it starte A,--About seventv-seven or gsventy-
gix,
Q.=~How did they start 1t? A,-=Got some witness, T dontt
know who they got, clalmed to be Choc aws,
Q.,~=Ton't mow when thev started hs proceedings® A,~-First
vaar of lmow of it was sevendv-six,
D.==rnat vas when they commenced to 3@ ac sbout ite A, ,--
Yes air, _
Q.==Dontt know when they started it? A,--No sir, dontt
know the date. :
0,«=Your Cherokee wife is now living? A,=-~Ves sir,

JUDGE ADAVS:

Q.~=What yvear did vou seperate from vour wife? A,--
1879,

Q.~=Was che living in ninety-six® A,~~1 think so,

0.~~T8 she & party -t this procesding,

Mr, varlav:

tmitted from the original epplicat on because she was
living in Qolor sdo,
Witheas excused,

SUSAY A, WARLY, being called as & —
witness on bechalf of the defendants, testified as follows:

DIRECT RXAMINATION:

Q.,~=State vour full name? A,--Susan A, Early,
0.,=~Wow old are vou? A,-- Bom in 1834, coing on geventy-
vears 014,
& --"nerokee Tndian,
- Q,~~Rv blod® A,~=Yes sir,



0,-~Citlzen of the Cherokee Woyion® A,--Yes sir, one
fourth Cherokee,

~Wice ' f Wiram ¥, Farly? A,-~YVes cir,

.~ =Y0u know the familv of Tew ix'8? A,-=-Yes gir,

.~ ame the Tewils thet you know, the older members of the
family? A,~~Jsmes P, Tewls, Tom Tewis, Fd Tewis, Dave
Tewis, Ophelis Tewis, Sophizs Tewls end Sarah Tewis,
Qe=="here did you first get mequainted with this family?

,Aer~T think seventy-seven, River between us,

Qe==You lived on the Cherokee side? A,--Ves sir, and they

lived on the Choctaw side,

Qi=~That vas in seventy-seven? A,-~71 think so,
0,~~Thet members of the fanlly was it that lived across

the River from you? A,--Dave Tewile was there, but I
don't know how many of them had a farm put in t'e re to
gather, Toock = lease,

Q.,~-Prom whom did they take the lease?® A,-~John ?
0.-~make 5 lease and lige there a number of years8? A==

Yes sir, four yesrs the lesse called for,
O.=~You were well acquainted with Dave Tewis? A,--YVes sir
Tom Tewls and the 01ld lady, T knew all the firls well,
Qe==T will ask wou to rolate to the Court whaet tramspired
whert vou were visiting at Dave Tewis, what coccured
and what he said to you?

0
Q
Q

Mr, Warley:

We want to interpose the same objection as stated
a while &go,

JUDGE ADA'S:
Procasd,

A,-~le was Nrs, Lewis's gon , Had & the place under

one fence and truning rows betwen esch others crop,

end didn't have to have so many rails, and there was &
sight of timber down there it was in ssventv-eight, that
they had the log rolling, @and asked my husband, named
Jack Halley and they aske him to the log rolling, and
they said come along too Aunt Sue, and I =aid T can't
roll longs and said come along anyay.

Qe=~Thich of these Lewils were present at that log rolling?

A.--T can't tell,

O.,--ware there other members ¢f the Tewils familv there? A,=
I don't knmow, and &f ter dinner was g itting around talking
sbout having so many logs to roll, =snd T said it is
ahd work aint it, and he sald you ses those bales of
cotfton over there and T sald yes, and he saild those cotton
bales and some more like them will prove me to be a
Choctaw, =nd I said if you werc = Choctaw vhy did you
come down snd lease lend and he sald for reasons best
kxnown to myself, and I said are wou a Choctaw, T just
thought he was joking, he was always Joking, and he
said T will prove it, and he 1aughed and thare was no
more sald sbout it,

@.~~-How long after that was it that you understood that
there was & claim on foot? A,--Wasen't very long.

Q.==How lonz did you know them before that time, A.~~
That was at the log rolling, I think it was in seventy-
seven, T knew them in seventy-mimex eight, and in seventy-
nine or eight they laft that part of the country,



n,--Before this log rolling did you ever hear them claim to
be Choctaw Tndisns? A,~--No sir that is lhe reason that
I though zmxxx they were joking, end it was not long
af ter that that I heard the suit was instituted,

CROSS=EXAMINATION,
35?‘. Harley:

0,==You are thw ife of Hiram H, Barly? xixx A,--Ves sir,

Q.”How many times have you been ma ried? A,--Five times,

@A,~-He your fifth? A,--Yes sir,

De-=How long have vou Been married® A,--Righty,

C,==vou didnt't fall in law with him while he was living %ith
old man jewisg'! dasughter? A,--Wasen't over tlhere, Knew
the balance of them, but didn't know hin,

Qe=~¥hen did you get acquainted with him? 4A,--Fighty-one,

De==Where? A,~~At mv house,

Q.,~-FAow did he happen to come to your house? A,~-Hired
him to work for me he wae at his brotbers,

Q.,~=vYou feel very kindly toward his {irst wife's pﬁopla‘?

A,~=-Nothing against them, ?

Q.~="e and his first wifs seperated? A,~-Ves pgir in Colo=-
rado.,

G.m=YVou feel just ag kindiv tosard the balance of the
femily? A,--No sir, got nothing in the worl against
them,

JUDGE. ADAWS:

Q.==You sav this man nave, you thought he was joking? A,==
Ves sir he was a great hand to joke, end it wasen)t
long wntil he instituted the suit,

Q.~=Create the impression that he wags joking? A,--No snswer,

Qe=-Was he & drinking man® A,--Wo sir perfectly sober,

Q.~~}an that had good sense? A,--Ves air,

Q.-~Tardly that a man who had cotton piled up in the yvard

to but witnegses with if he was a man of any sense would
tell vou about 1t? A:~~T didn't ask him to tell me,

Mr, Harley:

Qe~=That was the first time vou were at his house? A,-~-
No sir,
Qe==You had bean there before? Ai,--Ves sir visited, just
the river betwsen us,
Witness excused,

¥r, Cormnish:
That is 811 we have to offer,
JUDGE ADAMS:

As far as that old ladies testimony is concemed, i

don't know ho my associates feel about it, but it made

no impress ion upon my mind, It ie no competent, It

don't connect anybody she says herself, Tt isen't reaslon-
ab'e to suprose that a man who had a lot of cotton

piled up in the yard for the purpose of bringing

witness would be telling others that he had it for

the purpose of bribing witnesses, I don't think you

connect them, I should say thet it ought to be stricken
from the recort,
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a¥r, Corniaeh:

T think that the record will show that the des-
cendants of this man are parties m t» this case,

JESS® B, MATHIS, re-cslled,
JUDGE WRAVWR:

D,=*"hile vou were on the stmad vhile ago you were asked

about this affidavit that was teken before yr, Tves, a Notary
Publile, and you said that vr, Armmold was present, The
record shows that was taken on the 18th day of August,
ninety-six, 4id you make anv other affidavit in this
cese about that time® A,--Wo air,

Qe~~Did you meke =n affidavit as to the Warrisge of pe rge
W, Me¥Wibben and sarah Jane Lewilg, did you meke znother

affidavit sbout the time that vou oke of'® A,-~T would
not he positive, aseems Llike thvere was nomething thet
they wanteéd brought out,

Qe==Did you make that e'fildavi’ the same day or net® Ay v

They wars there two dave working at this maiter, I would

not be positive that T made this affidavit, it was talked

of they, They were marriad in mv house in Coloredo,
Q,~=What was her name® A -«Sareh JTane, Parly She had

been divoreed from W, 7, Farly,

JUDGE ADAMS;
Qe»=the married agzin® A,--Ves 2ir,
JUDGE "RAVER:
Q.==T Tind In looking over the record here what purports to
be srour affidavit to the effect that vou were presant at

the marriage of neorge W, MeKibben and Sareh Jane Lewis,
it hes heen written o er? A,-~Sarsah Jene Rarly,

Q.=~Tt looke like Tewis® A,.--wer mdiden nams was Tewis, Tt

iz likely that T mads *he afidavit, begause they was
marrie’ at wyr house,

Q.==Ts that your signature?® (.ends sffidavit to witness)®
Ay-~It 18 mv hand w»riting,

witness excused,
Mr, Cornish:
This testimony, particularly calling attention us to
the facts as to the methods employed by these people mix
and their repregentatives ss thess fects bezr vpon their
cred bility ss withesses In thelr own behalf, x 4g the
case Tor the Wat ions,
Hr. Harley:

T wouvld like toe introduce one witness tomorrow that
e » 1little sick teoday,

JUDGR ADANE:
Ve =ill determine that when vou meks the spplication,
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